
AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING - MAYOR & BOARD OF TRUSTEES

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE

August 26,2013
7:00 p.m.

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- Eleni Andrews, Pleasantdale Elementary Schoo!

2, ROLLCALL

3. AUDIENCE

4. CONSENTAGENDA- OMNIBUS VOTE

All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the Village Board
and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless a Board member or citizen so request, in which event the item will
be removed from the Consent Agenda.

5, MINUTES

.A. Approval of Reqular Meetino of Auqust 12. 2013

-8. Receive and File Draft Plan Commission Meetino of Auoust 19. 2013

6. ORDINANCES

7. RESOLUTIONS

A. Consideration of Adootion of Resolution Authorizinq a Real Estate Sales
Contract for Sale of Villaqe Owned Land at 1'!680 German Church Road
(Pump Center)

-B. Adoption of Resolution Amendinq the Premium Conversion Plan under
Section 125 of the lnternal Revenue Code for the Benefit of the
Emplovees of the Villaqe of Burr Ridqe Previouslv Adopted bv Resolution
R-23-92

8. CONSIDERATIONS

A. Consideration of Plan Commission Recommendation to Denv Fence
Variation (Z-1 1-2013: 6501 Countv Line Road - Lindell)

.8. Approval of Plan Commission Recommendation to Grant Conditional Siqn
Approval and Siqn Variation for Two Wall Siqns (5-04-20'13: 60 Shore
Drive - Brand Max Motors)

-C. Approval of Plan Commission Recommendation to Conduct a Public
Hearino to Consider an Amendment to the Zoninq Ordinance in Response
to the State of lllinois Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Pilot
Prooram Act (PC-07-201 3)



"D.

-E.

.F.

Approval of Recommendation to Authorize FMLA Leave of Absence for
General Utilitv Worker Tim Jordan

9.

10.

11.

include anv special expenditures

G. Other Considerations - For Announcement, Deliberation and/or
Discussion Only - No Official Action will be Taken

AUDIENCE

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM VILLAGE OFFICIALS

ADJOURNMENT



6.

7.

TO: Mayor and Board of Trustees

FROM: Village Administrator Steve Stricker and Staff

SUBJECT: Regular Meeting of August 26,2013

DATE: August 23, 2013

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Eleni Andrews, Pleasantdale Elementary School

ORDINANCES

RESOLUTIONS

A. Contract for the Sale of Villaqe Propertv - Pump Genter

Please find attached a Resolution authorizing a contract for the sale of the
Village Pump Center property located on German Church Road, along with
the contract. The contract purchaser is Pulte Home Corporation. Pulte has
committed to purchase the property at the Village's asking price of
$2,445,000.

The contract is contingent on the Village granting zoning approval for a
residential development to be proposed by Pulte. The approval of this
contract in no way obligates or indicates the Village's intent to approve any
particular zoning classification or development plan for the subject property.
lf Pulte does not obtain zoning approval, the contract would expire with no
further obligations required of either the Village or Pulte.

Also, please note that the contract is not contingent upon Pulte's acquisition
of the Sessions property adjacent to the pump station property. lt is our
understanding that the Sessions property is under contract to another buyer
and Pulte may continue to try to acquire this property. However, the contract
gives Pulte the right to pursue zoning approval for the pump station property
without inclusion of the Sessions property

There is also attached an email message and a letter from Mr. Zed Francis on
behalf of the Bridle Path Homeowners Association.

It is our recommendation: that the Resolution authorizing the contract
be adopted and that the contract be approved.

B. Amend Premium Conversion Plan (Section 125 Plan)

ln April 1992, the Village adopted Resolution #R-23-92 that approved a
Premium Conversion Plan that would allow for employee-paid health and
dental insurance premiums to be deducted from an employee,s paycheck
before income taxes are calculated, thereby reducing the amount of income
tax the employee would pay. The Plan was revised in 2010 to include Flexible

-1- August 23,2013



Spending Account contributions to be made on a pre-tax basis. As part of
their contract with the Village, the Plan Administrator for our Flexible
Spending Account, Discovery Benefits, lnc., annually reviews our premium
Conversion Plan to ensure compliance with Federal laws governing this
program and have updated our Plan this year to incorporate changes
resulting from the Health Care Reform Act. The revised Plan has been
reviewed and approved by Finance Director Jerry Sapp and went into effect
July 1, 2013. Enclosed is a Resolution adopting the revised Premium
Conversion Plan retroactive to the effective date, along with the revised Plan.

It is our recommendation: that the Resolution be adopted and that the
Mayor be authorized to sign the Plan Document.

8. CONSIDERATIONS

Please find attached a letter from the Plan Commission recommending denial
of a request by Dennis Lindell, Attorney for the property owner, for a variation
from Section lV.J for a fence in a front and corner side yard. The Plan
Commission previously sent a recommendation of denial to the Board on July
8, 2015. The Board remanded this petition to the Plan Commission to
consider an amended plan with the fence moved behind the perimeter
landscaping with additional landscaping added. The Plan Commission
considered the revised plans at their August '19 meeting.

The Plan Commission concluded that the changes did not resolve their
previous concerns. Particularly, the Commission still believes that the
variation cannot be justified. The property may be considered unique due to
its location at an intersection of two arterial streets. However, that unique
condition does not create a hardship that can only be resolved by granting the
proposed fence variation. ln fact, the Plan Commission concluded that the
fence will not provide any more protection from the adjacent streets than
could be provided by landscaping.

The petitioner also requested a text amendment that would allow fences in
the front yards of properties of two acres or more and located on two arterial
streets. The Commission previously recommended denial of the text
amendment in part because the size of the lot should not be reason for
allowing front yard fences.

At the August 19 meeting, the petitioner indicated they would be agreeable to
any amendment that allowed a front yard fence on the subject property. The
Commission discussed options for a text amendment and decided that any
further consideration of a text amendment should be done with a new public
hearing that includes a broader legal notice. The Commission struggled with
finding any terms that would allow front yard fencing without creating an
undesirable number of front yard fences in the Village. Generally, the
Commission believes that front yard fences are contrary to the objectives of

A.

-2- August 23,2013



the fence regulations which
the Village.

It is our recommendation:
Commission and direct staff to
and the text amendment.

are to maintain an open streetscape throughout

that the Board concur with the Plan
prepare an Ordinance denying the variation

B.

Please find attached a letter from the Plan Commission recommending
approval of a request by Brand Max Motors for a variation from the Sign
Ordinance to permit two wall signs on the same side of the building with a
combined area of 160 square feet. The Sign Ordinance permits two signs per
street frontage for a corner lot provided each sign is oriented toward a
different street with a combined area not to exceed 110 square feet.

ln 2007 , a sign variation was approved allowing two signs on the north faqade
of the building. The proposed sign would replace one of the two signs
previously approved for this property. The 2007 approval was based on the
fact that two signs are allowed on the building, that the building faces l-55,
and that the use of the building includes two retail sales facilities. The current
request included a third sign to be located above the entryway on the west
fagade of the building. However, the Commission does not recommend that
sign as it would be inconsistent with other sign approvals and set a precedent
for three signs on a corner lot.

It is our recommendation: that the Board concurs with
Commission and directs staff to prepare an Ordinance granting
variations.

Please find attached a letter from the Plan Commission recommending that
the Board direct the Plan Commission to conduct a public hearing to consider
an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance. The hearing would consider an
amendment in response to the recent enactment by the State of lllinois of the
Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Pilot Program Act by the State of
lllinois. This law preempts municipal authority to wholly prohibit ,,medical

marijuana disbursement facilities" (as defined in the Act) within municipal
borders. lt does, however, allow municipalities to regulate the location of
such facilities from a zoning standpoint. A more detailed explanation is
provided in the attached letter from the Village Attorney.

It is our recommendation: that the Board authorize the plan
Commission to proceed with a public hearing as recommended.

the Plan
the sign

c.

-3- August 23, 2013



D. Contract for 2013 Pavement Markinq Proqram

The Burr Ridge Engineering Division has prepared contract documents and
solicited bids for the 2013 Pavement Marking program. The pavement
marking program is typically scheduled for each fall, following completion of
the annual resurfacing program. The 2013 budget includes $20K for
pavement marking improvements.

A bidder solicitation was published in the IDOT contract bulletin, and area
contractors were contacted directly to notify them of the project. Three bids
were received for this project. The low bid for this project is from Mark-it
Corporation, in the amount of $21,750.90. Although this price is slightly
above the $20K Capital lmprovement budget item for this work, it can be
readily absorbed in the larger Capital lmprovement budget due to completion
of the resurfacing work substantially under budget. The bid results are as
follows:

Mark-it Corporation $ 21,750.90
Marking Specialists $ 26,957.10
AC Pavement Striping $ 44,031.28

It is our recommendation: that a contract for the 2013 Pavement
Marking program be awarded to Mark-it Corporation in the amount of
$21,750.90.

Unpaid FMLA Leave of Absence - Tim Jordan

Attached please find a letter from General Utility Worker Tim Jordan
requesting an unpaid leave of absence for two weeks under the Family and
Medical Leave Act. Mr. Jordan has exhausted his paid leave allotments and is
requesting an unpaid leave of absence to recover from emergency
appendectomy surgery, which qualifies under the FMLA regulations. Mr.
Jordan's FMLA leave is from August 12 through August 26.

It is our recommendation:

E.

F.

absence under the Family and
Tim Jordan be approved.

that the request for unpaid leave of
Medical Leave Act for General Utility Worker

Vendor List

Enclosed is the Vendor List in the amount of $153,393.68 for all funds, plus
$194,459.29 for payroll, for a grand total of $347,852.97. The Vendor'List
does not include any special expenditures.

that the Vendor List be approved.It is our recommendation:

-4- August 23, 20'13



REGULAR MEETING

MAYOR AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE. IL

5n
August 12, 2013

CALL TO ORDER The Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Board of Trustees of August 12,
2013 was held in the Meeting Room of the Vitlage Hall, 7660 County Line Road, Bun Ridge,
Illinois and called to order at 7:03 p.m. by Mayor Straub.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE The Pledge of Allegiance was conducted by Lauren
French of Pleasantdale Elementary School.

ROLL CALL was taken by the Village Clerk and the results denoted the following
present: Trustees Paveza, Ruzak, Franzese, Bolos, Grasso, Manieri, and Mayor Straub. Also
present were Village Administrator Steve Stricker, Public Works Director Paul May, Community
Development Director Doug Pollock, Police Chief John Madden, Village Attomey Scott Uhler,
and Village Clerk Karen Thomas. There being a quorum, the meeting was open to official
business.

Trustee Grasso stated that although her husband, former Mayor Gary Grasso, received campaign
funds from the petitioner in Agenda Items 8A, 88, and 8c, she would not be recusing herself
from the discussion and vote.

Mayor Straub stated that through the Odyssey Hotel discussions, he leamed a great deal. He
added that he will be preparing a vision for the Village which focuses on prosperity and unity.

AUDIENCE Kathleen Mclnemey, 8l'r and Garfield. discussed the Com Ed tree
trimming in the Village and her dissatisfaction with the results.

Sandra Szynal, 7819 Drew Avenue, discussed Mayor Straub's "Friday Wrap" discussions
regarding the proposed odyssey Hotel Project and stated she was offended by the presentation.

Daniel Gierczyk, 161 carriage way, discussed the proposed Global Luxury Imports business at
101 Tower Drive and his obiections to the business at that location.

Ki Scanlon, l6 Tartan Ridge, discussed her objection to the variation permiuing outdoor parking
for Global Luxury Imports at 101 Tower Drive as it is a highly visible location. She also noted
that the vehicles being sold at the business are not luxury vehicles.

Elaine Milota, 8921 Royal Drive. discussed ethics in relation to the campaign contributions to
former Mayor Gary Grasso from the petitioners of Board Agenda items. Ms. Milota criticized
Trustee Grasso for failing to recuse herself from voting on those agenda items due to the ethical
implications.

I0r40



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board ofTrustees, Village ofBurr Ridge
Auqust 12. 20 | 3

Keith Lutz, 7701 Drew, stated politics should not be a factor in the Village Board Meetings and
if Trustee Grasso is following the law, she should not be asked to recuse herself from a vote. Mr.
Lutz is in favor ofadditional businesses in the Village.

Mark Toma, 75 15 Drew, criticized Mayor Straub's "Friday Wrap" discussion related to the
Odyssey hotels and feels Mayor Straub is putting businesses before the residents.

Tom O'Toole, l5wl15 79th Street, commended Chairman Trzupek and the Plan Commission for
their professionalism in conducting the Public Hearing for the Odyssey Hotel petition. Mr.
O'Toole expressed his displeasure with Mayor Straub's position regarding the Odyssey Hotel
and the "Friday Wrap" videos.

Marilou McGirr, 60fr Place, discussed her suggestions with regard to reducing Village expenses.

Marty Gleason, 80fi & County Line Road, emphasized the importance of congeniality,
collegiality, and civility. Mr. Gleason added that it is his opinion that Trustee Grasso should not
recuse herself from the vote.

Eduardo Davila. 124 W. 79th Street, discussed the importance of the elected officials
representing the wishes ofthe residents with regard to the Odyssey Hotels.

Susan Kett, 6040 Grant, thanked the Trustees for their dedication and spoke of the strong morals,
ethics and dedication of Trustee Grasso, her neighbor.

Dolores Cizek, Former Truslee, expressed her displeasure with the potential Global Luxury
Imports business that would be visibly located along the County Line Road corridor.

CONSENT AGENDA - OMNIBUS VOTE After reading the Consenr Agenda by Mayor
Straub, motion was made by Trustee Ruzak and seconded by Trustee Grasso that the Consent
Agenda - Omnibus Vote, (attached as Exhibit A) and the recommendations indicated for each
respective item, be hereby approved.

On Roll Call. Vote Was:
AYES:
NAYS:

6 - Trustees Ruzak, Grasso, Manieri, Franzese, Paveza, Bolos
0 - None

ABSENT: 0-None
There being six affrrmative votes, the motion carried.

APPROVAL OF REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 22.2013 were
publication under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote.

l0t4l

approved for



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge
August 12. 2013

were noted as received and filed under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote.

were noted as received and filed under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus vote.

were noted as received and filed under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote.

8320 MADISON STREET - SOARING EAGLE ACADEM}')UJzU MADISUN S'I'RI,T,'I'- SOARING EAGLE ACADEMY) ThE BOArd, UNdEr thE
Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote. approved the Ordinance granting a special use for an outdoor
play area for a school for developmentalty disabled persons enclosed with a f-ence in a GI
General Industrial District pursuant to the village of Burr Ridge Zoning ordinance (2-13-2013:
8320 Madison Street - Soaring Eagle Academy).
THIS IS ORDINANCE NO. 4.834-20.13.

COMMUNICATIONS The Board, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote, approved
the Ordinance granting a special use for ovemight storage of commercial vehicles and trailers in
a GI General Industrial District pursuant to the village of Burr Ridge Zoning ordinance (z-15-
2013: 16W260 83'd Street - Tower Communications).
THIS IS ORDINANCE NO. A-834-21-I3.

MAY 1.2015 The Board, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote, approved Mayor
Straub's recommendation to appoint Trustee Albert Paveza as President Pro Tem for a two-year
term expiring May 1,2015.

1.2017 The Board, under the
Straub's recommendation to appoint
expiring May | ,2017 .

Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote,
Noel Hastalis as Village Treasurer for

t0142

approved Mayor
a four-year term

APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE FOR AN OUTDOOR

ENCLOSED WITH A FENCE IN A GI GENERAL INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE FOR OVERNIGHT
OUTSIDE STORAGE OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLES AND TRAILERS IN A GI

APPROVAL OF MAYOR STRAUB'S RECOMMENDATION TO APPOINT TRUSTEE

APPROVAL OF MAYOR STRAUB'S RECOMMENDATION TO APPOINT NOEL



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge
Ausust 12. 2013

APPROVAL OF MAYOR STRAUB'S RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING
APPOINTMENTS TO THE RESTAURANT MARKETING COMMITTEE The
Board, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote, approved Mayor Straub's
recommendations for appointments to the Restaurant Marketing Committee.

APPROVAL OF RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE REOUEST FROM BURR
RIDGE COMMUNITY PARK FOUNDATION FOR PLACEMENT OF TEMPORARY
PROMOTIONAL SIGNS FOR THEIR PEDAL THE PARKS EVENT SCHEDULED
FOR SUNDAY. SEPTEMBER 8. 2013 The Board, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus
Vote, approved the request from the Bun Ridge Community Park Foundation to install
temporary signage for the Pedal the Parks Event in September.

APPROVAL OF REOUEST FROM GIRL SCOUT TROOP 51660 AT GOWER SCHOOL
TO CONDUCT A 5K RUN/WALK FUNDRAISER ON NOVEMBER 2.2013 The
Board, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote. approved the request from Girl Scout
Troop 51660 to hold a 5K run/walk event contingent on lbllowing all the requirements of the
Special Events Ordinance.

APPROVAL OF RECOMMENDATION TO AWARD CONTRACT FOR 2OI3
PAVEMENT PATCHING The Board, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote,
awarded the contract for miscellaneous paving patching to Murphy Paving Company of Burr
Ridge in the amount of $ 19,070.

RECEIVE AND FILE RESIGNATION LETTER FROM PART.TIME WATER METER
READER DANE WISNIOWICZ EFFECTM AUGUST 1.2013 The Board, under the
Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote, received and filed the resignation letter from part-time Water
Meter Reader Dane Wisniowicz effective August l, 2013.

APPROVAL OF RECOMMENDATION TO FILL TWO VACANT PART-TIME
WATER METER READER POSITIONS The Board, under the Consent Agenda by
Omnibus Vote, authorized the Director of Public Works to replace the two vacant meter reader
positions.

by Omnibus approved the

Board, under the

10143

MONTH" The Board, under the Consent Agenda
Proclamation designating October as "Fire Safety Month".

Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote,



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge
Auzust 12. 2013

approved the Vendor List in the amount of $964,400.76 for the period ending August
and payroll in the amount of $455,444.71 for the periods ending July 20, 2013 and
2013.

12,2013,
August 3,

SPECIAL USE IN THE LI LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT: (Z-I4-20I3: - TEXT
AMENDMENT - GLOBAL LUXURY IMPORTS)

(Z-14-2013: - t0l TOWER DRIVE - GLOBAL LUXURY TMPORTS) Communitv
Development Director Doug Pollock stated this agenda item was continued from the luly 22"d
Board Meeting in order to provide a minimum and average cost of automobiles sold and delivery
hours.

Mr. Pollock explained that the following conditions have been agreed to with the petitioner:
r Deliveries will be scheduled outside of rush hour and will average of three to four per

week but the time restriction will be difficult to enforce thus, it is not stated in the
Ordinance;

c 75%o of the inventory will maintain an average sale price of $40,000 or more
c 75%o of all vehicles sold will have an average sale price of $75,000 or more.
. Vehicles displayed in the window will have an average value of $75,000 or more.

In response to questions raised at the July 22"d Board Meeting, Mr. Pollock addressed the
following:

. the petitioner did consult staff prior to the purchase ofthe building regarding its use and it
was explained that the building could be used for storage and display of automobiles but
sales would require a special use;

o traffic from this use be significantly less than other permitted uses for this prope(y and
other properties in the area.

At Trustee Grasso's request, Plan Commission Chairman Greg Trzupek explained the Plan
Commission's unanimous approval of the special use noting that without the special use
approval, the building could be used for storage of automobiles so permitting the sales seemed
acceptable. He added that other uses in the location would have generated more traffic than is
anticipaled for the car sales business.

Jo Irmen, 127 Stimrp Lane, noted her objection to the granting of the special use due to the
undesirability ofa used car dealership in the area and the decrease olproperty values.

I 014,{



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Bun Ridge
Auqust 12. 2013

Mary Bradley, 121 Surrey Lane, stated she is not in favor ofa car sales business at the location.
She inquired about the annual sales tax revenue the Village is receiving from the business in its
current location. Village Administrator Steve Stricker responded that approximately $40,000 has
been paid in the I % years the business has been operating in the Village.

Dominic Reda, 16l Tower Drive, supports the granting of the special use to Global Luxury
Imports. He noted that there are several vacant businesses on Tower Drive and continued
occupancy is good for the economy and the Village. Mr. Reda stated his business is located
next to their current location and their property is well-maintained and they are a good neighbor.

Elaine Milot4 8921 Royal Drive, requested clarification on the sales ta.\ revenue and suggested
eliminating Mayor and Trustee salaries and expenses. Ms. Milota inquired if automobiles would
be showcased outdoors and Village Administrator Stricker responded that only customer parking
would be outdoors and all automobiles for sale would be inside the building. Ms. Milota stated
she does not wish to have a car dealership on County Line Road.

Daniel Gierczyk, 16l Carriage Way, discussed promoting business growth in Bun Ridge. In
response, Mayor Straub explained the Village does not have staff promote the Village. Village
Administrator Steve Stricker added that it is the responsibitity of the Management Companies to
promote their properties.

Tom Concklin, 5 Old Mill Lane, stated he objects to the dealership on County Line Road and the
precedent it may set and expressed concem that the automobiles will be parked outdoors.

Christina Brotto, Aftomey for the Petitioner, introduced Mutie Sughayer, the property owner, to
address the concems of the Board and residents. Mr. Sughayer, who is also a resident, explained
his plans for the beautification of the 101 Tower Drive building as well as the landscaping
improvements and assured the residents that the business will not generate significant traffic nor
stand out as a used car dealership. Mr. Sughayer also explained that in the new location, he
anticipates increased sales which will result in additional sales tax revenue for the Village.

In response to resident questions, Mr. Sughayer explained that test drives are permitted and the
potential buyer is accompanied by an employee with the route oftravel down County Line Road,
not through Carriage Way. He continued that his cars have dealer license plates with the number
54.

Mr. Sughayer showed renderings of the planned improvements to the building. He also
responded to audience questions regarding the removal of the rooftop equipment rather than
shielding it since the equipment is not needed.

Mark Naficy, l4l Carriage Way, commented that he has seen delivery trucks tum around in his
driveway and inquired how the trucks will be prevented from entering the neighborhood. Mr.

10145



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Bun Ridge
August 12. 2013

Sughayer responded that truck deliveries occur at all of the businesses in the area and his
deliveries are planned for outside of rush hour. He added that directions will be given to assist
in avoiding the drivers making a wrong tum into the subdivision.

Joan Olson, 24 Old Mill Lane, inquired about the parking and Mr. Sughayer showed and
explained the proposed parking and landscaping configuration.

Ki Scanlon, l6 Tartan Ridge, read information from an online source for Global Luxury Impoft
featuring cars of various values some of which she slated are lower-end vehicles rather than
luxury. Mr. Sughayer explained that all of the vehicles listed on the Web Site are not physically
in the facility but can be acquired and delivered for a client.

Mr. Archambault, I 13 Carriage Way, inquired if there were other locations for storing the cars.
Mr. Sughayer responded the 101 Tower Drive location will be the only location.

Marty Gleason, 80th and County Line Road discussed property taxes and the allocation of the
taxes to the Village.

Bohdan lwanetz, 7516 Drew, inquired about the special use if Global Luxury Imports leaves the
location and Mayor Straub responded the special use would no longer be allowed.

Elaine Milota, 8921 Royal Drive, requested clarification with regard to sales tax revenue for the
Village which was explained by Mr. Sughayer.

RECESS 9:31 P.M. TO 9:40 P.M.

Charles Olson, 24 Old Mill Lane, stated the Village is risking its reputation if it permits a used
car lot.

Mr. Sughayer stated it is his opinion that the Global Luxury Imports business will grow in the
new location. Mr. Sughayer showed an advertisement for his business from the Hinsdale
magazine depicting it as a high-end dealership.

Trustee Franzese discussed average sales as depicted on documents provided by Mr. Sughayer.
Trustee Franzese, reviewed a slide show that listed automobiles cunently for sale and those that
have sold and expressed concem that there are non-luxury automobiles listed. Trustee Franzese
also discussed the sales tax revenue and benefit to the residents.

Trustee Grasso discussed the resident concem with regard to lost delivery trucks to which Mr.
Sughayer responded that with the proposed signage on the County Line Road side of the
building, he does not expect this to occur frequently.

l0 t46



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board ofTrustees, Village ofBun Ridge
Ausust 12. 2013

Trustee Paveza addressed the resident concem with regard to the area traffic and noise and stated
that the residents must make complaints to the authorities for those violations to ensure they are
on record. He indicated he also shares the concem that the location does not transform into a
typical used car lot.

Trustee Bolos inquired as to the number of automobiles that would be stored at the location.
Mr. Sughayer stated that in the 60,000 square foot building he could have up to 150 cars.
Trustee Bolos discussed the average sale price indicated in the Ordinance. Trustee Bolos
expressed concem about the addition of servicing to the business. Mr. Sughayer responded that
it would be more profitable to perform the servicing at his facility and added that the servicing
will not add significant test driving in the area. Trustee Bolos discussed her concem with regard
to the additional traffic in the area due to the expansion of the business to which Mr. Sughayer
responded that he does not anticipate a significant increase. Trustee Bolos noted that the average
sale price of vehicles is stated at $75,000 and suggested restricting window display to high-end
vehicles.

Trustee Ruzak suggested that fiea residents voice their concems regarding traffrc in the area to
the County stating that past Village Presidents have met with the County in that regard. He also
commented that property values in the Village are declining due to businesses leaving and that
new businesses in the Village should be encouraged. Trustee Ruzak observed that the Plan
Commission unanimously recommended approval of the petition and he is in support of that.

Trustee Manieri expressed concem about the lower-end automobiles that appear on the web site
and the ability to maintain the required average sale price. He discussed the quality of the
automobiles that will be exhibited in the showroom at l0l Tower Drive and the precedent the
business will set.

Trustee Paveza stated he is in favor of a minimum sale price of $30,000 to eliminate the low-end,
nonluxury automobiles.

Trustee Franzese inquired about enforcement of storing automobiles outside of the building.
Village Administrator Steve Stricker responded that violations would be handled through
resident reports. He added that staff could also be directed to monitor the area and the Police
Department may also report a violation.

The Board discussed the minimum and average sale price as well as imposing a minimum sale
price.

Trustee Franzese discussed the sales volume agreed to in 2011 which required that 90% of the
sales would be at $100,000 and questioned why that volume was not retained for this petition.
At the request of Mayor Straub, Chairman Trzupek of the Plan Commission explained that the

10147



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Bun Ridge
Aueust 12. 2013

business was established for one year and the hours of operation and sales restriction were
imposed as part ofthe trial period.

Motion was made by Trustee Ruzak to impose a minimum sale price of $30,000. Mayor Straub
polled the Trustees with Trustee Paveza and Trustee Grasso in agreement. Trustees Manieri,
Bolos, and Franzese stated they do not agree. Mr. Sughayer stated he does not feel the minimum
of$30,000 is fair.

Trustee Franzese pointed out that the minimum sale price, average sale price, and showroom
display average sale price were not considered or approved by the Plan Commission.

Mayor Straub asked Mr. Sughayer if he would accept a minimum sale price of $30,000 and he
stated in response that he would.

Village Attomey Scott Uhler stated Ordinance 6,4. granting the amendment to the Zoning
Ordinance should be approved prior to the granting of the special use and variation.

Motion was made by Trustee Ruzak to approve the Ordinance amending the Village of Bun
Ridge Zoning Ordinance to add automobile sales and service as a special use in the LI Light
Industrial Distict (2-14-2013 - Text Amendment - Global Luxury Imports).

Trustee Paveza proposed that the average sale price of the automobiles shown in the window
which is stated in the special use ordinance as $75,000 should be increased to satisfu the
residents. The Board discussed altematives with Mr. Sughayer.

Village Attomey Scott Uhler stated that Ordinance 6A, to amend the Zoning Ordinance, and
Ordinance 68, to gant the Special Use, should be considered together since the Board wishes
the condition of the Zoning Ordinance change to include the specifications of the Special Use.
The Board members ageed with Mr. Uhler.

Trustee Ruzak amended his motion to approve the Ordinance amending the Village of Burr
Ridge Zoning Ordinance to add automobile sales and service as a special use in the LI Light
Industrial Disticr (2-14-2013 - Text Amendment - Global Luxury Imports); and to approve the
Ordinance granting a Special Use for an Automobile Sales and Service Business in a LI Light
Industrial District Pursuant to the Village of Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance (2-14-2013: 101
Tower Drive - Global Luxury Imports) subject to amending the current condition 4J that the
petitioner will set a minimum sale price at $30,000 or more , 7 5%o of all vehicles sold will have
an average sale price of $75,000, and subject to amending current condition 4K that the
automobiles displayed in the showroom windows shall have an average sale price of$87,500.

The motion was seconded by Trustee Paveza.

10r48



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board ofTrustees, Village of Burr Ridge
Aueust 12. 2013

On Roll Call, Vote Was:
AYES: 4 - Trustees Ruzak, Paveza, Grasso, Mayor Straub
NAYS: 3 - Trustees Franzese, Bolos, Manieri
ABSENT: 0-None
There being four affirmative votes, the motion carried
THIS IS ORDINANCE NUMBERS: A-834-22-13, A-834-23-13.

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE VILI-,IGE OF BURR RIDGE ZONING ORDINANCE TO ADD
AWOMOBILE SALES AND SERVICE AS A SPECIAL USE IN THE LI LIGHT INDUSTRIAL
DISTRICT:(Z-11-2013: - TEXT AMENDMENT - GLOBAL LUXURY IMPORTS)
THIS IS ORDINANCE NUMBER A-834.22-13

ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE FOR AN AUTOMOBILE SALES AND SERVICE
BUSINESS IN A LI LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT PURSUANT TO THE VILLAGE OF BURR
RIDGE ZONING ORDINANCE (2-14-2013. - 101 TOWER DRIVE - GLOBAL LUXURY
IMPORTS)
THIS IS ORDINANCE NUMBER A-834-23-13

Trustee Bolos added that she feels the minimum sale price is set too low and a dangerous
precedent is being set by allowing used car sales. Trustee Bolos stated she would give up her
salary in lieu of allowing the business and its sales tax revenue.

Trustee Manieri agreed with Trustee Bolos and stated he would also forego his salary.

Trustee Grasso stated she respects the Plan Commission recommendation and their unanimous
vote of approval.

Trustee Franzese added he agrees with Trustees Bolos and Manieri in their statements.

Trustee Paveza stated he feels with the minimum sale price of $30,000 will promote only high-
end cars and the improvements required by the Plan Commission will beautifr the building.

Trustee Ruzak stated he voted in favor of the Ordinance for the school district, which is losing
money due to the businesses that are moving out of the Village.

Mayor Straub added that he is in favor or fiee enterprise and the minimum sale price of$30,000
will ensure quality automobiles.

CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIATION FROM
SECTION XI.C.8 OF THE BURR RIDGE ZONING ORDINANCE TO PERMIT
PARKING IN A FRONT BUILDABLE AREA OF A PROPERTY IN THE LI LIGHT

10149



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board ofTrustees, Village ofBurr Ridge
August 12. 2013

INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT (2-14-2013: - 101 TOWER DRIVE - GLOBAL LUXURY
IMPORTS) Mayor Straub requested a motion.

Motion was made by Trustee Ruzak and seconded by Trustee Grasso to approve the Ordinance
granting a variation from Section XI.C.8 of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance to permit parking
in a front buildable area of a property in the LI Light Industrial Distict (Z-14-2013: 101 Tower
Drive - Clobal Luxury Imports).
On Roll Call. Vote Was:
AYES:
NAYS:

4 - Trustees Ruzak, Grasso, Paveza, Mayor Straub
3 - Trustees Franzese, Bolos, Manieri

ABSENT: 0-None
There being four affirmative votes, the motion carried
THIS IS ORDINANCE NO: A-834-24-13.

CONTINUED DISCUSSION CONCERNING PROPOSED STP AND ITEP GRANT
APPLICATION FOR PEDESTRIAN. DRAINAGE AND RIGHT-OF-WAY
IMPROVEMENTS FOR BURR RIDGE PARKWAY AND SOUTH FRONTAGE ROAD
Jack Baldwin of Hitchcock design group gave a presentation showing the proposed
improvements for the east, west, and south segments and provided the cost estimates for each.

Village Administrator Steve Stricker stated that staff is recommending that the south segment
would not be included in the grant application since it would not improve the grant acceptance
likelihood. He added that both the ITEP Grant and the STP Grant would be applied for and if
both grants were approved, the ITEP Grant would be accepted since it is the most inclusive.

Mr. Stricker discussed funding and added that the current budget anticipates sufficient funding in
the Hotel /Iilotel Tax Fund by 2017 -2018 to be available.

Trustee Paveza inquired if the I-55 Bridge Enhancement Funding obligation would still allow
sufficient funding to support this project. Mr. Stricker responded that the funds for the bridge are
already allocated in the budget for the bridge project.

Trustee Bolos requested clarification on the Grant Applications to which Mr. Baldwin confirmed
that the west segment would be applied for under the STP grant and the east and west segments
under the ITEP based upon the criteria for the Grants.

Trustee Bolos questioned the priority of the west segment if only the STp grant is approved.
Mr. Stricker explained that the west portion remains as the highest priority Pathway Commission
Project based upon objective criteria. Mr. Stricker cautioned that the STP Grant should not be
pursued ifthe Board is uncertain about proceeding with the project.

10150



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board ofTrustees, Village of Bun Ridge
August 12. 2013

Trustee Ruzak stated he would like to proceed with the STP Grant as the work must be done at
some point and it is beneficial to have the grant money.
Trustee Bolos questioned the reason for eliminating the south segment and the acceptance
criteria. Public Works Director Paul May explained the criteria based upon his experience
working with the ITEP program in the past citing the cost / benefit ratio as a possible detriment
with the inclusion ofthe south segment.

The Board reviewed the renderings of the improvements and Mr. May explained the
improvements based upon grant type.

Trustees Manieri and Grasso requested clarification from the Pathway Commission on their
priorities. Pathway Commission Chairman Pat Liss expressed her disappointment that the
Pathway Commission was not involved in the process sooner. Mr. Stricker explained that due to
the deadline requirements for the grants, staff was required to act quickly. He explained that the
projects involve more improvements than Pathways and will not be funded through the Pathway
Fund. Mr. Stricker explained that due to the deadlines for the grant applications, the
consideration must be approved at this meeting or dropped.

Trustee Bolos questioned the timing olthe ITEP and STP grants and Mr. May explained that the
STP grant is annual but the ITEP grant is only offered when funds are available.

The Board discussed altematives to the west segment primarily with regard to the sidewalk as
there were concems that it led nowhere. Public Works Director Paul May explained that the
project encompasses significantly more than just sidewalk and includes drainage, curb, and
gutter improvements as well. Mr. May discussed the details of the proposed improvements
under the grant.

Dolores Cizek, Former Trustee, stated her objections to replacement of pathway along the
Frontage Road.

Alice Krampits, 75 15 Drew, stated she did not feel the west segment was a worthwhile
investment.

Village Administrator Steve Stricker stated that it is his recommendation to apply only for the
ITEP Grant and await further consideration by the Pathway Commission for a future application
for an STP Grant, since the STP is more expensive and does not cover the engineering costs. He
explained that this action would eliminate the south section on County Line Road.

At the request of rrustee Paveza, village Administrator Steve stricker reviewed the
improvements that would be addressed through the ITEP Grant at a total cost of$1,220,032 with
a local contribution of $244.006.

t0l5l



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board ofTrustees, Village ofBurr Ridge
August 12. 2013

Motion was made by Trustee Paveza and seconded by Trustee Ruzak to submit a grant
application for ITEP funding that will include improvements to the east and west segments as
proposed by staff to be funded fiom the Hotel / Motel Tax fund in FY 2017 - 2018.

Trustee Franzese conveyed his disappointment that the Pathway Commission was not involved
in the ITEP and STP Grant process. He also suggested the pathway behind Chasemoor be
reviewed by the Pathway Commission to consider lighting.

On Roll Call, Vote Was:
AYES: 6 - Trustees Paveza, Ruzak, Bolos, Manieri, Franzese, Grasso
NAYS: 0 - None
ABSENT: 0-None
There being six affirmative votes, the motion carried

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS There were none at this time.

AUDIENCE Marylou McGirr, 60d Place, expressed her displeasure with the approval of the
Global Luxury Imports special use.

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM YILLAGE OFFICIALS There were
none at this time

ADJOURNMENT Motion was made by Trustee Bolos and seconded by Trustee Manieri that
the Regular Meeting of August 12,2013 be adjoumed

On voice vote the motion carried and the meeting was adjoumed at 12:36 A.M.

PLEASE NOTE: Where there is no summary of discussion on any items in the minutes, this
reflects that no discussion occurred other than the introduction ofthe item.

Karen J. Thomas
Village Clerk
Burr tudge, Illinois

APPROVED BY the President and Board of Trustees this day of
2013.

t0152



5E
PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

YILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE

MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF

AUGUST 19.2OI3

T. ROLLCALL

The Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals was called to
order at 7:30 P.M. at the Burr Ridge Village Hall, 7660 County Line Road, Bun Ridge,
lllinois. by Chairman Trzupek.

ROLL CALL was noted as follows:
PR-ESENT: 5 - Cronin, Stratis, Scott, Grela, and Trzupek
ABSENT: 3 - Hoch, Grunsten, Praxmarer
Also present was Community Development Director Doug Pollock and Village Trustee
Guy Franzese

2. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Grela and SECONDED by Commissioner
Cronin to approve minutes of the August 5,2013 Plan Commission meeting.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:

AYES: 4 - Cronin, Scott, Grela, and Trzupek
NAYS: 0-None
ABSTAIN: I - Stratis
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 4-0.

3. PUBLICHEARINGS

A. Ll6-20132 16W020 79rh Street (International Motor Group); Special Use
and Findings of Fact

Chairman Trzupek stated that this petition has been withdrawn by the petitioner and as a
result the public hearing has been canceled.



08/ l9 l2O 13 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 2 of 6

4. CORRESPONDENCE

There was no discussion regarding the correspondence.

5. OTHERCONSIDERATIONS

A. 5-04-2013: 60 Shore Drive (Brand Max Motors)

Chairman Trzupek asked Mr. Pollock to summarize this request.

Mr. Pollock summarized the petition as follows: The owner of Brand Max Motors at 60
Shore Drive is seeking sign approvals to enlarge an existing sign and add two new signs.
There is currently one sign on the property for Corvette Mike which is 80 square feet in
area. The petition requests to add 12 square feet to that sign (adding the text Sales and
Sewice). The petition also requests to add a principal sign for Brand Max Motors that
would be 64 square feet in area and a secondary sign above the door on the side of the
building that would be 15 square feet. The Sign Ordinance permits two signs on the
property (one on each street frontage) with a combined area of 110 square feet.

The petitioner was present and said they had nothing to add to the staff summary.

In response to Chairman Trzr,rpek, a representative of the petitioner stated that they
planned to complete the exterior improvements prior to construction of the signs. He said
the exterior improvements included sanding and painting the walls and adding a window.

Commissioner Grela said he had nothing to add except that he agreed with staff that the
third sign should not be allowed.

Commissioner Scott asked if the combined area of the signs was less than the maximum
area permitted by the Sign Ordinance. Mr. Pollock said that the proposed sign area
exceeded the sign area allowed by the Sign Ordinance but was less than the sign area
previously approved for this property by an earlier sign variation.

Commissioner Stratis said he had no questions.

Commissioner Cronin asked about the difference between the doors for Corvette Mike
and for the proposed business. He suggested the petitioner emulate the signs used by
Corvette Mike to identiff his entrance. Those signs include an awning sign and window
sign. Mr. Pollock confirmed that those signs are allowed by code.

In response to Chairman Tranpek, Mr. Pollock said that the sign proposed for the west
fagade could be placed inside the window.



081 19l2013 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 3 of6

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Grela and SECONDED by Commissioner
Cronin to recommend approval of 5-04-2013 subject to the elimination of the third sign
on the west fagade of the building.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES:
NAYS:

5 - Grela, Cronin, Stratis, Scott, and Trzupek
0 - None

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

B. 7-ll-20132 6501 County Line Road (Lindell); Fence Variation

Chairman Trzupek asked Mr. Pollock to summarize this request.

Mr. Pollock summarized this request as follows: At its July 1,2013 meeting, the Plan
Commission conducted a public hearing to consider either a fence variation or a text
amendment to permit the property at 6501 County Line Road to construct a six foot high
fence along the front and comer side lot lines. The Plan Commission unanimously
recommended denial of the text amendment and the variation. The Board of Trustees
reviewed the Commission's recommendation at its July 8,2013 meeting and remanded
the matter to the Commission for further consideration. In particular, the Board asked the
Commission to consider the variation with the condition that a five foot tall fence be
located behind the perimeter landscaping and with additional perimeter landscaping to fill
any existing gaps. The Board also recommended that the petitioner provide traffic counts
comparing the adjacent intersection to other arterial intersections in the Village.

Mr. Dennis Lindell stated that he is the attomey for the property owner. He said that the
plans were revised to move the fence 15 or more feet from the front lot line, to fill any
gaps in the perimeter landscaping with additional evergreen shrubs, and to replace any
dead shrubs or trees. He said that police reports were also provided to show the
trespassing and vandalism that has occurred on the property and he has provided traffic
counts for various intersections that show there are three times as many cars at this
intersection as at other similar intersections in the Village. He also mentioned the
notoriety of the property as an issue.

Chairman Trzupek noted that the trespassing and vandalism occurred when the house was
vacant and asked if the house would remain vacant. Mr. Lindell said that the owner
intends to move into the house and live there.

Chairman Trzupek stated that the criteria for a variation include both uniqueness and
hardship and that these were two separate issues. He said that it is possible that a
prope(y can be shown to be unique but that the unique condition does not create a
hardship that justilies a certain variation request.

Commissioner Cronin asked about the number of evergreen shrubs being added and the
size of the shrubs at planting. Mr. Lindell was not sure of the number or the size.
Commissioner Cronin said he was concemed there still would not be enough.



08119/2013 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 4 of6

Commissioner Cronin noted that the fence would not encircle the entire property. He
said that as a result, the fence would not provide security from trespassers or vandals.

Commissioner Cronin stated that the public park and church property across the street do
not have fences to separate them from the busy street. He said he does not understand
why this property would need a fence. He said the owner purchased the property without
any assurance of having a fence. Commissioner Cronin said the trees and shrubs along
the streets will provide sufficient privacy and that the traffic counts on the adjacent streets
are not a sufficient cause for granting the variation.

Commissioner Stratis said he is grateful that the petitioner has purchased the home and is
planning on moving into the home. He said that he believes the trespassing and
vandalism issues were because the house was empty. He said that vacant homes attract
these problems. He said that if the home were occupied for two years and these problems
occurred, they might be relevant to this request. He agreed with Commissioner Cronin
that the fence would not address security. Commissioner Stratis said that the traffic was
not enough to make a hardship and that other property ou.ners could make this same
argument. He concluded that there will be a lot of other requests for front yard fence
variations if this one is approved.

Commissioner Scott said that Chairman Trzupek's statement at the beginning of this
discussion got to the heart ofthe matter. He said that while the property may be unique,
he does not see that the unique condition creates a sufficient hardship to grant the
variation.

Commissioner Grela said that he believes the petition has not met the criteria for a
hardship but that it may be worth considering an amendment based on the size of the
property, the classification of the adjacent street, and the provision of a setback with
landscaping.

Chairman Trzupek said he agees that there is not a hardship but that he could see
considering a text amendment based on the street classification.

Mr. Lindell said the petition requested either a text amendment or variation. In response,
Chairman Trzupek said that the requested amendment was very specific and he is not
sure how an amendment would be done. He is concemed that someone on a local street
would have the same concem with safety and traffic as someone on a busier street.

Commissioner Stratis said that he does not think the size or front footage ofthe property
would have any relevance which would mean the front yard fence regulations would be
based on street classification. He said if that were done, you could have hundreds of front
yard fences because the amendment would include County Line Road, Madison, and as
many as 8 different streets.



081 l9l20l 3 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 5 of6

Chairman Trzr.rpek asked if the Plan Commission needs to hold a new hearing to consider
a text amendment. Mr. Pollock said that it would be best to hold a new public hearing.
He added that the purpose of prohibiting front yard fences was to preserve the openness
of streetscapes and landscaping with fences may be contrary to this policy. Mr. Pollock
said that he is concemed that there is no way to allow some front yard fences without
substantially opening up the number of front yard fences throughout the Village.

In response to Commissioner Scott, Commissioner Stratis said limiting the fences to
comer lots would be too narrow.

Chairman Trzupek suggested three options: consider variation as revised; consider the
text amendment based on the size of the property as requested by the petitioner; or hold a
new public hearing to consider a different text amendmenl. He asked if anyone on the
Commission would support the petitioner's text amendment. There was consensus that
this amendment would not be supported.

Mr. Pollock suggested that the Commission consider a motion for the findings of fact for
both the variation and the proposed text amendment and ask the Board for direction on
whether to consider an amendment regarding front yard fencing at a future date.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner
Cronin to adopt the findings of fact denying the variation and text amendment as per Z-
l1-2013 and to forward a recommendation to the Village Board denying the petition as
amended.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES:
NAYS:

AYES:
NAYS:

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Cronin and SECONDED by Commissioner
Stratis to request direction from the Village Board on whether to conduct a public hearing
to consider an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance to determine if there are
circumstances where front yard fencing should be permitted.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:

5 - Stratis, Cronin, Scott Grela, and Trzupek
0 - None

5 - Cronin, Stratis, Scott Grela, and Trzupek
0 - None

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

C. Z-13-2013:8320 Madison Street (Soaring Eagle Academy)

Chairman Trzupek asked Mr. Pollock to summarize this matter.

Mr. Pollock said that special use approval was granted for a fenced outdoor play area for
the soaring Eagle Academy subject to staffreview of the final plans. Mr. poilock said he



081 19/2013 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 6 of6

wanted to be sure the Plan Commission was in agreement with the final plans. He said
no action is necessary from the Commission.

Chairman Trzupek suggested that perhaps to extend the planting bed along the entire
front ofthe fenced area and add some ground cover.

D. PC-07-2013: Discussion Regarding Zoning Regulations Pertaining to
Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Pilot Program Act

Mr. Pollock explained that the State of Illinois has passed legislation that requires
municipalities to allow medical cannabis growing and distribution facilities but allows
reasonable regulations on the location of such facilities. He said staff is recommending
that the Plan Commission request authorization from the Village Board to conduct a
zoning hearing to consider appropriate regulations.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Grela and SECONDED by Commissioner
Stratis to request authorization from the Village Board to conduct a hearing to consider
an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance pertaining to regulations for the location of
medical cannabis cultivation centers and dispensing organizations as per the recent State
of Illinois statute.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES: 5 - Grela, Stratis, Cronin, Scott, and Trzupek
NAYS: 0-None
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

6. FUTURESCHEDULEDMEETINGS

There was no further discussion regarding future scheduled meetings.

7. ADJOURNMENT

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Grela and SECONDED by Commissioner
Stratis to ADJOURN the meeting at 8:46 p.m. ALL MEMBERS VOTING AYE, the
meeting was adjourned at 8:46 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted:
J. Douglas Pollock, AICP

September 16, 2013



RESO',UTION NO . R- - 13

RESO',UTION AUTHORIZING A RE,AI, ESTATE SAIES
VILI"AGE OWNED I.AND AT 11580 GERMA}T

7n
CONERACT FOR SAI,E OF
CHURCH ROAD

TIEEREIAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Burr

Ridge, Cook and Du Page Countj,es, Illinois (the "Vi11age") have

determined that it is in the best interests of the Vill,age and

its residents, to enter into a contract with Pulte Home

Corporation (the "Pulchaser") for the sale of Village owned land

located at 11680 German Church Road and commonJ-y known as the

Pump Station property (the ttSubject Property") ; and

I|EEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the ViJ-Iage authorize
the Village President and Village Clerk to execute a ReaJ- Estate
Sales Contract (the "Contract" ) between the VilLage and PuIte

Home Corporation) for the sale of the Subject Property. The

Contract shaIl be substantiafly in the form as attached hereto

That the Village Pres.j-dent and the Village

as Exhibit A and incorporated herein.
NOW TEEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Presj-dent and Board of

Trustees of the Vj-11age of Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage Countj-es,

Il1inois, as f o.l,l-ows:

Section 1: The above preambles are hereby incorporated
herein and made a part of and are operati-ve provisions of this
Resolution, as if fu1Iy and compl-etely repeated at length
herein.

Section 2:

Clerk are hereby authorized to execute, on behalf of the

VilIage, the Contract for the purchase of the Subject Property
on the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract.



ADOPSED this 26th day of August, 2013, by the Corporate

Authorities of the Village of Burr Ridge on a rol-1 cal-1 vote as

follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this 26th day of August, 2013, by the President of

the ViJ.lage of Burr Ridge.

Vilfage President

ATTEST:

vlll.age LlerK



REAL ESTATE SALFS CONTRACT
(11580 Germen Church Road. Burr Ridge- Illinois)

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into as of this-day of-, 2013' W
and between the Village of Burr Ridge, an Illinois municipal corporation (the "Villege'J 8nd Pulte

Home Corporation, a Michigan corporation (the "Purchrser"). The Purchaser and the Village are

sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as a "Prrty," andjointly referred to as the'?rrties."

RECITALS

WIIEREAS, subject to the firther terms and conditions of this Conrrac! the Village desires to sell to

the Purchaser, and the Purchaser desires to purchase from th€ village, the following real property,

approximately 8.494 acres (370,000 square feet) in size, "as-is, where-is" and legally described

and depicted as lot 2 on the plat of subdivision entitled 'PUMP CENTRE SUBDIVISION" attached

hereto as E iDilS, and hereby made a part hereof:

P.l.N: I E-3 t -103-006{000 (excep the south 310 feet thereoo;

With a curent common street address of: 11680 German Church Road,

Bun Ridge, Illinois, 60527;

"Subject(the
Property");

WlflEREAS, the Subject Property is located immediately wcst of a parcel of real estate consisting of
approximately 12.5 icres, more or less, which is located at 11680 German Church Road in the

Viilage, in iook County legally described in EthiDilD-snached hereto and incorporated herein

by this reference (the "Scasion3 ProP€rty");

WEEREAS, it is the intcntion of Purchaser to close on the prrchase of the Subject ProPerty 8nd

develop the Subject Properfy as a single residential community, either as a stand-alone community or in

conjunction with the Seisions troperty, if furchaser is able to execute I contract for the purchase of the

Sessions Property (the "Community");

WEEREAS, the Subject Property is mned for residential use, Purchaser intends to seek the approval

from the Village fcr- a preliminary plan, preliminary engineering, as well as final plan and final

engineering in oder to develop the Community as a planned unit development @UD);

WEEREAS, the village shall retsin ownership of Lot I of the Pump centre s uMivision
("Village Property") b;t shall grant to Purchsser an access easement across the Village Property

and all"ow puichasei to use thc Village Property for storm water detention for the ben€fit of the

Community.

NOW, TIIEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Contract and for

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficienry of which are hereby

acknowledgcd, tle Parties agree as follows:

l. Purchrse Price: Purchaser shall pay to the Village a purchase price of Tr:vo -Million
Four H.,ndt"d -d Forty-Five Thousand Dollan ($2,445,000.00) for the SUBJECT

I

Exccution venion (8-22-13)



PROPERTY. The purchase price shall be paid by wire transfer, cashier's check or
c€rtified check at the Closing. Within seven (7) days of the execution of this Contract'
Purchaser shall deposit into escrow held by the Village as eamest money on the purchase,

sn amount of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) cash ("f,rrnet Money").
The F-arnest Money shall become non-refirndable (except in the event of Seller's default)
upon Purchaser obtaining the preliminary plan and prcliminary engineering as well as the

final plan and final engineering approval for the Community. If Purchaser terminates this
Contract before it obtains preliminary plan and preliminary engineering approval, then all
Earncst Money and Extension Payments, if any, shall bc returned to Purchaser. All
Earnest Money shall be applicable to the Purchase Prict at Closing.

2. DdLThe conveyance of the SUBJECT PROPERry by the Village to the Purchaser

shall be in 'AS-IS, WHERE-IS" condition, including all known and unknown environmental

conditions (including but not limited to soil and groundwater) and shall be by special/limited
warrsnty deed, in recordable form. The Village shall deliver to Purchaser at closin& a deed to $e
Real Estate in substsntial conformance with the statuiory form of deed, consistent with Village's
ststutory afihority, transfening the Village's complete interest in the Subject ProPerty to the

Purchaser, and subject only to the Permined Exceptions (see below).

3. The closing (the "Closing")
shall be a date (the 'Closing Dste") specified in writing by Purchaser, which shall be

no later than thirty (30) days after Purchaser's delivery to Village of an affirmative
Closing Condition Noticc. Thc Closing shall be held st the office of PGP Title
tnsurance Company located at l90l N. Roselle Road, Suite 740, Schaumburg, Illinois
60195 Telephone: (E47) 230-5250 and Facsimile: (the "Title Company") through an

escrow with the Title Company, as "Escrowee" pursuant to the Escrowee's usual form of
escrow agreement, modified in accordance with the terms of this Contracl. Village and

Purchaser shall pay the cost of the Escrow. For each Closing, the cost of any "New York
Style Closing" or "gap dosing" shall be paid by Purchaser. On the Closing Date when

the Title Company issues (or commits in writing to issue) is Title Policy, the Escrowee
shall disburse the net proceeds of sale to Village and Village shall deliver possession of
the Subject Property to Purchaser. In the event that the Village will require development
rcstrictions or improvements on the Subject ProPerty in order to protect the Village's
water storage facility on the Village Property, Purchaser shall pay for the costs of
constructing such improvements 8s Part of its development costs for the construction
of the Community.

In Bddition to the performance by Village under this Contract, the obligation of
Purchaser to purchaie the Subject Property is subject to the satisfaction as of the

Closing Date of the following conditions ("Closing Conditions')' any of which may be

waived in whole or in part by Purchaser in writing at or before Closing:

(i) Approval by the Village of the zoning of the Subject Property to such zoning

ciassification as-shall pcrmit development thereof in accordance with Purchaser's

development plans;

(ii) Approval by the Village of the final plan and final engineering for the Subject

Property with conditions and requirements acceptable to Purchaser;

(iii) There will be no general morstorium or similar restriction imposed .by. any

ior".nr"ntul aurhority o'r utility supplier with resPect to the issuance of building

i"..it, fot the Subje;t Properry, or iinitary scwer, water or electricity connections

Execution Version (E-22- I 3)



with respect thereto, or any other item necessary for the development of the
Community;

(iv) Purchaser obtaining all necessary approvals and permits, if any, from all
governmental entities, including but not limited to the U.S. Army Corps of Engine_ers in

iespect to wetlands delineated on the Subject ProPerty, the MetroPolitan- Water
Reilamation District (MWRD), the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) and

the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) necessary for the development of$e
Subject Prop€rty. Village agrecs to join in, if necessary, any such applications and agreements

as may be reasonably necessary or required for Purchaser to proceed to obtain such approvals
and permits if any;

During the Entitlement Period, Purchaser shall satisS or waive the Closing Conditions. At such

time as Purchaser has satisfied the Closing Conditions, or at such time as Purchasq has

reasonably determined that Closing Conditions will not be satisfied or will not, in the exercise

of reasonable discretion, be waived, Purchaser shall notifr Village thereof in writing ("Closing
Condition Noticer'). Ifthe Closing Condition Notice is in the affirmative, the Closing shall take

place as provided in Section 3 hereof. If the Closing Condition Notice is in the negative and is

providcd after Purchaser has obtained Preliminary Plan and Preliminary Engineering approval

ior the Subject Property, all ofthe Eamest Money 8nd Extension Payments then in Escrow shall

be delivered to Village, except in the event of Village's default, and the parties shall have no

furthcr obligations hercunder, exc€Pt as otherwise provided herein.

In the event Purchaser termin&tes the Conrad under this Section 3, Purchaser shall deliver to

Village, at no cosl to Village, all plas, plans (but not house plans), soil tests, engine€ring
studi; Gut not msrket studies) prepared by or for Purchaser in connection with the Subject

Property ("Purchaser's Wort Prcduct").

4. $rg.-Within five (5) days after the Date of this Contract, Village shall deliver to

Purchaser Viliage's most rccent survey of thc Subject Property showing any easoments of
record affecting the Subject Property. Purchaser hereby agrees to sccept the Subject Property
subject to any defects, encumbrances, conditions or @sements shown thereon. Within thirty
(30) days after the Date of this Contrsct, Village shall obtain, at Purchase/s cost, and

deliver io Purchaser 8nd the Title Company a survey of the Subject Property dated 8fter
the date hereof (the "Survey"). The Survey will be prepared in accordance with the

standards for an ALTA/ACSM Subject Property Title Survey prepared by and cunently
certified by a registered Illinois Subject Property Surveyor showing (i) the- exact

boundaries and legal description of the Subject Property, (ii) any portions of thc Subject

Property falling within any rights-of-way, (iii) all fencing or other improvemenls. of
every kind whiih might constitute encroachments in either direction over the boundaries,
and (iv) aU public oi privste utility or drainage casements or easements of prssagc of
record.'such survey shall celculate the "gross acreage" of the Subject Property (i.e.,

inclusive of those parts falling in rights-of-way or designated floodplain) and the "net"

acreage of the Subject Property (i.e., exclusive of those Parts falling in rightf-of-l'ay. or
desigiated floodpliinl (the 'Net Acreage"). Thc Inspection Period described in Section

6(A) of the Contiact shall be extended by one (l) day for each dsy that there is a delay in
the ielivery of the Title Commitment or the Survey beyond the periods described irerein.

5. Iillg-Within fifteen (15) days after the date hereof, Purchaser shall cause,

at

Execution Version (8-22-13)



Purchase/s sole cost, PGP Title Insurancc Company located at 1901 N. Rosellc Road, Suite

740, Schaumburg, Illinois 60195 Telephone: (847) 230-5250 znd Facsimile: (the "Title
Company") to deliver to Purchaser 8 later date commitment (dated after the date of this
Contract) for the issuance of an owner's policy oftitle insurance, (the 'Title Commitment') to
be issued by the Title Company and 1o be sttached hereto as ErbibiLlC(which may be in an

nominal amount) showing Village to be in title to the Subject Property, and including legible
copies of all documents rEferred to in the exceptions set forth in Schedule B of the Title
Commitment. At least fifteen (15) days before Closing the Title Commitment will be

updated. Purchaser shall have the right to object to any new matter rcflected or disclosed by
the updated Title Commitment, but Purchaser shall not have the right to object to 8ny matter
which was accepted or deemed accepted pursuant to the previous Title Commitment as set

forth below.

Village agrees rhst the updated Title Commitment shall be subject only to (l) general
t xes not yet due and payable, (2) general and usual exc€ptions contained in such policies
issued by PGP Title trnsurance Company and (3) exceptions not objected to in writing by
Purchaser as provided hereundcr ('Permitted Exceptions"). Purchaser shall, within thirty
(30) days after the receipt of the last of the Title Commitment and Survey, notiry village
as to those exceptions stated on the Title Commitment that would prevent the reasonable
development of the Subject Property by Purchaser or those matters disclosed by the
updated Survey to which Purchaser objccts. lf Village is unable to cure or correct or cause

the title insurer to insure over objectionable or unacceptable matters of title or survey
disclosures, within thirty (30) days 8fter the date of Purchaser's notice, Purchaser may

elect by wrinen notice to terminste this Contract, in which evcnt 8ll the Earnest Money
then in Escrow shall be retumed to Purchaser and the parties shall have no further
obligations hereunder, except as otherwise provided herein. In the event no such notice is

given within the time period permitted after each receipt by the Purchsser, Purchaser shall
be deemed to have accepted the Title Commitment and Survey, In the cvent no such

notice is given within the time period 8fter receiPt by Purchaser, Purchaser shall he

deemed to have accepted the Title Commitment and Survey and all matters disclosed and

contained therein as Permitted Exceptions. Al the Closing at Village's expense, the
Village shall direct the Title Company to updste and issue its owner's title insurance
policy, insuring the Purchaser's title to the Subject Property in the smount of the Purchase
Price and subject to Permitted Exceptions.

Purchaser is accepting title to the Subject Prop€rty in an "As-Is, Where-ls" condition, subjcct to

no environmentsl warranties of any kind whatsoever, the Purchas€r having been provided herein

below with a due diligence period punuant to this Contract in which to undertske any and all
environment investigations. Any added title charges, whefier extended or enhanced title
mveragc or insuranc€, relative to 8ny asPect or condition of the Subject Propcrty, or goverage of
the Purchaser or the Village, shall be at Purchaser's sole cost.

5. I15&$iq!-0tl19Df5[. It shall be Purchaser's sole responsibility to conduct any and all
necessary assessments of the Subject Property to satis! itself as to the suitability of the Subject

Property for its intended purpose. Such responsibility to inspect shall extend to all matters,

including but not limited to, street sccess, avail&bility of utility services, any and all

environmental conditions, and any and all zoning or building code issues related to the use of the

Subject Property.

A. Purchaser shall have until one hundred twenty (120) days sfter the last to occur of the
following: (i) PurchaseCs execution of 8 contract with the Village for the acquisition of the

Subject Property and (ii) Purchaser's r€ceiPt from Village, to the extent existing and in

4

Exccution Version (8-22-l 3)



Village's actual possession, of all documents listed on the Existing D8t8 Sheet, as defined

below, (the "Inspection Period") to:

(i) Investignte the physical and cnvironmental condition of thc Subject Propeny,
including but not limited to fie condition of the soils on-site;

(iD Investig8te any title reporB, titlc policies, plas, plans, enginecring studies,' 
surveyi, soil boring rePorts and other materials as may bc in the possession of
Villagc with respecl to tre Subject Property 8s well ss the Village Property
(the "Village Information"). The Village Informatiott is dcscribed on
r'.'hibit n ansch€d hereto (the "Village Information Summary Sheet");

(iii) Investigate and s8tisry itsclf as to the existcncc or availability of all off-sirc
sanitary and storm sewers, water rnains 8nd essements thcrefor to thc
boundaries of the Subject Property and the existence of trcatnent facilities, all
of which 8rc nec€ssary to providc scrvice to the Subject Pmperty, including
suffcient capacities, volumcs, prcssurcs and othcr pertinent featur€s in
connection thercwith;

(iv) Detcmine that $e Subject Property is suitable for Purchasey's proposed

development plans;

(v) Satis! itsclf as to thc r€quirernents for the burial of utilities, improvements to
adjacent rosdways, contributions for ofFsite water treatneot, the 8cc€pt8nc& of
off-site storm watcr runoff from olher proP€rties and any restriction on the

Subjcct Propcrty lo protect thc Village Prop€rq/s water storage facilities;

(vi) Obtaining and recording all ner€ss8ry off-site eascments as may be reasonably
raquircd for the extcnsion of sanitary sewer, $orm sewer, water and other

utilities n€cesssry to scrvice the Subject PrcPerty to the boundary ofthe Subject

Property; and

(vii) Investigate and dctermine whcther the Village will require dcvelopmert
restrictions or improvemenls on the Subject Property in order to protect the
Villagc Property, which contains thc Villagc's water sotion.

Village shall, within five (5) days after execution of this ContrEct' ptovide
Purchascr with all information available to Village regarding the ownershiP and

development of the Subjcct Property 8nd the Village Propcny , includinS' but not
limited' to, correspondence from Cook County, flood zone information, deed

restrictions, utility commitments, engineering plans, soil reports' enginecring
reports, consruction plans, subdivision plans, environmental reports 1!9 any
governmental notices or correspondence (collectively, -the - "Vilhge
informrtion"). Purchaser shgll bc entitlcd to usc thc Village Information during
thc tnspection Period and afterwards, In the event this Contract is terminated for
any reison prior to the purchase of the Subject Property by Purchaser, -then
Puichascr shill promptly return all of thc Village lnformation to Village. [[i[il
Lsttached hcreio and made a part hereof is a list of the types of information thsl
might constitute Village Information. It is Village's obligation to updatc ryIilit-U
whin it delivers the Yillage Information with the actual materials and information
it is delivering to Purchaser in accordance with this Contract.

Execution veBion (8-22-l 3)



B. From the Date ofthis Contrsct, and exPiring not more thsn one hundred twenty (120)

days after the Date of this Contract, (the "Inspeclion Period"), Purchaser and its

employees, agents or independent contractors shall be permitted to come on to the

S"Ujeit froperty to complete any physical investigations necessary for the performance
of t-his Contiact, including soil tests, environmental studies, topography surveys, wetland

delineations, flood plain studies, soil borings and other studies. Any and all such

inspections, sssessments and investigations shall -be 8t the sole cost of Purchsser.
puichaser shall provide at least three (3) days prior written notice to Village of the date

it will be entering the Subject Property and the purpose of entering.

All such tests, inspections &nd investigations shall be performed in I manner not to
unreasonably inrcrfere wilh Village's ownership of the Subje.a Property or incrcase Village's

liability with respect to the village's ownenhip of the Subject hoperty. Purchasel may.lngage

only qualified, independent contractors, subcontractors or consultants to assist with 8ny

environmental investigation of the Subject Property (Phase I and/or Phase II); however' no

contractual, legal or other relationship will be created between the Village and any such

contractor, subcontractor or consultant as a result. The inspection shall not create any obligation

on the part of village to pay or to sce that the payment ofany sum is made to sny such contractol,

subcontractor or consultant. In the event Purchaser elects to Perform any environmental study

(such as a Phase I or Phase II environmental study) with respcct to the Subject Property, the

Purchaser agrees that:

(i) Purchaser shall provide the Village with a copy ofthe proposed scope of work in

connection with any such work and any and all modifications thereof, which scope of
work shall bc subject to the reasonable approval ofthe Vill&ge;
(ii) Purchaser shall provide the Village with a verbal rcport of the consultant's site

visit and a copy ofthe test data as soon as it is available;
(iii) Purchaser shatl provide the Village with copies of the rePon in draft form in
order to review it and provide comments before such repon is finalizedl
(iv) Purchaser shall provide the Village with a copy of the final reports (Phase I

anrUor Phase tr);
(u) Purchaser agrees that any rcPorting or disclosure obligation shall be performed

by the Village; and
(r0 Purchaser shall notiff Village at least threc (3) business days prior to sugh tests,

speciffing a time ard dats when such tests will be performed so that the Village's

Oisigiee{i) may, 8t its oPtion, be available during the taking of such tests and, at- the

Village's' option and expense, the Village may take split samples of any test borings'

Any iests, examinations or inspections of the Subject Property by Purchaser and all costs

and expenses in connection with such insPection of the Subject ProPe4y (or any part

thereofl shall be 8t the sole cost of Purchaser and shsll be performed in a maJrner not to

interferc with tlre village's use of the Subject Property or and shall not violate any law

or regulation ofany govemmental authority.

C. Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold Village harmless from and against any and

all mechanics lie-ns, claims, damages, including reasonable attorney fees and co sts, causes

oi a"tion, injury and death of 
"ny 

p"tson reiulting from.the providing of material or

."rni"". irpo'n the Subject Property'in connection ther€with and any other claims or

causes of iction arising out of any sct, occurrence or omission of its employees ' agents or

i"a"p"J""t contractois while on the Subject Property. This indemnification shall
survive the closing.

Execudon Venion (8-22-l 3)



D. Purchaser represents and warrsnts to Village that Purchaser is Presently self-insured
under the following coverages and agrees to msintain such self-insurance providing such

coverages in full force and effect in the same or greater amounts with respect_ to any-

activities hereunder which may take place on the Subject Property during the pendency of
this transaction:

(D Comprehensive General Liability --$500,000 - $500,000 for bodily injury : $500'000 -

$500,000 for property damage

(ii) Commercial Umbrella Liability Policy 52.000,000 per occurrence

(iii) Workmen's Compensation Insurance Policy - Policy limits according to Illinois law

Prior to entry upon the Subject Property, Purchaser shall provide the Village with certificates

evidencing such coverage and naming the Villsge ald its officers, agents 8nd employees as

additional insur€d parties for liability insuranpe. All such self-insurance shall include a

provision thal they may not be revoked, cancclled, modified or
amended without at least thirty (30) days advance written notice to the Village, and the

Certificates of Insurance shall so rcflect such provision.

E. All activities undertaken by Purchaser or Purchaser's Representatives on the Subject ProPerty

during the Inspection Period shall fully comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations of
all governmental and quasi-govemmental suthorities, including laws relating to worker safety snd

to prop"r disposal of any samples taken from thc Subjec Property. Purchaser shall be solely

responsiblc for the oflsite disposal ofany samples taken or waste sssociated thercwith.

F. Purchaser and Purchaser's Reprcsentatives hereby understand and agree that they shall enter

upon the Subject Property at their own risk. The Village shall have no duty to inspect the Subject

P'roperty and shall have no duty to warn any person of aly latent or Patent defect, condition or

risk that may exist on the Subject Property or that might be incurred in thc exercise of the rights

granted hercin.

G. If Purchaser does not Pwchase the Subject Property for any reason, Purchaser, 8t its exPense,

shatl restore the Subject Prop€rty to substantially the same condition as existed immediately Prior
to any changes made by Purchaser and shall provide the Village with a copy of any

environmental inspection reports it received in connection with the Subject Property preparcd by

independent third parties on behalf of Purchaser.

H. Upon the closing of this transaction, Purchaser shall be deemed to rePresent ttul it has

inspecte.d the Subject Property and knows the condition thereof and that it is sccePting Ole same

in its present "As Is-Where Is' condition with sll defects and faults, known or unknown.

Purchaser further acknowledges that neither the Village nor any agent, employee or

reprcsentstive of the Village or any other person purporting to r€present thc Village has rnade and

Purchsser has not been induced by nor relied upon, any statement, wsrranty or rePresentation,

whether express or implied, 8s to the environmental and physical condition of the Subject

Property or the adequacy of any environmental assessment reports that the Village may have

provided to Purchaser with respect to the Subject Property. The Village makes no r€Pres€ntation

Bs to the fihess ofthe Subject Property for any palticular purposes. Purchaser aclgtor,vledges that

in making its decision to purchase the Subject Property it has relied on its own investigation of
the physical and environmental condition ofthe Subject ProPerty.

Execution Version (E-22-l 3)



Without limiting the generality ofthe foregoing Purchaser hereby expressly waives, releases and

relinquishes any and all claims, causes of action, rights and remedies Purchascr m&y now or
hereafter have agEinst the Village, and its affiliates, and subsidiaries and their respective Board

members, officers, attorneys, employees, and agents of the Village, whether known or unknown
("Claims") with res?ect to (i) any psst, present or future presence or existence of Hazardous

Materials on, under or about the Subject Property, or with rcspect to (ii) aay past, Present or
future violation of any rules, regulations or laws, now or hereafter enacted, regulsting or
governing the use, handling storage, relesse or disposal of Hazardous Materials, including
without limitstion, (a) any and all rights Purchaser rray now or hereaffer have to scek

contribution from the Village under Section I l3(f{i) of the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 ("CERCLA), as amended by the Superfund
Amendment and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (42 U.S.C.A. Section 9613) (or any similar state or
local law), as the same rnay be furtrer amended or replaced by any similar law, rule or regulation,
(b) any and all Claims, whether known or unknown, now or hereafter existing with respecl to the

Subject Property under Section 107 of CERCLA (42 U.S.C.A. Section 9607Xor any similar state

or local law), Es the same may be further amended or replaced by any similar law, rule or
regulation and (c) any and all claims, whether known or unknown, based on nuisance, trespass or
any other common law or statutory provisions. As used herein, the term "Hazardous Materials"
includes, without limiration, any hazardous or toxic materials, substrnces or wastes: (i) the
presence of which re.quircs investigation or remediation under any federal, state or local statute,

regulation, ordinance, order, action policy or common law, or (ii) which is or becomes defined as

a "hazardous wastg" "hazatdous subslance,n "pollutant or contsminant under any federal, state, or
local statute, regulation, rule or ordinance or amendments thereto includin& without limitstion,
CERCLA and/or the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act" (42 U.S.C. section 690l et seq.);

or (iii) which is toxic, explosive, corrosive, flammable, infectious, radioactive, carcinogenic,
mutagenic, or otherwise hazardous and is or becomes regulated by any govemmental authority,
agency, department, commission, board, agency or insrumentality of the United Ststes, the Stste

of Illinois, or any political suMivision or unit of local govemment thereof; or (iv) the pres€nce of
which on the Subject Property causes or tireatens to cause a nuisance upon the Subject Property

to adjacent properties or poses or threatcns to pose a haard to the health or safety of persons on

or about the Subject Propcrty; or (v) without limitation which contains gasoline, PCBS, asbestos,

diesel fuel or other petroleum hydrocarbons.

Purchaser shall indemnifu, defend and hold the Village, its officers, trustees, employees and

sgents, harmless ftom and agains! all losses, costs, actions fines, claims, fees, disbursements,

liabilities, damages and expenses (includin& but not limited to reasonable attorney fees and costs

incuned in the investigation, defense and settlement of claims (collectively "Damages") that

Village may suffer or incur as a result of or in connection in any way with: (a) the violation

by Purchaser of any environmental laws as relates to the Subject Property; (!) any site

investigation, report and/or remediation measures taken, prepared or required in r€spect of the

Subject Property, or any other proPerty, as a result of any Hazardous Materials or Elleged

Hazardous Materials on the Subject ProPerty, or which emanated from the Subject Property

arising from acs, either direct or indirect, of or failure to act by Purchaser; or (c) a claim of any

description whatsoever made by a third party which arises dircctly or indirectly as a result of any

Hazardous Materials or alleged Hazardous Materials on the Subject Property, or which

emanated fiom the Subject Property arising from acts, either direct or
indirect, of or failure to 8ct by Purchaser. The waivers, releases and

indemnification by Purchaser herein contained shall survive the closing date and the recordation
ofthe Deed.

I. On or before the expiration of $e Inspection Period, Purchaser shall give written notice

8

Execution Versior (8-22-13)



("lnspection Period Notic€") to Village whether or not it is sstisfied with and has accomplished

tle rnatters described above. If the Inspection Period Notice is in the affrrnative, the parties shall
proceed. If the Inspection Period Notice is in $e negative and such decision has been made in the

Lxercise of sound and reasonable commercial judgnen! this Contrsct may be terminated by
Purchaser by written notice to Village effective 8s of the date of receipt of the lnspection Period

Notice, in which event all the Eamest Money then in Escrow shall be returned to Purchaser and

the parties shall have no further obligations hereunder, excePt 8s otherwise provided herein. In
such event Purchaser shall return the Village Information to Village and shall further provide to
Villsge, at no cost, Purchaser's Work Product.

7. CodrEllliqr.

If beforc Closing all or any portion of the Subjecl Property or any righs or easements therein will
be taken by condemnation or rights of emin€nt domain or like process, or will be 6t€a&ned
therewith, and thc same, in Purchaser's reasonable opinion, would have a nuterially adwrse
impact upon Pr:rchase/s proposed developmot of $e Subject ProPerty. Purchaser will" within
thirty (30) days after having received notic€ thermf fiom Village, elect in writing to either (1)

continue tris Contract in firll force and effec! notwithsbnding suclr taking or threatened taking in

which case Purchaser will be required to continue the purchase ofhe Subject Pmperty, @) delete

the portion of Sre Subjeci hoperty condemned or thrEatened to be condemned from this

Agl€ement, widr a proportionate rcduction in the Purchase Price, or (c) terminarc this Contact,
*hereupon th€ Esmest Money shall be refunded to Purchaser, regardless of whether such funds

wve previously distrihned to the Vill€e. Failure of Pruchaser to make a written election as

afuesaid will constitute an elestion to cominue this C,ontacl

The Village currently has no lnowledge of any such action by any govemmental entity.

S GglIlfClt|lloticn. The Village hereby states that it has not received, nor is it awart

of any notices from any other governmental cntities regarding any defects on the Subject ProPerty

or requirements for any work to be completed.

S. @illage represents &nd wsrrants as follorrys' said

repr€sentations and warranties to be true, conect and in effect on the Date of this Contrast 8nd

at Closing:

A. Village is the sole owner ofthe Subject Property in fee simple and has full snd complete

authority to enter into this Contract and to perform all of Village's obligations hereunder,

including, without limitation, conveyance ofthc Subject Prop€rq/ to Purchaser at Closing

B. Except as contained in the Village lnformation or as previously disclosed to Purchaser'
there are no speciat ordinances, undcrstandings or agreements berween Village or' to

Village's knowledge any predecessor in title with tespect to the Subject Prorerty or any part

ttrereof, anO the County of Coo( neighboring ProPerty owrers or any olher governmental

aulhority, Iimiting or defining (i) the usc and development of the Subject Properqz or any

portion ther€of, (ii) the conituction of improvements thereon, (iii) the availability to 
-the

bubject Pmperty or any portion thereof of public imProvements and municipal services, (iv)

any requirement to share in the cosl thereof

Execution Ve$ion (E-22-13)

9



by recapture, contribution, special assessment or otherwise, or (v) any other matter in
relation to the zoning, subdivision and development of the Subject Property or any
portion thereof.

C. There are no parties in possession of the Subject Property, nor are there any parties with
possessory rights in the Subject Property. Purchaser may go onto the Subject Property
pursuant to Contact hereofand perform its activities thereon without the requirement to obtain

any consents from any currenl tenants or others with possessory righs in fie Subject hopeny.

D. The Subject Property is free of any lines except for th€ lien ofgeneral r€al estate laxes.

E. The Village Information delivered to Purchaser c.nstitutes all materials in the possession

of Village as is described in this Contract.

F. Except as set forth in the Villagc information, Village is not in the process of negotiating
8nd has not previously negotiated with any govemmental bodies or agencies to extend righB-
of-way into the Subject property or to acquire any portion ofthe Subject Property for rightsof-
way or othenrise.

G. Thc represenlative signing this Contract for Village has authority to bind Village to this
Contract and to the obligations and mvenants mntained herein. Purchaser warants and

rcpr€sents to the Village that 0re Purchaser has full authority and power to enter into this
Contract and perform lhe Purchaser's obligations under this Contract.

10. "o Rmker: The Parties, each to the other, hercby represent and warrant that there has

been no involvement of any real estate broker in connection with the purchase and sale of the

Subject Property, by the Purchaser from the Village, to whom either Pstty has agreed to pay a
commission. Based on the foregoing representation, each Party hereby agrces to indemni$ and

hold the other Party harmless from any loss or expense, including but not limited to, ressonable

attomey's fees, arising fiom the alleged liability of the other Pafty for brokerage commission or
finder's fecs claimed from persons with whom eilher Party has dealt.

ll. CavllDnelldAurovdL

A. Pr€liminrrv Phn rnd Preliminrry Fnpin€€rins. Purchaser shall be solely

responsible, for obtaining all necessary governrnental approvals to allow Purchaser to develop

the'Community on the Subject Property, including preliminary plan and engineering approvals

and final plan and engineering approvals, and approval to develop the Commr.rnity as a
planned unit development (PUD), if the Purchaser so elects. Purchaser shall have twelve (12)

months following the expiration of the lnspection Period to obtain final plan and final engineering
approval from the Village ("Entidement Period")'

B. @ If Purchaser has been unable to obtain all

nec€ssary governmental approvals to develop the Community within the Entitlement Period,

then Purchaser shall have the option, but not the obligation, to extend the Entitlement Period

for up to two (2) p€riods of two (2) months each in order to satis! such entitlement
requirements. Purchaser may exercise such right to extend the Entitlement Period by

deiivering wriflen notic€ thercof to Village at least twenty (20) days in advance of exPirstion

of the applicable Period.

12. [$1qg!Prior to Closing, a Deed and Money Escrow for purposes of closing the

tr&nsactio;iontemplated by this Contract shall be entered into by the Parties. Th e Escrow

309898_1 10



Instructions shall conform with the provisions of the usual instructions for Deed and Money
Escrows then in use by the Escrowee, with such additional provisions included thercin as

may be requircd to conform with the terms of this Contract, it being intended, however, that
the terms ofthis Contract shall contol. Upon the opening ofthe Deed and Money Escrow, all
deposits of Earnest Money, all payments on account of the Purchase Price and the transaction
contemplated by this Contract shall be accomplished through the Escrow. The cost of the
Escrow shall be paid by Purchaser.

13. IiILEAlig. As a condition precedent to Purchaser's obligation to close, Village
shall deliver or cause the Title Company to deliver (or commit to deliver) to Purchaser, prior
to the payment of the Purchase Price, an ALTA Form 1992 owner's title insurance policy
(the 'Title Policy") in tie amount of the Purchase Price, with firll extended coverage over
the general exceptions issued by the Title Compsny, containing no exceptions other than the
Permitted Exceptions, and containing, at Purchaser's cos! (i) a 3.0 zoning endorsement
insuring that the Subject Property is usable for Purchaser's intended use, (ii) survey and
contiguity endorsements, (iii) an endorsemenl insuring access to a public right-of-way, (iv)
an owner's comprehensive endorsement, (v) a rcstrictions endorsement over recorded
covenents, and (vi) a tax parcel endorsement insudng that the P.l.N.(s) covering the Parcel
includes no other property, and insuring fee simple title to the Parcel in Purchaser or its
nominee and insuring Purchaser's interest in easements of record which benefit the Subject
Property. If the Title Company requires that it be provided with "utility letters" to induce it
to issue full extended coverage over the general exceptions. Village shall, 8t its sole cost &nd

expense, take all steps necessary to obtain such letters and shall deliver such letters to the
Title Company with copies to Purchaser not later than ten (10) days prior to the Closing
Date.

14. Clqqing-DEIDcE!. On or beforc the Closing Date, Village shall deliver to the

Escrowee the following all in form and subslance satisfactory to Purchaser:

(i) Village's wsrranty deed duly executed and acknowledged by Village
conveying the Subject Property to Purchaser or Purchase/s nominee, in proper form for
recording and subject only to the Permitted Exceptions;

(ii) A bill of sale conveying to Putchsser the fixtures and personal property, if
any;

(iii) ALTA Statement, resolutions and other documents required by the Title
Company for clearancc ofall exceptions io title other than the Permitted Exceptions;

(iv) Village's gap underraking:

(v) State of Ulinois, Cook County and Village of Burr Ridge real estate t ansfer tax
declarations, if any, and evidence of compliance with local re4uirements and customs for
the transfer of rcal estste, if any;

(vi) A certificate with respect to Village's non-forcign status sumcient to comply with
Section lil45 ofthe IntemalRevenue Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder;

(vii) An affidavit of title in cuslomary form;

(viiir Mutuallv acceotable easernents lo be executed at Closinc as follorxs: (a) an
iccess easemeni to, fr6n over ard under the Village Prop€rty to -provide access to the
Subiect ProDertv to and'from German Church Rciid: and (B) sJbiect to the Village
Endineer's reviriw and aooroval. an easement across the villssd Proriertv eranted to the
Su6ject Property for thld purpd,se of allowing stormwater fr-om fr6 Comlmunity to be
storcd on the Subject Prop€tty.

'tl309898 1



Village shall pay all costs incurred in obtaining the updated Title Commitment required for
Closing and the Title Policy (except for any non-curative endorsements required by Purchaser)

and recording releases of any existing liens. Purchaser shall pay all fees for remrding the deed

and the cost of any non-curative endorsements to the Title Policy required by Purchaser, and all

state, county and municipal transfer taxes imposed in connection with the sale. The fees and

expenses of Village's designated representatives, accountants and attorneys shall be bome by

Village, and the fees and expenses of Purchase/s designated representatives, accountants and

attomeys shall be bome by Purchaser. Purchaser shall be entitled to a credit only 8t the Closing

for the cost ofthe Survey previously obtained by Purchaser.

'15. In the event any third party should institute any legal action against the Village

challenging the execution of this Agreement, or any provision hereof, or the zoning of and,/or

granting of a special use for a planned unit development ("PUD") for the Subject Property

undertaken pursuant to this Ageement. Purchaser, upon notic€ from the Village, shall assume (at

its sole cosl and expense), snd with th€ advic€ ofthe Village, control through the use of attomeys

selected by Purchaseq the defense of such legal action and hold the Village, Village President, the

Board of Trustees, Village ofticers individually and collectively (the "lndemnified Parties")

harmless from any expense, including reasonable attorneys' fees, technical fees, or expert fees

they may incur as a result ofthe institution or prosecution ofsuch action or as a result of the entry

of any judgment pursuant thereto. Purchaser shall have the right, but not the obligation, to cause

an appeal to be taken fiom any judgnrent entered sgainst the lndemnified Parties, and the

Indemnified Paflies, to the extent necesssty, shall join in any appeal taken at the request of
Purchaser. As a condition of the above indemnity:

A. The Indemnified Parties shall coopcrate in the defense of any such legal action
and in any appeal of anyjudgment entered in any such legal action, and shall not
settle or compromise any such legal action without first receiving the written
approval of Purchaser, and

B. Purchaser may not settle or compromise any such legal action, or waive any

available avenue of appeal of any unfavorable judgrnent, without first securing

the written approval thereof of the Village if such settlement, compromise or
waiver shall advencly impact the Village. If the Village fails to give such

written approval, the Indemnified Parties shall immediately ake over the defense

of the legal action, and Purchaser's obligation to pay for any further defense shall

terminate.

16. Nq-WrEl!tr-0fj lfliqE. All information about the Subject Property included

in this Contract or otherwise provided by the Village is believed to be relisble, but is not

guaranteed and no express or implied representrlions or warranties arc made with regard to the

Subject Property, its environmental condition, zoning suitability for Purchaser's intended use or

m&tters relating thereto. All warranties with respect to the Subject Property are hereby

disclaimed (except as provided in paragraph t hereof).

17. r)efeult Village and Pr:rchaser agree that, in lhe event of a defauh by either Party, the

other party shall, prior to taking any such action as may be available to it, provide written notice to

the defauhing party stating the default 8nd giving the defaulting Party fourteen (14) days to cure. If

309898_1 12



the default shall not be curcd within the cure period eforesaid, then the party giving such notice

shall be permitted to avail itself of any remedies to which it may be entitled uder this Contract or
at law or in equity: provided how€ver, that Village's remedias for Purchase/s defauh in its

obligstion to purchase the Subject Prop€rty, shall be limited to forfeitu€ to Villsge of the Eamest

Money and any Extension P8)ments, as and for liquidaad damages in lieu of any and a.tl 9$9r
remed'ies. In the evcnt of such t€rmination and forfeiture, Purchaser shall deliver Purchaser's Work

Product to Village, at no cost to Villsge.

18. Milrdlr!4r!.

A. All reprcsentations and warranties and all post+losing 8nd post-termination
obligations contained herein shall survive the closing the delivery of th€ deed,

and the payment of the Purchase Price.

B. All noticrs, demands or requests required or Permitted under this Contact shall

be in writing.
C. All such notices, demands and reguests shall bc deemed to have been properly

made (i) on the date of service if served personslly, (ii) on the second day

following mailing if scnt by United States Certified Mail, postage prepaid, return

receipt requested, (iii) on the date following delivery to an overnight courier, if
sewed by overnight courier, and (iv) on the date of confirmed delivery if served

by telephone facsimile service. Notices shall be addressed as follows:

If to Village: Village Administrator
Village of Bun Ridge
7660 S. County Line Road
Bun Ridge, IL 60527
Telephone: 630{54-E I E I

Facsimile: 630-654 4 542

With a copy to: Klein, Thorpc and Jenkins, Ltd.
20 N. Wacker Dr. - Suite 1660

Chicago, IL 60606
Attn: Terrrnce M. Bamicle
Telephone: 3 12-9844400
Facsimile: 312-9844444

If to Purchaser: Puttc Home Corporation
1901 N. Roselle Rd. - Suite 1000
Schaumburg IL 50195
Attl: Curt VanHyfte
Telephone: 847-230-5400
Facsimile: U7 -230-5 429

With a copy to: Pulte Home CorPoration
l90l N. Roselle Rd. - Suite 1000
Schaumburg IL 60195
Ath: Ifuistina M. Dalman
Telephone: E47-230-541 I
Facsimile: 847 -230 -5429
Email: Tina.Dalman@Pulreeroup.com

309898_1



D. The terms and conditions herein contained shall inure to the benefit of and be

binding upon the parties hereto 8nd their respective successors and assigns

Nothing hoein contained, whether express or implied, is intended to give or shall

be construed as giving anyone other than the parties hereto or their successors

and assigns any rights her€under.
Each ofvillage and Purchaser repres€nts and warrants it has full power and

authority to enter into this Contract 8nd the Contract is fully binding up, and

enforceable against it in accordance with its terms.

At Purchaser's request, a written memorandum ofthis Conract shall be executed

and recorded with the Cook County Recorder, provided a wrifien release of
memorandum is exeruted by Purchaser and is dePosited with the Escrowee, to be

recorded by the Escrowee upon termination of this Contract.

This Contrsct may be exccuted in counterparts and all so executed shall

constitute one and the same Contract.
Time shall be ofthe essence ofsll matters provided for in this Contrsct.

This Conract shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of
Illinois.
ln connection with the accounting for certain land purchase Eanssctions, the

Financial Accounting Stsndards Board requires thal Purchaser re4uest ceftain

financial information from Village in order to facilitate Purchas€r's evaluation of
the proper accounting for the transaction contemplated under this Contract' The

requeste.d information generally concerns the legal structure of Village, the

naiure and amount of assets (including the Subject Property) owned by Village

and the nature and smount of indebtedness secured by those assets. Within two

(2) business days after the Effective D8te, Villsge shall complete and deliver to

iurchaser the questionnairc in the form attached to this Conract 8s EItriliLE.
Purchaser shall keep all non'public information provided by Villsge pursuant to

this paragraph confidential and shall not disclose such information to any third

party excepi (i) to Purchaser's attorneys, accountants and authorized agents, (ii)

ur n""".."ry to comply with rules, orders or prcnouncements of the Financial

Accounting Standards Board, or (iii) as required by law.

F.

G,

H.

I.
J.

K.

By:By:

IN \ilITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this contract as of this day and year first above

written.

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE PULTE HOME CORPOMTION,
a Michigan Corporation

MaYor

AfiEST:

Village Clerk

ATTEST:

3098S8_1
'14



before me by
corporation, this

ACKNOWLT'DGMENTS

Bodary, Vice President of Finance for Pulte

day of August, 2013.

,OFFICIAL SEAL"
S

30e898_1



REAL ESTATE SALES CONTRACT

(11680 German Church Road)

EXHIBITS

Exhibit A - Plat of subdivision

Exhibit B - Legal Description of Adjacent Property - to be provided

Exhibit C - Title Commitment - to be provided

Exhibit D - Village lnformation Summary Sheet - to be provided

Exhibit E - Variable lnterest Entity Questionnaire - to be provided



PUMP CENTRE SUBDIVISION

(($-
I

I
TIrl----+---

1
I

I

iItil
,(

biI
TI

I

)

d

+
I

/*
1ii5

lxlEr r orazrtE DOCUIi!{rb r,- E 
--,!!-

ETAIBIT A

A



PUMP CENTRE SUBDIVISION

815;."8i-

i#ni#siF-#-H{*
=:#i:.g^i:E-P-:ti:;--.Hi*i5f:fli#;ff;E?

-F-=,;;=?=ffi,:i:= rrp:atu.rHl':R--g-l

!sg*:*-el5:-:ffi

#Eiix;-EF!!'$S*E*.==rffiiiE5

---- 
E::-=---

!as-s-6--I

rg.,EsfEFi=--#g:q:

:ga:g r3:--t--3Ei"=

==.r:'J! 
lE.-r.'+"E

e+Jsr",.riEjiE==E#i
?xrg!r"s4 :=: 5E lr-aiqi.E

r'-t_-i:\
/".iiJ\-.4

E:=:r=E= r--f,t-.i
Y€:t.!P/

srtEgr 2 oF a lSrlEEY Oocl'lEl'lt



EXHIEIT B

SESSIONS PARCEL - LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE WEST % OF THE EAST 25 ACRES OF THE SOUTHEAST % OF THE NORTHWEST % OF SECTION 31,

TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST OF THE THIRO PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILIINOIS.



In connection with that certain Real Estate Sale Agreement (the "Agreement")
between PULTE HOME CORPORATION. a Michigan corporation

. an Illinois
ffidescribedintheAgreement(the..Property..).Selleragreedto
io*pf",. and deliver this Quistibnniire to Buyer in order for Buyer to comply with the Financial

A""irnting Standards Board- requirements related to variable interest entities ("VIEs") as required by

Accounting Standards Codification 8 I 0.

1. Seller is (check one):
an individual (Note: if Seller is an individual skip questions 2 and 3 below.)

a corporation (C or S)

a limited liabiliry company
a partnership (general or limited)
a trust
other (please speciry

2. Does Seller own any assets other than the land subject to the Agreement?

Yes nNo

lfyes, does the estimated fair market value ofthe Subject Property being sold by Seller m^ake up

more ihan fifty percent (50%) ofthe estimated fair market value ofall the assets of Seller?

o Yes rNo

3. Does Seller have any project specific debt or other financing structures related solely to the

Subject Property being sold to Buyer?

o Yes o No debt being sold to Buyer. Seller will payoff mortgage at closing'

dated
("Purchaser') and

("Seller") for the

lfyes. at the time the Agreement was entered into, whal percentage ofthe Subject Property being

soid to Buyer was finanied by project specific debt or other financing structures related solely to

the Subject Property?

Seller has read this Questionnaire and the related responses and acknowledges that the
information provided in this Questionnaire is accurate and complete to the best of Seller's knowledge.

By:
Name:
Title:

-L_



From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

August,23,2013

RE: Burr Ridge August 26th Board Meeting and Proposed Pumping Station Sale to Pulte

Dear Mayor Straub, Trustees and Village Management:

I am writing this letter on behalf of the eleven homeowners of Bridle Path, in my capacity as President of the Association.

This is a follow-up to my previous letter dated July I 1 , 2013 (attached) expressing our concerns about the likely

forthcoming material zoning changes contemplated by the Pulte development on the pumping station property. While I

understand that the specifics are not available (and in fact, the Sesslons property may not be purchased), we are
requesting that the Board in its meeting on Monday expressly reiterate that an approval of the contract to sell
the Villagi pumping station property does not imply any approval of subsequent plans and zoning changes.

Both Steve Stricker and Doug Pollock have assured us that the approval to sell the property is "step one" of the process

and we should have confidence that all ofthe normal zoning hearings and approvals would remain in place. They
graciously shared a copy of the proposed contract with us. We understand the realaty that Pulte doesn't want to incur costs
ior engineering and site plans prior to knowing that they control the ownership of the required parcels for the planned

proleci. 1Ot course, it was originally stated that they would not pursue the pumping station purchase without a successful
purchase of the Sessions property. Apparently, that stance has changed.)

We are very concerned that this "first step" doesn't "taint" the normal vetting process and place either current residents in

the area or the Plan Commission under undue pressure to accept the initial plans presented, especially given the potential

magnitude of the requested zoning change (20,000 SF lots at Savoy versus current 30,000 and 40,000 Predominately
required in the current neighborhood).

We are requesting an explicit statement by the Board to reiterate its commitment (and give explicit direction to
the Plan Commisiion) for a full planning review procesa incorporating the concerns of the current residents
notwithstanding the fact that the Village is the seller of the property.

Why do we request an explicit statement versus relying on the implicit language in the proposed sales contract?

. ln essence, the purchase price includes a combination: the sale ofthe land and the ag reement to rezone
the land under the Pulte requested planned unit development. That creates an inherent conflict of interest
that only can be mitigated by extra attention to transparency and public input.

o By approving this sale with no articulated parameters (at least as far as I am aware), the burden could be shifted

to the reside;ts versus the applicants requesting the zoning changes. I can hear the argume nt now: the Board

already approved the sale for a "Savoy style project", Pulte has spent considerable amounts of money developing

site plins and engineering, so plans submitted under this contract should be approved with minimum
modifications.

We believe an explicit recognition of the unusual circumstances of this transaction and a commitmen t to a high level of

kansparency will ;erve boti the Board and the residents well and thus, we request consideration of this assurance at the

Monday Board meeting.

I

ZSF3@aol.com
Friday, August 23, 2013 1 1 :29 AM
mick6y@mayormickey.com, Diane Bolosi gwfranzese@aol.com, Janet R. Grasso,
johnmanieri@msn.com; ljruzak@sbcglobal. net
Douglas Pollock; Steve Stricker
Burr Ridge August 26th Board Meeting and Proposed Pumping Station Sale to Pulte
BR15D3-1.DOC



Sincerely,

Zed Francis
President, Bridle Path
630-920-8628
zsf3@aol com

t



July 11, 2013

RE: Proposed Sale of Village Pumping Station Property and Pulte Development

Dear Mayor Straub, Trustees and Village Management:

I am writing this letter on behalf of the eleven homeowners of Bridle Path, in my capacity as President of
the Association. Our Association has formally met to discuss the proposed sale and development of the
pumping station property and voted unanimously to share our considerable concerns with the Village
leadership.

Background: The Board authorized the sale to Pulte at the May 28th regular meeting accepting the statf
recommendation "that the Board accept the offer from Pulte Group to purchase the Pump Center property
in the amount of $2,445,000 and to direct the Village Attorney to negotiate a contract satisfactory to the
Village that will be contingent on the successful passage of the necessary zoning to allow for the
development of a cluster home pro.iect similar to the Savoy Club development."

Resident Concerns: While we have been assured that the regular zoning hearings and approval
processes will be followed, we wanted to share our concerns. Frankly, as there was no notice given to the
surrounding propedy owners prior to the vote on the resolution, we are concerned that the Village might
misinterpret the lack of response to equal support for this project. Based on the unanimous vote of Bridle
Path and conversations with sunounding residents in Arrowhead Farms, Burr Oaks Glen South, individual
home owners along Steepleside and others throughout the Village, I can affirm that there are broad and
serious reservations.

We understand from Doug Pollock and Steve Stricker that no formal site plans have been shared or
submitted to the Village. As a result, it was their opinion that the appropriate time for public comment will
follow the official submission of plans and via public hearings and comment period. Normally, we would
concur with that recommendation. However, this is an unusual situation.

As we have not been privy to any plans, we are not in a position to comment on any specific aspects. But,
we wanted to outline three critical concerns we have:

2.

1. It is unusual as the Village finds itself with an appearance of a "structural" conflict of
interest. lt is both the seller of the property and the controller of the zoning changes that
will be required to effect the sale. While the Village zoning processes (from the staff to the Plan
Commission to the Board) normally are an independent safeguard to ensure that private property
transactions and development are consistent with the public interest, the stated desire of the
Village to sell this property puts this normal independence at risk. Therefore, we request the
Village do everything in its power to ensure a very public and transparent process (including
ample notice).
While no plans have been submitted to the Village, I did meet wath representatives of Pulte
(graciously arranged by Steve Stricker) following my initial inquiry to the Village as soon as lwas
aware of the vote to sell the property. Pulte representatives indicated that they planned to pursue
a development along the lines of Savoy Club with a targeted 44 units. This would create a density
materially out of conformity with the surrounding neighborhood. As you can visualize readily from
the map, the surrounding area generally is zoned R2A (40,000 SF minimum) or R2B (30,000 SF
minimum) or larger. The current Savoy Club is R3-PUD (20,000).

This is a material difference. htto://www. burr-ridqe.oov/E-Services/GlS/StockMaosizo nino. odf

We understand and support the desire of the Village to sell the pumping station property. When
the Village proposed to list the property for sale in late 2008, we were assured by the Village
Manager that the property would be zoned consistent with the neighboring properties. Here was

3.



his response to our inquiry about plans for the pumping station property with its listing in 2008;
,,...Theie is no question that a better plan would be to develop our land in conjunction with the

sessions properly. we are only going to sell the land. lt will be up to the buyer to rezone and

present a bevelopment plan toi ipprovat. All I can really say at the moment is that the land will be

rezoned for either 30,000 or 40,000 sq. foot single family lots."

While the real estate market entered a deep recession across Burr Ridge and most of the country

right after the Village listed the property, it would be unfortunate if the length of time on the market

wiuld now drive the Village to alter its commitment and accommodate a massive zoning change

simply to sell the property-especially as the market has begun to rebound significantly. Housing

and l;nd prices have begun a skong recovery over the past 12 months as evidenced by

increased resale activity and selling prices across Burr Ridge.

We know the Village has been a good partner with our Association and others for many years. We look

foMard to working with the various bodies to ensure that any development on this property is consistent

with the neighbori-ng properties (all established more than 15 years ago) and maintains Burr Ridge as a

very special place.

Sincerely,
zed Francis
President, Bridle Path
zsf3@aol.com

cc: Trustee Al Paveza (hard copy)



s/20/73 BP

RESOLIITTON NO. R- -13

A!{E![DING THE PREMII'M CON\TERSION PI,AN I'IIDER SECTION 12 5 OF THE
INTERNAL REVENUE CODE FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE EMPTOYEES OF THE

VI T,I.AGE OF BI'RR RIDGE PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED BY RESOLUTION R-23-92

IVHEREAS, the Village of Burr Ridge has empl-oyees rendering
valuable services; and

I{HEREAS, the eslablishment. of a Premium Conversion Plan (the
uPlanu), under sectsion 125 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,

as amended, for such employees serves the interests of the
Village of Burr Ridge by rewarding t.hem by providing benefitss

for those employees to choose among different. t)T)e s of benef it.s
based on Eheir own particul-ar goa1s, desires and needs; and

IYHEREAS, the intention of the Village of Burr Ridge is that
the Pl-an gualify as a "Cafet.eria P1an" within the meaning of
SecEion L25 of Ehe InternaL Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,

and that Ehe benefiEs which an employee electss Eo receive under

t.he PIan be excludable from t.he employee's income under section
125 (a) and other applicable sections of the Intsernal Revenue

Code of l-985, as amended;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOL,VED by t.he President and Board of
Trustees of Ehe Vil]age of Burr Ridge, DuPage and Cook CounEies,

Il-Iinois, as foflows:
Section 1: ThaE the President and Board of Trustees of the

Village of Burr Ridge hereby fj-nd t.haE it j-s in t.he best
interest.s of the Village of Burr Ridge and it.s employees Ehat

the aforesaid Premi-um Conversion Plan be amended t.o include a

language change in Section 6.4 to change Heal,th FSA limit to
$2,500 per Health Care Reform, modified l-anguage to removed cash

benefit in Article 4, added language t.o Employer Cont.ribution in
Articfe 3 and added fanguage on post deduct.ible limited FSA.

76



s/20/E BP

Section 2: That aforesaid amended Premium Conversion Pl-an,

attached hereto and made a part
and adopted by tshis Board of
Presidents and Vil-Lage Clerk are
to execute said Amended Premium

Village of Burr Ridge .

hereof as EXHIBIT A, be approved

Section 3: That this Resol-uti-on shafl be in ful-1 force and

effect. from and after ics adoption and approval in the manner

provided by 1aw.

ADoPTED t.his 2 5th day

Authorit.ies of the Village
fol lows :

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSEN!:

t.he

APPRoVED thj-s 2 6Eh day

Village of Burr Ridge.

ATTEST:

Trust.ees, and that the Village
hereby authorized and directed

Conversion Plan on behalf of the

August, 2013, by the Corporate

Burr Ridge by ro11 cal-I vot.e as

of August, 2 013 by t.he President of

Pre s ident

of
of

Clerk



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE
CAFETERIA PLAN

AND ALL SUPPORTING FORMS HAVE BEEN PRODUCEO FOR

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE

Copyright 2013 Suncard
All Rights Reserved



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE
CAFETERIA PLAN



2.1

2.2

2.4

2.6

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

ARTICLE II
PARTICIPATION

ARTICLE III
CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PLAN

ARTICLE IV
BENEFITS

HEALTH FLEXIBLE SPENOING ACCOUNT BENEF1T.................. ....................... 4

DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT 8ENEFIT....,..,,..,,.,,,,,.,.,,.,, ..,,,,,..,,..,.,,,,-,,,.,.., 4

ARTICLE V
PARTICIPANT ELECTIONS

FAILURE TO ELECT ,.,,.,,.,,,,5

ARTICLE VI
HEALTH FLEXIBLE SPEI{DING ACCOUNT

ESTABLTSHMENT OF PLAN ............. ..... . .. . .. . . . . . 7

DEF|NIT|ONS.......... .. ..... 7

FORFEITURES,, ,,,,,,,,,, , 8

LIMITATION ON ALLOCATIONS.,...., ,,,.,,,,,,., 8

HEALTH FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT CLAIMS ...,.,,.,,,..,. ,.,,.,,,,,,.,,,.,.,,,,.,,,, 9

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

ARTICLE VII
DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT

DEPENOENT GARE FLEXIBLE SPENOING ACCOUNTS,,,,,,,-. ,,,.,,..,,,.,,.....,,..... 10

INCREASES IN DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENOING ACCOUNTS,. .,,.,,,,,,,, 1O

OECREASES IN DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNTS.,,-.,-. ,,,.,,,,.,.,,,..,.,..,,...,,... 1O

ALLOWABLE DEPENDENT CARE REIMBURSEMENT,.,,,..,,, ,. ,.. - ,, ,. ,... .. '10

FORFEITURES,,.,,,, ,,, , 10

LIMITATION ON PAYMENTS,.,,.,,,,,,, . , 1O

DEPENDENT CARE FLEXTBLE SPENDTNG ACCOUNT Cr.ArMS.............................. .......................... ',11

ARTICLE VIII
BENEFITS ANO RIGHTS

8,1 CLAIM FOR BENEFITS,,,...,,.,,,,,,,,,,, , ,,, . 12

9.2

9.4

ARTICLE IX
AO INISTRATIOI{

PLAN ADMINISTRATION ...,..,,.,,.,,.,,,,, ,. ,13

EXAMTNATTON OF RECORDS......... .. . ... 13

PAYMENTOFEXPENSES.,,.,,.,,,,,,,,,,, ... ,13

INSUMNCE CONTROL C1AUSE..,,.,,.,, .,,,.,,,,,14

ARTICLE X
AIIIENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF PLAN

AMENDMENT,.,.,,, ,,,,,, ,, ,, ,,, ,,, 14'10.1

10.2

ARTICLE XI
MISCELLANEOUS

11,1 PLAN INTERPRETATION,,., ......,,,,,14

11,9 INDEMNIFICATION OF EMPLOYER BY PARTICIPANTS.,,-.,,.,,-. .., .. . ,..,..., . '15



SEVERABILITY

CAPTIONS

'11.12

11.13

11.14

11.15

11.16

11.17

1 '1.'18

11.19

'11.20

11.21

't1.22

11.23

15

15

15

15

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILIry AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA) . 16

UNIFORMED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT AND REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS ACT (USERRA)

COMPLIANCE WITH HIPAA PRIVACY STANDARDS..,.,,,..,,.,,,.,, .-, 16

COMPLIANCE WITH HIPM ELECTRONIC SECURITY STANDARDS

MENTAL HEALTH PARITY AND ADDICTION EQUITY ACT

coNTTNUATTON OF COVERAGE (COBRA)

FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT

GENETIC INFORMATION NONDISCRIMINATION ACT (GINA)

WOMEN'S HEALTH AND CANCER RIGHTS ACT

NEWBORNS' AND MOTHERS' HEALTH PROTECTION ACT

16

17

..,,......,,...,..,,.,,....,,, 17

....................................... 17

17



VILLAGE OF BURR RIOGE
CAFETERIA PLAN

INTRODUCTION

The Employer has amended this Plan effective January 1, 2013, to recognize the contribution made to the Employer by its
Employees. lts purpose is to reward them by providing benetits for those Employees who shall qualify hereunder and their
Dependents and beneficiaries. The concept ofthis Plan is to allow Employees to choose among different types of benefits based on
their own particular goals, desires and needs. This Plan is a restatemenl of a Plan which was originally effeclive on March 1, 2007.
The Plan shall be known as Village of Bun Ridge Cateteria Plan (the "Plan").

The iniention of the Employer is that the Plan qualify as a "Cafeteria Plan" within the meaning of Seclion 125 of the lntemal
Revenue Code ot 1986, as amended, and that the benefits which an Employee elects to receive under the PIan be excludable from
the Employee's income under Section 125(a) and olher applic€ble seclions of the lntemal Revenue Code of '1986, as amended.

ARTICLE I

oEFtNrTrot{s

1.1 "Adminbtrato/' means the Employer unless another person or entity has been designaled by the Employer
pursuant lo Section 9.'1 to administer the Plan on behalf ofthe Employer. lf the Employer is the Administrator, the Employer may
appoint any person, including, but not limited to, the Employees of the Employer, to pertorm the duties of the Administrator. Any
person so appointed shall signify acceptance by filing written acceptance with the Employer. Upon the resignation or removal of any
individual performing the duties ol the Administrator, the Employer may designate a successor.

1.2 "Affiliated Employe/' means the Employer and any corporation which is a member of a controlled group of
corporations (as defined in Code Section 414(b)) which includes the Employer; any trade or business (whether or not incorporated)
which is under common control (as defined in Code Section 414(c)) with the Employer; any organization (whelher or not incorporated)
which is a member of an affiliated service group (as defined in Code Seclion 414(m)) which includes the Employer; and any other
entity required to be aggregated with the Employer pursuant to Treasury regulations under Code Section 414(o).

1.3 "Benefit" or "Benefit Optons" means any ofthe optional benefit choices available to a Parlicipant as outlined in
Seclion 4.1.

1.4 "Cafcteria Plan Beneflt Dollars" means the amount avaalable to Participanls to purchase Benefit Options as
provided under Section 4.1. Each dollar contributed to this Plan shall be converted into one Cafeteria Plan Benefit Dollar.

1.5 "Code" means the lntemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended or replaced from time to time.

1.6 "Compensation" means the amounts received by the Participant from the Employer during a Plan Year.

1.7 "Dependenf' means any individual who qualities as a dependent under an lnsurance Contracl for purposes of
coverage under thal Contracl only or under Code Section 152 (as modified by Code Section 105(b)).

"Dependenf' shall include any Child of a Participant who is covered under an lnsurance Contract, as defined in
the Contract, or under the Health Flexible Spending Account or as allowed by reason of the Affordable Care Act.

For purposes ofthe Health Flexible Spending Account, a Participant's "Child" includes his natural child, stepchild,
foster child, adopted child, or a child placed with the Participant for adoption. A Partjcapant's Child will be an eligible Dependent until
reaching the Iimiting age of 26, withod regard to student status, marital status, financial dependency or residency status with the
Employee or any other person. When the child reaches the applicable limiting age, coverage will end at the end of the calendar year.

The phrase "placed for adoption" reteG to a child wllom the Participant inlends to adopt, whether or not the
adoplion has become final, who has not attained the age of 18 as of lhe date of such placement for adoption. The term "placed"
means the assumption and retention by such Employee of a legal obligation for total or partial support of the chald in anticipation of
adoplion of the child. The child must be available for adoption and the legal process must have commenced.

'1.8 "Effectiye Date" means March 1,2007.

1 .9 "Election Period" means lhe period immedialely preceding the beginning of each Plan Yea r established by the
Administrator, such period to be applied on a uniform and nondiscriminatory basis for all Employees and Partacipants. However, an
Employee's initial Eleciion Period shall be determined pursuant to Seclion 5.1.

'1.10 "Eligible Employee" means any Employee who has satisfied the provisions of Seclion 2.1.

An individual shall not be an "Eligible Employee" if such individual is not reporled on the payroll records of the
Employer as a common law employee. ln parlicular, it is epressly intended that individuals not treated as cornrnon law employees by
the Employer on its payroll records are not "Eligible Employees" and are excluded from Plan participalion even if a court or
administrative agency determines that such individuals are common law employees and not independent contractors.

. 1.11 "Employee" means any person who is employed bythe Employer. The term Employee shall include leased
employees within the meaning of Code Section 414(nX2).



1.12 "Employe/' means Village of Bun Ridge and any successor which shall maintain this Plani and any predecessor
which has maintained this Plan. ln addition, where appropriate, the term Employer shall include any Pariicipating, Affiliated or
Adopting Employer.

1.13 "Employer Contrlbution" means the contributions made by the Employer pursuant to Seclion 3.1 to enable a
Participant to purchase Benefits. These contributions shall be converted to Cafeteria Plan Benefit Dollars and alloc€ted to the funds or
accounts established under the Plan pursuani to the Participants' eleclions made under Article V and as set forth in Sedion 3.1.

1.14 "lnsurance Contract" means any contracl issued by an lnsurer underwriting a Benefit.

1 .15 "lnsurance Premium Payment Plan" means the plan of benefits contained jn Section 4.1 of this Plan, which
provides for the payment of Premium Expenses.

1.16 "lnsul€/' means any insurance company that underwrites a Benellt underthas plan.

1.17 "Xey Employee" means an Employee described in Code Section 416(iX1) and the Treasury regulataons
thereunder.

1.18 "Participant" means any Eligible Employee who elects to become a Partacipant pursuant lo Seclion 2.3 and has
nol for any reason become ineligible to participate further in ihe Plan.

'1 19 "Plsn" means this instrument, including all amendments thereto.

1.20 "Plan Yea/' means the 12-month period beginning January 1 and ending Dec€mber 31. The Plan Year shall be
the coverage period for the Benefits provided for under this Plan. ln the event a Participant commences participation during a Plan
Year, then the initial coverage period shall be that portion of the Plan Year commencing on such Parlicipant's date of entry and ending
on the last day of such Plan Year.

1.21 "Premlum Expenses" or "Premiums" mean lhe Parlicipant's cost for the Benefits described in Section 4. 1.

1.22 "Pr€mium Expense ReimbuBement Account' means the accrunt established Ior a Participant pursuant to this
Plan to which part of his Cafeteria Plan Benefit Dollars may be allocated and from which Premiums ol the Participant shall be paid or
reimbursed. lf more than one type of insured Benefit is elected, sub-accounts shall be established for each type of insured Benefit.

1.23 "Salary Redirection" means the contributions made by the Employer on behalf of Partacipa nts pursuant to Section
3.2. These contributions shall be converted to Cafeieria Plan Benefit Oollars and allocated to the funds or accounts established under
the Plan pursuant to the Participanis' elec,tions made under Arlicle V.

1.24 "Salary Redirection Agreemenf' means an agreement between the Participant and the Employer under which
the Participant agrees lo reduce his Compensation or to forego all or part of the increases in such Compensalion and to have such
amounts contributed by the Employer to the Plan on the Parlicipant's behalf. The Salary Redireclion Agreement shall apply only to
Compensation that has not been aciually or construclively received by the Participant as of the date of the agreement (afrer taking this
Plan and Code Seclion 125 into account) and, subsequently does not become cunently available to the Participant.

1.25 "Spouse" means "spouse" as defined in an lnsurance Conlract for purposes of coverage under that Contract only
or the "spouse," as defined under Federal law, of a Participant, unless legally separated by courl decree.

ARTICLE II
PARTICIPATION

2.'t ELtctBtLtw

- Any Eligible Employee shall be eligible to participate hereunder as ofthe date he satisfies the eligibility conditions for the
Employeds group medical plan, the provisions of which are specifically incorporated herein by reference. Howerer, any Eligible
Employee who was a Participant in the Plan on the effective date ofihis amendment shall continue to be eligible to particip;te in the
Plan.

2.2 EFFECTIVE DATE OF PARTICIPATIOI{

An Eligible Employee shall become a Participant effeclive as oflhe date on which he satisfies the requirements of Section
2.1.

2,3 APPLICATION TO PARTICIPATE

. . An Employee who is eligible to participate in this Plan shall, during the applicable Eleclion Period, complete an application to
participate in a manner set forth by the Administrator. The eleclion shall be inevocable until the end ofthe applicable Plan Vear unless
the Pariicipant is entitled to change his Benefit elections pursuant io Section 5.4 hereol



An Eligible Employee shall also be required to complete a Salary Redirection Agreement during the Election Period for the
Plan Year during which he wishes to particapate in this Plan. Any such Salary Redirection Agreement shall be effective for the first pay
period beginning on or after the Employee's effeclive date of participation pursuant to Section 2.2.

NoMthstanding the foregoing, an Employee who is eligible to participate in this Plan and who is covered by the Employe/s
insured Benelits under this Plan shall automatically become a Participant to the extent of the Premiums for such insurance unless the
Employee elecls, during the Eleclion Period, not to participate in the Plan.

2,1 TERMINATION OF PARTICIPATION

A Participant shall no longer participate in this Plan upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

(a) Termination of employment. The Participant's terminaUon of employment, subject to the provasions of
Seclion 2.5:

(b) Death. The Participant's death, sub,ecl to the provisions of Seclion 2.6; or

(c) Termination of the plan. The termination o, this Plan, subject to the provisions of Section 10.2.

2.5 TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

lf a Participant's employment with the Employer is terminated for any reason other than death, his participation in the Benefit
Options provided under Section 4.1 shall be govemed in accordance with the following;

(a) lnsurance Ben€fit With regard to Benelits which are insured, the Participant's participation in the Plan
shall cease, subject to the Participant's nght to contanue coverage under any lnsurance Contract for whach premiums have
already been paid.

(b) Oependent Care FSA. With regard to the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account, the Participant's
participation in the Plan shall cease and no further Salary Redireclion contributions shall be made. However, such
Participant may submit claims for employment related Oef,endent Care Expense reambursemenls ,or claims incurred up to
the date ot termination and submitted within 0 days after termination, based on the level ofthe Participant's Dependent Care
Flexible Spending Account as of the date of terminalion.

(c) COBRA applicability. Wth regard to the Health Flexible Spending Account, the Participant may submit
claims for expenses that were incurred during the portion of the Plan Year before the end of the period for which payments
lo the Health Flexible Spending Account have already been made. Thereafter, the health benefits under thas Plan including
the Health Flexible Spending Acrount shall be applied and administered consislent with such further rights a Participant and
his Dependents may be entitled to pursuant to Code Seclion 49808 and Section 1 1.14 of the Plan.

2.6 DEATH

lf a Participant dies, his participation in the Plan shall cease. However, such Participant's spouse or Dependents may submit
claims for expenses or benefits for the remainder of the Plan Year or until the Cafeteria Plan Beneflt Dollars allocated to each specilic
benef( are exhausted. ln no evenl may reambursemenls be paid lo someone who is not a spouse or Dependent. lfthe Plan is subject
to the provisions of Code Seclion 49808, then those provisions and related regulations shall apply for purposes of the Health Flexible
Spending Account.

ARTICLE NI

CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PLAN

3.I E]IIPLOYER CONTRIBUTION

The Employer shall make available to each Participant an Employer Contribution to be used for any Benefit under the Plan
in an amount to be determined by the Employer prior to the beginning of each Plan Year. Each Participant's Ernployer Contribution
shall be converted to Cafeteria Plan Beneft Dollars and be available to purchase Benefts hereunder. The Employe/s Contribution
shall be made on a pro rata basis for each pay period of lhe Participant. lf a Parlicipanl fails to make any eleclion of Benefit Option,
there shall be no Employer Contribution (i.e., the Employer Contribution shall not be available in cash).

3.2 SALARY REDIRECTION

lf a Participant's Employer Contribution is not sufficient to cover the cost of Benefits or Premium Expenses he elects
pursuant lo Section 4.1, his Compensalion will be reduced in an amount equal lo the difference between the cost of Benefits he
elelted and the amount of Employer Contribution available lo him. Such reduction shall be his Salary Redireclion, which the Employer
will 

_use 
on his behalf, together with his Employer Contribution, to pay for the Benetits he elecled. Th! amount of such Salary

Redirection shal be specified in the Salary Redirection Agreement and shall be applicable for a Plan year. Notwiihslanding the
above, for new Participants, the Salary Redireclion Agreement shall only be appli;ble trom the first day of the pay period iollowing
the Employee's entry date up to and rncluding the last day of the Plan Year. These contributions shall be conve rted to Cafeteria pl;n
tsenel[ Dollars and allocated to the funds or accounts established under the Plan pursuant to the Participants, erleclions made under
Article lV.



Any Salary Redirection shall be determined prior to the beginning of a Plan Year (subjecl to initial elections pursuant to

Secfion 5.1)'and pri'or to ihe end of the Eleclion Period and shall be inevocable for such Plan Year. However, a Participant may

revofe agenefit efaion or a Salary Redireclion Agreement after the Plan Year has commenced and make a new eleclion with

respect to the remainder of the Pla; Year, if both thl revocataon and the new election are on account oI and consistent with a change

in staius and such other permitted events as determined under Article V of the Plan and consistent with the rules and regulations of

th; Department ol the Treasury. Salary Redireclion amounts shall be contributed on a pro rata basis for each pay peraod during the
plan year. All individual Salary Redirection Agreements are deemed to be part of this Plan and incorporated by reterence hereunder'

3.3 APPLICATION OF CONTRIBUTIONS

As soon as reasonably praclical after each payroll period, the Employer shall apply the Employer Contrabution and Salary

Redirection to provide the Benefiis elecled by the affected Parlicipants. Any contribution made or withheld for the Health Flexible

S;en,ing Accdunt or Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account shall be crediled to such fund or aqcrunt. Amounts designated for

the parti;ipant,s Premium Expense Reimbursement Account shall likewise be credited to such account for the purpose of paying

Premium Expenses.

3.{ PERIOOICCONTRIBUTIONS

Notwithstanding the requirement provided above and in other Articles of this Plan that Salary Redirections be conkibuted to

the plan by the Employei on behalf of an Employee on a level and pro rata basis for each payroll period, the Employer and

Administrator may impiement a procedure in which Salary Redirec{ions are contributed throughout the Plan Year on a periodic basis

that is not pro rat; foi each payroll period. However, with regard to the Health Flexible Spending Account, the payment schedule for

the required contributions may not be based on the rate or amount of reimbursements during the Plan Year.

ARTICLE IV
BENEFITS

1.1 BENEFIT OPTIONS

Each Pariicipant may elect any one or more of the tollowing optional Benerits:

(1) Health Flexible Spending Account

(2) Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account

ln addition, each Participant shall have a sufficient portion ot his Employer Contributions and Salary Redireclions applied to

the following Benefits unless the Participant elecls not to receive such Benefits:

(3) Health lnsurance Benefit

1.2 HEALTH FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT BENEFIT

Each participant may elecl to participate in the Health Flexible Spending Account option, in which case Article Vl shall apply.

4.3 DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT BENEFIT

Each participant may elect to participate in lhe Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account option, in whish case Article Vll
shallapply.

1.1 HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFIT

(a) Coverage lor Participant and Dependents. Each Participant may elect to be covered under a health

lnsurance Conlracl for the Pariicipant, his or her Spouse, and his or her Dependents.

(b) Employer s€lects cont acts. The Employer may select suitable health lnsurance Contracls for use in

providing ihis health insurrnce benefit, which policies will provide unitorm benefits for all Pariicipants electing this Benefit

(c) Contract incorporated by refer€nce. The rights and conditions with respect to the benefits payable

trom such heallh lnsurance Contracl shall be determined therefrom, and such lnsurance Conlrac{ shall be incorporated

herein by reference-

4.5 NONDISCRIMINATIONREOUIRE ENTS

(a) lnGnt to bc nondEcriminatory. lt is the intent oI this Plan to provide benefits to a classification of
employees which the Secretary of the Treasury finds not to be discriminatory in favor ofthe group in whose lavor
discrimination may not occur under Code Seclion 125.

(b) 25% concentmtion test lt is the intent of this Plan not to provide qualified benefits as derined under
Code Seclion 125 to Key Employees in amounts that exceed 25% of the aggregate of such Benefits provided for all Eligible
Employees under the Plan. For purposes of the preceding sentence, qualified benelits shall not include benetits which
(without regard to this paragraph) are includible in gross income.



(c) Adiustment to avoid test failure. lf the Administrator deems it nec€ssary to avoid discrimination or
possibb t;xation to K;y Employees or a group of employees in whose favor dascrimination may not occur in violation of
iode Seciion 125, it may, but shall not be required to, reduce contributions or non-taxable Benefits in order to assure

compliance with this Seclion. Any act taken by the Administrator under this Seclion shall be carried out in a uniform and

nondiscriminatory manner. lf the Administrator decides to reduce contributions or non-taxable Benefits, it shall be done in

the foltowing manner. First, the non-taxable Benefits of the afiesled Participanl (either an employee who is highly

compensatJd or a Key Employee, whichever is applicable) who has the highest amount of non-taxable Benefits for the Plan
yea; shall have his nontaxabie Benefits reduced until the discnmination tests set forth in this Section are satisfied or until

the amount of his non-taxable Benefits equals the non-taxable Benefits of the affecled Participant who has the second

highest amount of non-taxable Benefits. This process shall continue until the nondiscrimanation tests set forih in this Section

are satistied. With respecl to any affecled Parlicipant who has had Benefits reduced pursuant to this Sectaon, the reduclaon

shall be made proportionately among Health Flexible Spending Account Benefits and Dependent Care Flexible Spending

Account Benefits, and once all these Benefits are expended, proportionately among insured Benelits. Contributions which

are not utilized to provide Benefts to any Participant by virtue of any administrative act under this paragraph shall be

forfeited and deposited into the benefit plan surplus.

ARTICLE V
PARTICIPANT ELECTIONS

5.I INITIAL ELECTIONS

An Employee who meets the eligibility requirements of Section 2 1 on the flrst day of, or during, a Plan Year may elecl to
participate in this Plan for all or the remainder of such Plan Year, provided he elects lo do so on or before his effective date of
participation pursuant to Seclion 2.2.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Employee who is eligible lo particrpate in this Plan and who is covered by the Employe/s
insured benetits under this Plan shill automatically become a Participant to the extent of the Premiums for such insurance unless the

Employee elecls, during the Election Period, not to partiqpate in the Plan.

5.2 SUBSEQUENT ANNUAL ELECTIONS

During the Eleclion Period prior to each subsequeni Plan Year, each Participant shall be given the opportunity to elecl, on

an eleclion of benefits form to be provided by the Administrator, which spending account Benefit options he wishes lo selecl. Any

such eleclion shall be effeclive for any Benefit expenses incuned during the Plan Year which icllows the end of the Eleclion Period.

With regard to subsequent annual elections, the following options shall apply.

(a) A Participant or Employee who failed to initially elecl to participate may elecl different or new Benefits

under the Plan during the Election Period;

(b) A Participant may terminate his participation in the Plan by notifying the Administrator in wriiing during

the Eleclion Period that he does not want to parlicipate an the Plan for the next Plan Year;

(c) An Employee who elects not to participate for the Plan Year following the Election Period will have to waii

until the next Eleclion Period before again elecling to participate in the Plan, except as provided for in Section 5.4.

5.3 FAILURE TO ELECT

With regard to Benefits available under the Plan for which no Premium Expenses apply, any Participant who fails to

complele a new benelit eleclion form pursuant to Seclion 5.2 by lhe end of the applicable Election Period shall be deemed to have

elected not to participate in the Plan for the upcoming Plan Year. No turther Salary Redirections shall therefore be aulhorized or made

for the subsequent Plan Year for such Benerits.

With regard to Benefits available under the Plan for which Premium Expenses apply, any Participant who fails to complete a

new benefit eleclion form pursuant to Seclion 5.2 by the end of the applicable Election Period shall b€ deemed to have made the
same Benefit eleclions as are then in effect for the current Plan Year. The Participant shall also be deemed lo have elecled Salary

Redireclion in an amount necessary to purchase such Benellt options.

5.4 CHAI{GE IN STATUS

(a) Change in status dofined. Any Partacrpant may change a Benefit eleclion after the Plan Year (to which

such eleciion relates) has commenced and make new eleclions with respecl to the remainder of such Plan Year if, under the

tiacls and ciroJmstances, the changes are necessilated by and are consistent with a change in status which is acceptable under

rules and regulations adopted by the Department ofthe Treasury, the provisions of which are incorporated by reference.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, iI the rules and regulations conflic1, then such rules and regulations shall

control.

ln general, a change in elec,tion is not consistent ifthe change in stalus is the Participant's divorce, annulment or legal

separation from a Spouse, the death of a Spouse or Dependent, or a Dependent ceasing to satisty the eligibility requirements

for coverage, and the Participants eleclion under the Plan is to cancel accident or health insurance coverage for any individual

other thanlhe one involved in such event. ln addition, if the Participant, Spouse or Dependent gains or loses eligibility for



coverage, ihen a Participant's election under the Plan to cease or decrease coverage lor that andividual under the Plan

correstonds with that cirange in status only if coverage for that individual becomes applicable or is increased under the lamily

memb€r plan.

Regardless ofthe consistency requiement, ifthe individual, the individual's Spouse, or Dependent becomes eligible

for continuation coverage under the Employe/s group health plan as provided in Code Seciion 49808 or any similar state law,

then the individual may elec,t to increase payments under this Plan in order to pay for the continuation coverage. Hou€ver, this
does not apply for COBRA eligibility due to divorce, annulment or legal separation.

Any new eleclion shall be effeclive at such time as the Administrator shall prescribe, but not earjier than the first pay

period beginning after the election form is completed and returned to the Admanistrator. For the purposes ofthis subseclion, a

change in status shall only include the following events or other events permitted by Treasury regulations:

(1) Legal Marital Status: events that change a Participant's legal marital status, including marriage, divorce,
death of a Spouse, legal separation or annulment,

\2) Number of Dependents: Events that change a Participant's number of Dependents including birth,

adoption, placement icr adoption, or death of a Dependent;

(3) Employment Status: Any of the follo,ving events that change the employment status of the Participanl,

Spouse, or Oependent termination or commencement of employment, a strike or lockout, commencement or retum

from an unpaid leave of absence, or a change in worksite. ln addition, ifthe eligibility conditions ofthis Plan or other
employee benefit plan ofthe Employer of the Participant, Spouse, or Dependent depend on lhe employment status of
that individual and there is a change in that individual's employment status with the consequence that the individual

becomes (or ceases to be) eligible under the plan, then that change constitutes a change in employment under this

subseclion;

(4) Dependent satisfies or ceases to satisfy the elagibility requirements: An event that causes the Participanl's

Dependent to satisfy or cease to satisly the requirements for coverage due to attainmenl of age, student status, or
any similar circumstance, and

(5) Residency: A change in the place of residence ofthe Participant, Spouse or Dependent, that would lead to
a change in status (such as a loss of HMO coverage).

For the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Accounl. a Dependent becoming or ceasing to be a "Oualifying

Dependent'as defined under Code Sec{ion 21(b) shall also qualify as a change in slatus.

Noh,t i$standing anything in this Sedion to the contrary, the gain of eligibility or change in eligibility of a child, as

allowed under Code Sections 105(b) and 106, and IRS Notice 20'1G38, shall qualify as a change in status.

(b) Special enrollment rights. Notwithstanding subsection (a), the Particapants may change an elec'tion for
accident or health coverage dunng a Plan Year and make a new election that conesponds with the special enrollment rights
provided in Code Section 9801(0, including those authorized under the provisions of the Children's Health lnsurance
program Reauthorization Aci of 20Og (SCHIP); provaded that such Participant meets the sixty (60) day notice requirement
imposed by Code Sec,tion 98Ol(f) (or such longer period as may be permitted by the Plan and communicated to
Participants). Such change shalltake place on a prospeclive basis, unless otherwise required by Code Seclion 9801(0 to be

retroaclive.

(c) Qualitied ttedical Support Order. Notuithstanding subseclion (a), in the event of a judgment, decree,

or order (including approval of a property seitlement) ("orde/') resulting trom a divorce, legal separation, annulment, or
change in tegal custody which requires accidenl or health coverage for a Participant's child (including a foster child who is a

Dependent of the Parlicipant):

(1 ) The Plan may change an eledion to provide coverage for the child if the order requires coverage under the
Parlicipants plan; or

(21 The Participant shall be permitled to change an eleclion to cancel coverage for the child if the order
requires the former Spouse to provide coverage for such child, under that individual's plan and such coverage is

aclually provided.

(d) Modlcare or uedicald. Notwithstanding subseclion (a), a Participant may change eleclions to cancel
accident or health coverage ror the Participant or the Parlicipant's Spouse or Dependent ifthe Participant or lhe Particjpant's
Spouse or DepeMent is enrolled in the accident or health coverage ofthe Employer and becomes entitled to coverage (i.e.,

enrolled) under Part A or Part B of the Trtle Xvlll of the Social Security Acl (Medicare) or Tjtle XIX of the Social Seotrity Acl
(Medicaid), other than @verage consisting solely of benelits under Seclion 1928 of the Social Security Act (lhe program for
distribution of pediairic vaccines). lf the Participant orthe Particrpant's Spouse or Dependent who has been entitled to Medicaid
or Medicare coverage loses eligibility, that individual may prospeclively elecl coverage under the Plan if a benefit package

option under the Plan provides similar coverage.

(e) Cost incr€aae or decrease. lf the cost of a Benefit provided under the Plan increases or decreases
during a Plan Year, then the Plan shall automatically increase or decrease, as the case may be. the Salary Redirections of
all affected Participants for such Benefit. Alternatively, if the cost of a benefit package option increases significantly, the



Administrator shall permit ihe affected Participants to either make conesponding changes in their paymenls or revoke their

eleclions and, in lieu thereof, receive on a prospeclive basis coverage under anolher benelit package option with similar
coverage, or drop coverage prospeclively if there is no beneit package option with similar coverage.

A cost increase or decrease refers to ah increase or degease in the amount of elective contributions under the
Plan, whether resulting from an action taken by the Participants or an ac,tion taken by the Employer.

(f) Lo3s of coverage. lf the coverage under a Benefit is signiticantly curtailed or ceases during a Plan Year,

affecled Participants may revoke their eleclaons of such Benefit and. in lieu thereof, elect to receive on a prospective basis
coverage under another plan with similar coverage, or drop coverage prospectively il no similar coverage is offered

(S) Addition of a new benefit lf, durjng the period of coverage, a new benefit package oplion or oiher
coverage option is added, an existing benetit package option is signiflcantly improved, or an existing benefit package option

or other coverage option is eliminated, then the affected Participants may elect the newly-added option, or elecl another
option it an option has been eliminated prospec;tively and make corresponding election changes with respect to other benefit
package options providing similar coverage. ln addition, those Eligible Employees who are not participating in the Plan may
opt to become Participants and elect the new or newly improved benefit package option.

(h) Loss of coverage under certain oth€r plans. A Participant may make a prospective elec,tion change to
add group health coverage for the Participant, the Parliopant's Spouse or Dependent if such indavidual loses group health

coverage sponsored by a govemmental or educational institution, including a state children's health insurance program

under the Social Security Act, the lndian Health Service or a health program offered by an lndian tribal government, a state
health benetits risk pool, or a foreign govemment group health plan.

(i) Change of coycrage due to change under cerlain other plans. A Participant may make a prospective

elec,tion change that is on account of and coresponds wilh a change made under the plan of a Spouse's, tormer Spouse's
or Dependent's employer if ('1) the cateteria plan or other benefits plan of the Spouse's, former Spouse's or Dependent's

employer permits its parlicipants to make a change; or (2) the cateteraa plan permits participants to make an election for a

period of coverage that is different from the period of coverage under the cafeteria plan of a Spouse's, former Spouse's or
Oependent's employer.

0) Change in dependent care provlder. A Partacipant may make a prospective election change that is on

account of and conesponds with a change by the Participanl in the dependent care provider. The availability ot dependenl
care services from a new childc€re provider is similar to a new benelit package option becoming available. A cost change is
allowable in the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account only if the cost change is imposed by a dependent care provider
who is not related to the Participant, as defined in Code Section 152(axl ) through (8).

(k) Heslti FSA cannot change due to insurance change. A Participant shall not be permitted io change
an eleclion to the Health Flexible Spending Account as a result of a cost or coverage change under any health insuranc€

benefits.

ARTICLE VI
HEALTH FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT

6.I ESTABLISHMENT OF PLAN

This Health Flexible Spending Account is intended to qualify as a medical reimbursement plan under Code Seclion 105 and
shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with such Code Sec,tion and the Treasury regulations thereunder. Participants who elect to
participate in this Health Flexible Spending Account may submat claims for the reimbursement of Medical Expenses. All amounts
reimbursed shall be periodically paid from amounts allocated to the Health Flexible Spending Account. Periodic payments reimbursing
Participants from the Health Flexible Spending Account shall in no evenl occur less trequently than monthly.

6.2 DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Article and the Cafeteria Plan, the lerms below have the following meaning:

(a) "Heaith Flerible Spending Account" means the account established for Participants pursuant to this
Plan to which part oftheir Cafeteria Plan Benefit Oollars may be allocated and from whach allallowable Medical Expenses
incuned by a Participant, his or her Spouse and his or her Dependents may be reimbursed.

(b) "Highly Compensated Participant" means, forlhe purposes of this Article and determining
discrimination under Code Seclion 105(h), a participant who is:

(1) one ofthe 5 highesi paid officers;

12) a shareholder who owns (or is considered to own applying the rules of Code Section 318) more than 10
percent in value ot the stock of the Employer; or

(3) among the highest paid 25 percent of all Employees (other than exclusions permitted by Code Section
105(hX3XB) for those individuals who are not Parlicipants).



(c) "Medical Erpenses" means any expense for medical care within the meaning of the term "medical care"
as detined in Code Section 213(d) and the rulings and Treasury regulations thereunder, and not otherwise used by the
Participant as a deduction in determining has tax liability under the Code. "Medical Expenses" can be incurred by the

Participant, his or her Spouse and his or her Dependenls. "lncuned" means, wilh regard to Medical Expenses, when the
Participant is provided with the medical care thal gives rise to the Medical Expense and not when the Participant is formally
billed or charged ,or, or pays for, the medical care.

A Participant may not be reimbursed for the cost of any medicine or drug that is not "prescribed" within the
meaning of Code Section 106(0 or is not insulin.

A Participant may not be reimbursed for the cost of other health coverage such as premiums paid under plans

maintained by the employer of the Participant's Spouse or individual policies maintained by the Participant or his Spouse or
Dependent.

A Participant may not be reimbursed for "qualified long{erm care services" as defined in Code Section 77028(c).

(d) The definitions ofArticle I are hereby incorporated by reference to the extent necessary to interpret and
apply the provisions of this Health Flexable Spending Account

6.3 FORFEITURES

The amount in the Health Flexible Spending Account as ol the end of any Plan Year (and after the processing of all claims
for such Plan Year pursuant to Section 6.7 hereof) shall be forfeited and credited to the benefit plan surplus. ln such event, the
Participant shall have no further claim to such amount for any reason, subject to Section 8.2.

6.4 LIMITATION ON ALLOCATIONS

(a) Notv!,ithstanding any provision contained in this Health Flexible Spending Account to the contrary, the
maximum amount that may be allocated to the Health Flexible Spending Account by a Participant in or on account ol any
Plan Year is $2500.00.

(b) Cost of Living AdrustmenL ln no event shall the amount of salary redireclions on the Health Flexible
Spending Account exceed $2,500 as adjusted by law. Such amount shall be adjusted for increases in the cosl-of-living in
accordance with Code Seclion 125(iX2). The casl-orJiving adjustment in effecl for a calendar year applies to any Plan Year
beginning with or wiihin such calendar year. The dollar increase in effecl on January 1 of any calendar year shall be

effective for the Plan Year beginning with or within such crlendar year. For any short Plan Year, the limit shall be an amount
equal to the limit for the calendar year in which the Plan Year begins multiplied by the ratio obtained by dividing the number
of full months in the short Plan Year by twelve (12).

(c) Participation in Other Plans. All employers that are treated as a single employer under Code Sections
414(b), (c), or (m), relating io controlled groups and affiliated service groups, are treated as a single employer for purposes

of the $2,500 limit. lf a Participant participates in multiple cafeteria plans offering health flexible spending accounts
mainlained by members of a controlled group or affiliated service group, the Participant's total Health Flexible Spending
Account contributions under all of the cafeteria plans are limited to $2,500 (as adjusted). However, a Participant employed
by two or more employers that are not members o, the same controlled group may elect up to $2,500 (as adjusted) under

each Employe/s Health Flexible Spending Account.

6.5 NONDISCRIMINATIONREOUIREMENTS

(a) lntent to be nondiscriminatory. lt is the antent of this Health Flexible Spending Account not to
discriminate in violation of the Code and the Treasury regulations thereunder.

(b) Adjustment to avoid test failure. lf the Administrator deems it necessary to avoid discrimination under
this Health Flexible Spending Account, it may, but shall not be required to, reject any elections or reduce contributions or
Benefits in order lo assure complianc€ with this Seclion. Any acl taken by the Adminislrator under this Seclion shall be
carried out in a uniform and nondiscriminatory manner. lf the Administrator decides to reject any elections or reduce

contributions or Benefits, it shall be done in the following manner. First, the Benefits designated for the Health Flexible
Spending Accounl by the member of the group in whose favor discrimination may not occur pursuant to Code Seclion 105

that elecled to contribute the highest amount to the fund for the Plan Year shall be reduced until the nondiscrimination tests
set forth in this Seclion or the Code are satislled, or until the amount designaied for the fund equals the amount designated
for the fund by the next member ofthe group in whose favor discdmination may not occur pursuant to Code Section 105

who has elected the second highest contribution to the Health Flexible Spending Account for the Plan Year. This process

shall continue until the nondiscrimination tests set to(h in this Seclion or the Code are satisfied. Contributions which are not
utilized to provide BenefG to any Particapant by virtue of any administrative act under this paragraph shall be forfeited and

credited to the benelit plan surplus.

6.6 COORDINATION WITH CAFETERIA PLAN

All Participants under the Cafeteria Plan are eligible to receive Benefits under this Health Flexible Spending Account. The
enrollment under the Cafeteria Plan shall constitute enrollment under this Heallh Flexible Spending Account. ln addition, other matters
concerning contributions, elections and the like shall be governed by the general provisions of the Cafeteria Plan.



6.7 HEALTH FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT CLAIMS

(a) Expenses must be incurred during Plan Year. All Medical Expenses incurred by a Parlicipant, his or
her Spouse and his or her Dep€ndents during the Plan Year shall be reimbursed during the Plan Year subiect to Section
2.5, even though the submission of such a claim occurs after his participation hereunder ceasest but provided thal lhe
Medical Expenses were incurred during the applicable Plan Year. Medical Expenses are treated as havang been incurred

when the Participant is provided with the medical care that gives rise to lhe medical expenses, not when the Participant is

formally billed or charged for, or pays for the medical c€re.

(b) Reimbursement available throughout Plan Year. The Administrator shall direct the reimbursement to
each eligible Participant for all allowable Medical Expenses, up to a maximum of the amount designated by the Participant
for the Health Ftexable Spending Account for the Plan Year Reimbursements shall be made available to the Participanl
throughout the year without regard to the level of Cafeteria Plan Benefit Dollars which have been allocated to the fund at any
given point in time. Furthermore, a Participant shall be enlitled to reimbursements only for amounts in excess of any
payments or other reimbursements under any health care plan covering the Participant and/or his Spouse or Dependents.

(c) Payments. Reimbursement payments under this Plan shall be made direc'tly to the Participant. However,

in the Administrato/s discretion, payments may be made directly to the service provider. The application for payment or
reimbursement shall be made to the Admanistrator on an acceptable form within a reasonable time of incurring the debt or
paying lor the service. The application shall include a written statement from an independent third party stating that lhe
Medical Expense has been incurred and the amount of such expense. Furthermore, the Participant shall provide a writlen
statement that the Medical Expense has nol been reambursed or is not reimbursable under any olher health plan coverage
and, if reimbursed from the Health Flexable Spending Accpunt, such amount will not be claimed as a tax deduc{ion. The
Adminastrator shall retain a file of all such applications.

(d) Claims for rslmbursemenl Claims torthe reimbursement of Medical Expenses incurred in any Plan

Year shall be paid as soon after a claim has been filed as is administratively praclicable, provided however that if a
participant fails to submit a claim within 90 days afrer the end of the Plan Year, those Medical Expense claims shall not be

considered for reimbursemeni by the Administrator. However, iI a Participant terminates employment during the Plan Year,

claims tor the reimbursement of Medical Expenses must be submitted within 0 days after termination of employment.

ARTICLE VII
DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDII{G ACCOUNT

7.1 ESTABLISHMENT OF ACCOUNT

This Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account is inlended to qualify as a program under Code Section 129 and shall be
interpreted in a manner consistent with such Code Section. Participanls who elecl to participate in this program may submit claims for
the reimbursement of Employment-Related Oependent Care Expenses. All amounts reambursed shall be paid from amounts allocated
to the Participant's Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account.

7.2 DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Article and the Cafeteria Plan lhe terms below shall have the following meaning:

(a) "Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account" means lhe acc,ount established for a Participant
pursuant to this Article to which part of his Cafeteria Plan Benefit Dollars may be allocated and trom which
Employment-Related Dependent Care Expenses of lhe Participant may be reimbursed for the care of the Oualifying
Dependents ot ParticiPants.

(b) "Eamed lncome" means earned income as defined under Code Seciion 32(cX2), but excluding such
amounts paid or incuned by the Employer for dependent care assistanc€ to the Participant.

(c) "Employment-Relaled Dependent Care Expen3es" means the amounts paid for expenses of a
Participant for those services which if paid by the Participant would be considered employment related expenses under
Code Sec{ion 21(bX2). Generally, they shall include expenses tor household services and for the care of a Qualifying
Dependent, to the extent that such expenses are incurred to enable lhe Parlicipant to be gainfully employed for any period

for which there are one or more Oualifying Dependents with respeci to such Participant. Employment-Related Dependent
Care Expenses are treated as having been incuned when the Participant's Oualifying Dependents are provided with the
dependent care that gives rise to the Employment-Relaled Oependent Care Expenses, not when lhe Participant is formally
billed or charged for, or pays lor the dependent care. The determinaiion of whether an amount qualifies as an

Employment-Related Dependent Care Expense shall be made subject to the following rules:

(1) lI such amounts are paid for expenses incuned outside the Participant's household, they shall constitute
Employment-Related Dependent Care Expenses only if incuned for a Qualifying Dependent as detined in Section
7.2(d)(1) (or deemed to be, as described in Seclion 7.2(dX'l) pursuant to Seclion 7.2(dX3)), or for a Oualifying
Dependent as defined in Section 7.2(dX2) (or deemed to be, as described in Sectaon 7.2(d)(2) pursuant to Section
7.2(dX3))who regulady spends at least 8 hours per day in the Participant's household;



12) lfthe expense is incurred outside the Participant's home at a facility that provides care for a fee,
payment, or grant for more than 6 individuals who do not regularly reside at the facility, the facil(y must comply
with all applicable state and local laws and regulations, including licensing requirements, if any; and

(3) Employment-Related Dependent Care Expenses of a Participant shall not include amounts paid or
ancurred to a child of such Particrpant who is under the age ot 19 or to an individual who is a Dependent of such
Participant or such Participant's Spouse.

(d) "Qualifying Dependent" means, for Dependent Care Flexible Spending Accounl purposes,

( 1 ) a Participant's Dependent (as derined in Code Section 152(aX 1 )) who has not attained age 13;

(2) a Oependent or the Spouse of a Participant who is physically or mentally incapable of caring tor himself
or herself and has the same principal place of abode as the Participant for more than one-half of such taxable
yeari or

(3) a child that is deemed to be a Qualifying Dependent described in paragraph (1) or (2) above, whichever
is appropriate, pursuant to Code Section 21(e)(5).

(e) The definitions of Article I are hereby incorporated by referenc€ to the extent necessary to interpret and
apply the provisions of this Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account.

7.3 DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNTS

The Administrator shall establish a Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account for each Participant who elects to apply
Cafeteria Plan Benefil Dollars to Oependent Care Flexible Spending Account benefits.

7.1 INCREASES IN DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNTS

A Participant's Oependent Care Flexible Spending Account shall be increased each pay period by the portion of Caleteria
Plan Benefit Dollars thai he has elecled to apply toward his Dependenl Care Flexible Spending Account pursuant to elections made
under Article V hereof.

7.5 DECREASES IN DEPENDENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENOING ACCOUiITS

A Participant's Dependent Care Flexible Spending Ac,count shall be reduced by the amount of any Ernployment-Related
Dependent Care Expense reimbursements paid or incuned on behalf of a Participant pursuant to Section 7.12 hereof.

7.6 ALLOWABLE OEPENOENT CARE REIMBURSEMENT

Subjecl to limitalions contained in Seclion 7 9 of this Program, and to the e)dent of the amount contained in the Partacipant's
Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account, a Participant who incurs EmploymentRelated Dependent Care Expenses shall be
entitled to receive from the Employer ,ull reimbursement tor the enlire amount of such expenses incurred during the Plan Year or
portion lhereof during which he is a Participant.

7.7 ANI,IUAL STATEI ENT OF BENEFITS

On or before January 31st of each calendar year, the Employer shall furnish to each Employee who was a Participant and
received benefits under Seclion 7.6 during the prior calendar year, a statement of all such benefils paad to or on behalf of such
Participant during the prior calendar year. This statement is set brth on lhe Participanl's Form W-2.

7,4 FORFEITURES

The amouni in a Parlicipant's Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account as of the end of any Plan Year (and after the
processing of all claims for such Plan Year pursuant to Seclion 7.12 hereof) shall be forfeited and credited to the benefit plan surplus.
ln such event. the Participant shall have no furlher claam to such amount for any reason.

7.9 LIIIITATION ON PAYMENTS

(a) Code limit!. Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Article to the contrary, amounts paid from a
Parlicipant's Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account in or on account of any taxable year of the Parlicipant shall not
exceed the lesser of the Eamed lncome limitation described in Code Seclion 129(b) or $5,000 ($2,5OO if a separate tax
retum is tiled by a Parlacipant who is married as determined under the rules of paragraphs (3) and (4) of Code Seclion
21(e)).

7.10 NONDISCRIT'INATIONREQUIREIIENTS

(a) lntent to be nondiscriminatory, lt is the intent ol this Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account that
contributions or benefits not dascriminate in favor of the group of employees in whose favor discrimination may not occur
under Code Seclion 129(d).

10



(b) 25% test for shareholders. lt is the intent of this Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account that not

more than 25 percent oI the amounts paid by the Employer for dependent care assastance during the Plan Year will be
provided for the class of individuals who are shareholders or owners (or their Spouses or Dependents), each of whom (on

any day of the Plan Year) owns more than 5 percent of the stock or of the capital or proflts interest in the Employer.

(c) Adjustment to avoid test tailure. lf the Administrator deems it necessary to avoid discrimination or
possible taxation to a group of employees in whose favor discrimination may not occur in violation of Code Section 129 it

may, but shall not be required to, rejecl any eleclions or reduce contributions or non-taxable benefits in order to assure

compliance with this Sec{ion. Any acl taken by the Administrator under this Section shall be carried out in a uniform and

nondiscriminatory manner. It the Adminislrator decides to reJect any elections or reduce contributions or Benefits, it shall be

done in the following manner. First, the Benefits designated for the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account by the

affected Participant that elected to contribute the highest amount to such account for the Plan Year shall be reduced until the

nondiscrimination tests set forth in this Seclion are satisfied, or until the amount designated for the account equals the

amount designated tor the account of the afiected Participant who has elecled the second highest cantribution io the

Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account tor the Plan Year. This process shall c,ontinue until the nondiscrimination tests

set forth in this Seclion are satisfied. Contributions which are not util,zed to provide Benefits to any Participant by virlue of
any administrative act under this paragraph shall be forfeated.

7.11 COORDINATION WITH CAFETERIA PLAN

All Participants under the Cafeteria Plan are eligible to receive Benefits under this Dependent Care Flexible Spending
Account. The enrollment and termination of participation under the Cateteria Plan shall constitute enrollment and termination of
participation under this Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account. ln addition, other matters concerning contributions, eleclions and

the like shall be governed by the general provisions of the Cafeteria Plan.

7.12 DEPENOENT CARE FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT CLAIMS

The Administrator shall direcl the payment of all such Oependent Care claims to the Participant upon the presentation to lhe
Adminislrator of documentation of such expenses in a ,orm satisfaclory to the Admanistrator. However, in the Administrator's
discretion, payments may be made direclly to lhe service provider. ln its discretion in administering the Plan, the Administrator may

utilize forms and require documentation of costs as may be necessary to verify the claims submitted. At a minamum, the form shall
include a statement from an independent third party as proof that the e)eense has been incurred during the Plan Year and the
amount of such expense. ln addition, the Administrator may require that each Parlacipant \lvho desires to receive reimbursement under
this Program for Employment-Related Dependent Care Expenses submit a statement which may contain some or all ot the following
information:

(a) The Dependent or Oependents for whom the serYices were performed;

(b) The nature ofthe services performed torthe Participant. the cost ofwhich he wishes reimbursemenl;

(c) The relationship, if any, of the person performing the services to the Participant;

(d) lfthe seNices are being performed by a child ofthe Participant, the age ofthe child;

(e) A statement as to where the services were Frtormed;

(f) lf any of the services were perrormed outside the home, a statement as to whethe r the Dependent for
whom such services were performed spends at least 8 hours a day in the Parlicipant's household,

(S) lfthe services were being performed in a day care center, a statement:

(1) thal the day care center complies with all applicable laws and regulations of the state of residence,

12) that the day care c€nter provides care tor more than 6 individuals (other than individuals residing at the
center), and

(3) ofthe amount ot fee paid to the provider.

(h) lflhe Parlicipant is manied, a siatement containing the following:

(1) the Spouse's salary or wages if he or she is employed, or

(2) ifthe Participant's Spouse is not employed, ihat

(i) he or she is incapacitated, or

(ii) he or she is a full-time student attending an educational inslitulion and the months during the year which
he or she attended such institution.

(i) Clrims for rcimbuEement l, a Participant lails to submit a claim within 90 days after the end of the
Plan Year, those claims shall not be crnsidered for reimbursement by the Administrator. However, if a Participant terminates

11



employment during the Plan Year, claims for reimbursement must be submitted within 0 days after termination of
employment.

ARTICLE VIII
BENEFITS AND RIGHTS

8.1 CLAI]U FOR BENEFITS

(a) lnsurance claims. Any claim for Benefits underwritten by lnsurance Contracl(s) shall be made to the
lnsurer. lf the lnsurer denies any claim, the Participant or beneficiary shall follow the lnsure/s claims review procedure

(b) Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account or Health Flexible Spending Account claims. Any
claim for Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account or Health Flexible Spending Account Benefits shall be made to lhe
Administrator. For the Health Flexible Spendang Account, if a Participant fails to submit a claim within 90 days after the end

of the Plan Year, those claims shall not be considered for reimbursement by the Administrator. However, if a Participant
terminates employment dunng the Plan Year, claims for the reimbursement of Medical Expenses must be submitted within 0
days after terminataon ol employment. For the Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account, if a Participant Iails to submit a

claim within 90 days after the end of the Plan Year, those claims shall not be considered for reimbursement by the
Administrator. However, if a Partcipant terminates employmenl during the Plan Year, claims for reimbursement must be
submitted withan 0 days after termination of employment. lf the Administrator denies a claim, the Administrator may provide

notice to the Participant or beneflciary, in writing, within 90 days after the claim is filed unless special circumstances requare

an extension of time for processing the claim. The notice of a denaal of a claim shall be written in a manner calculated to be
understood by the claimant and shall set forth:

(1) specific relerences to the pertinent PIan provisions on whach the denial as based,

\2) a desqiption of any additional material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim and
an explanation as to why such information is necessary: and

(3) an explanation ofthe Plan's claim procedure.

(c) Appeal. Within 60 days after receipt ofthe above material, the claimant shall have a reasonable
opportunity to appeal the claim denial to the Administrator for a full and fair review. The claimant or his duly authorized
represenlalive may:

(1) request a review upon wntten notice to the Administratori

(2) review pertinent documents; and

(3) submit issues and comments in writing.

(d) Revievv of appeal, A decision on the review by the Administrator will be made not later than 60 days
after receipt of a request for review, unless specaal circumstances require an extension of time for pro@ssing (such as the
need to hold a hearing), in which event a decision should be rendered as soon as possible, but in no event later than 120

days after such rec€ipt. The decision of the Administrator shall be written and shall include specific reasons for the decision,
written in a manner calculaled to be understood by the claimant, with specific references to the perlinent Plan provisions on
which the decision is based.

(e) Forfeitur€3, Any balanc€ remaining in the Participant's Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account or
Health Flexible Spending Account as of the end ofthe time for claims reimbursement for each Plan Year shall be forfeited
and deposited in the benefit plan surplus ot the Employer pursuant to Seclion 6.3 or Section 7.8, whichever is applicable,
unless the Participant had made a claim for such Plan Year, in writing, which has been denied or is pendingi in which event
the amount oflhe claim shall be held in his account until the claim appeal procedures set forth above have been satisfied or
the claim is paid. lf any such claim is denied on appeal, the amount held beyond the end of the Plan Year shall be forfeated
and credited to the benefit plan surplus.

8.2 APPLICATION OF BENEFIT PLAN SURPLUS

Any forfeited amounts credited to the benefit plan surplus by virtue ofthe failure of a Participanl to incur a qualified expense
or seek reimbursement in a timely manner may, but need not be, separately accounted for after the close of the Plan Year (or after
such further time specified herein for the flling of claims) in which such forfeitures arose. ln no event shall such amounts be carried
over to reimburse a Participant for expenses incurred during a subsequent Plan Year for the same or any other Beneflt available
under the Plan, nor shall amounts forfeited by a particular Participant be made available to such Participant in any other form or
manner, except as permitted by Treasury regulations. Amounts in the benellt plan surplus shall be used to detray any administrative
costs and experience losses or used to provide additional benefits under the Plan.

12



ARTICLE IX
ADMINISTRATION

9.1 PLANADMINISTRATION

The Employer shall be the Administrator, unless the Employer elecls otherwise. The Employer may appoint any person,

including, but not limited to, the Employees ol the Employer, to perform the duties of the Administrator. Any person so appointed shall
signify acceptance by filing written acceptance with the Employer. Upon the resignation or removal of any individual performing the
dulies of the Administrator, the Employer may designate a successor.

lfthe Employer elects, the Employer shall appoint one or more Administrators. Any person, including, but not limited to, the
Employees of the Employer, shall be eligible to serve as an Adminastrator. Any person so appointed shall signify acceptance by fiftng

written acceptance with the Employer. An Administrator may resagn by delivering a written resignation to the Employer or be removed

by the Employer by delivery of written notice of removal, to take effect at a date specilled therein, or upon delivery to the Administrator
if no date is specified. The Employer shall be empowered to appoint and remove the Administrator from time to time as il deems
necessary for the proper administraiion ofthe Plan to ensure that the Plan is being operated Ior the exclusive benelit ofthe
Employees entitled to parlicipate in the Plan in accordance with the terms ofthe Plan and the Code.

The operation of the Plan shall be under the supervision of the Administrator. lt shall be a principal duty of the Administrator
to see that the Plan is canied out in accordance with its terms, and for the exclusive beneft of Employees enlilled to participate an the
Plan. The Administrator shall have full power and discrelion to administer the Plan in all of its details and determine all questions

arising in connec,tion with the administration. interpretation, and applic€tion of the Plan. The Administrator may establish procedures,

correct any defect, supply any information, or reconciles any inconsistency in such manner and to such extent as shall be deemed
necessary or advisable to carry out the purpose ot the Plan. The Administrator shall have all powers necessary or appropriate to
accamplish the Administrato/s duties under the Plan. The Administrator shall be charged with the duties of the general administration

of the Ptan as set forth under the Plan, including, but not limited to, in addition to all other poweB provided by this Plan:

(a) To make and enforce such procedures, rules and regulalions as the Administrator deems necessary or
proper for lhe efficient administration ofthe Plan;

(b) To interpret the provisions of the Plan, the Administrato/s interpretations thereof in good faith to be final
and conclusive on all persons claiming benefits by operation ot the Plan,

(c) To decide allquestions conceming the Plan and the eligibility ofany person to participate in the Plan and
to receive benefits provided by operation of the Plan;

(d) To rejecl eleclions or to limit contributions or Benefits tor certain highly compensated participants if it
deems such to be desirable in order to avoid discriminataon under the Plan in violation of applicable provisions of the Code;

(e) To provide Employees with a reasonable notification of their benefits available by operation of ihe Plan
and to assist any Participant regarding the Participant's rights, benefts or eleclaons under the Plan;

(0 To keep and maantain the Plan documents and all other records pertaining to and necessary for the
administration of the Plan:

(S) To review and settle all claims against the Plan, to approve reimbursement requests, and to authorize the
payment of benefits if the Administraior determines such shall be paid if the Administrator decides in its discretion that the
applicant is entitled to them. This authority specifically permits the Administrator to settle disputed claims for benefits and

any other disputed claims made against the Plan;

(h) To appoint such agents, counsel, accounianis, consullants, and other persons or entities as may be
required to assist in administering lhe Plan.

Any procedure, discretionary ac1, inlerpretation or construction taken by the Administrator shall be done in a
nondisq"iminatory manner based upon unitorm principles consistently applied and shall be consistent with the intent that the Plan shall
continue to comply with the terms of Code Seqtion 125 and the Treasury regulalions thereunder.

9.2 EXA]IIINAION OF RECORDS

The Administrator shall make available to each Participant, Eligible Employee and any other Employee ofthe Employer such
records as pertain to their interesi under the Plan for examination at reasonable limes during normal business hours.

9.3 PAYMENT OF EXPENSES

Any reasonable administrative expenses shall be paid by the Employer unless the Employer determines that administrative
costs shall be bome by the Participants under the Plan or by any Trust Fund which may be established hereunder. The Administrator
may impose reasonable conditions for payments, provided thal such conditions shall not discriminate in favor of highly compensated
employees.



9.,t IiISURANCE CONTROL CLAUSE

ln the event of a conflacl between the terms of this Plan and the terms of an lnsurance Contract of an independent third party

lnsurer whose producl is then being used in conjunclaon with this Plan, the terms of the lnsurance Contract shall control as to those
Participants receiving coverage under such lnsurance Contracl. For this purpose, the lnsurance Contracl shall control in definang the
persons eligible for insurance, the dates of their eligibility, the conditions which must be satisfred to become insured, if any, the
benefits Participants are entitled to and the circumslances under which insurance terminates.

9.5 INDEMNIFICATIONOFADTIINISTRATOR

The Employer agrees to indemnify and to defend to the fullest exlent permitted by law any Employee serving as the
Administrator or as a member of a committee designated as Administrator (including any Employee or former Employee who
previously served as Administrator or as a member ot such committee) against all liabalities, damages, costs and expenses (includang

attorney's tees and amounts paad in settlement of any claims approved by the Employer) occasioned by any act or omission to act in
connection with the Plan, if such act or omission is in good faith.

ARTICLE X
AiIENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF PLAN

10.1 AMENDMENT

The Employer, at any time or from time to time, may amend any or all of the provisions of the Plan without the consent of
any Employee or Participant. No amendment shall have the effect of modifying any benefit election of any Participant in effecl at the
time of such amendment, unless such amendment as made to comply with Federal, state or local laws, statutes or regulations.

10.2 TERMINATIOT{

The Employer reserves the right to terminate this Plan, in whole or in part, at any time. ln the event the Plan is terminated,
no further contribulions shall be made. Benefits under any lnsurance Contract shall be paid in accordance with the terms of the
lnsurance Contract.

No further additions shall be made lo the Heatth Flexible Spending Account or Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account,
but all payments from such fund shall continue lo be made according to the eleclions in effect until 90 days after lhe termination date
ofthe Plan. Any amounts remaining in any such fund or account as of the end of such period shall be forfeited and deposited in the
benefit plan surplus after the expiration ofthe filing period.

ARTICLE XI
IISCELLANEOUS

11.1 PLANINTERPRETATION

All provisions of this Plan shall be interpreted and applied in a uniform, nondiscriminalory manner. This Plan shall be read in
its entirety and not severed except as provided in Section '11.12.

11.2 GENDER AND NUMBER

Wherever any words are used herein in the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, they shall b€ construed as though they
were also used in another gender in all cases where they would so apply, and whenever any words are used herein in the singular or
plural form, they shall be construed as though they were also used in the other form in all cases where they would so apply.

11.3 WRITTENDOCU]IIENT

This Plan, in conjunclion with any separate written document which may be required by law, is intended to satisfy the written
Plan requirement of Code Seclion 125 and any Treasury regulations lhereunder relating to cafeteria plans.

11.1 EXCLUSIVE BENEFIT

This Plan shall be maintained for the exclusive benefit ofthe Employees who participate in the Plan.

1,I.5 PARTICIPANTSRIGHTS

This Plan shall not be deemed to constitute an employmenl contraci between the Employer and any Participant or to be a
consaderation or an inducemenl for the employment of any Participant or Employee. Nothing contained in this Plan shall be deemed to
give any Participant or Employee the right to be retained in the service of the Employer or to interfere with the right ol the Employer to
discharge any Parlicipant or Employee at any time regardless of the effect which such discharge shall have upon him as a Participant
of this Plan.

14



11.6 ACTION BY THE EMPLOYER

Whenever the Employer under the terms of the Plan is permitted or required to do or perform any acl or matler or thing, it
shall be done and performed by a person duly authorized by its legally constituted authoraty.

11.7 EMPLOYER'SPROTECTIVECLAUSES

(a) lnsurance purchase. Upon the failure of either the Participant or the Employer to obtain the insurance
c,ontemplated by this Plan (whether as a result of negligence, gross neglect or otherwise), the Participant's Beneflts shall be

limited to the insurance premium(s), if any, thal remained unpaad for the period in question and the aclual insurance
proceeds, if any, receaved by the Employer or the Participant as a resull of the Participant's ciaim.

(b) Validity of insurance contracl The Employer shall not be responsible for the validity oI any lnsurance

Contract issued hereunder or for the failure on the part of the losurer to make payments provided ior under any lnsurance

Contract. Once insurance is applied for or obtained, the Employer shall not be liable lor any loss which may result from the
failure to pay Premiums lo the exlenl Premium notaces are not received by the Employer.

II.8 NO GUARANTEE OF TAX CONSEQUENCES

Neither the Administrator nor the Employer makes any commitment or guarantee that any amounts paid to or for the benefit

of a Participant under the Plan will be excludable from the Participant's gross income tor lederal or state incrme tax purposes, or that

any other federal or state tax treatment will apply to or be availabb to any Participant. lt shall be the obligation of each Participant to

determine whether each payment under the Plan is excludable from the Participant's gross income for federal and stale incrme tax
purposes, and to notify the Employer if the Participant has reason to believe that any such payment is not so excludable.
Notwithstanding the toregoing, the rights of Participants under this Plan shall be legally enforceable.

II.9 INDEMNIFICATION OF EIIIPLOYER BY PARTICIPANTS

lf any Participant receives one or more payments or reimbursements under the Plan that are not for a permitted Benefit,

such Participant shall indemnify and reimburse the Employer for any liability it may incur for failure to withhold federal or state income
tax or Social Security tax from such paymenls or reimbursements. However, such indemnificalion and reimbursement shall not

exceed the amount of additional federal and state income tax (plus any penalties) that the Participant would have owed if the
payments or reimbursements had been made to the Participant as regular cash compensation, plus the Participant's share of any
Social Secalrily tax that would have been paid on such compensation, less any such additional income and Social Security tax aclually
paid by the Participant.

I1.10 FUNDING

Unless otherwise required by law, contributions lo the Plan need not be placed in trust or dedicated to a specific Benefit, but
may instead be crnsidered general assets of the Employer. Furthermore, and unless otherwise required by law, nothing herein shall
be construed to require the Employer or the Adminastrator to maintain any fund or segregate any amount for the benefit of any
Participant, and no Participant or other person shall have any claim against, right to, or security or other anterest in, any fund, account
or asset olthe Employer from which any payment under the Plan may be made.

11.11 GOVERNING LAW

This Plan is govemed by the Code and the Treasury regulations issued thereunder (as they might be amended from time to
time). ln no event shall the Employer guarantee the favorable tax treatmeni soughl by this Plan. To the extent not preempted by
Federal law, the provisions ofthis Plan shall be construed, enforced and administered according to the laws of the State of lllinois.

11.12 SEVERABTLTTY

lf any provision of the Plan is held invalid or unenforceable, its invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other
provisions oflhe Plan, and the Plan shall be construed and enforced as if such provision had not been included herein.

11.r3 CAPTTONS

The captions contained herein are inserted only as a matter of convenience and tor reference, and in no way define, limit,
enlarge or describe the scope or intent of the Plan, nor in any way shall affect the Plan or the construqtion of any provision thereof.

11.11 CONTTNUATTON OF COVERAGE (COBRA)

Notwathstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, in the event any benetit under this Plan subject to the continuation
coverage requirement of Code Sestion 49808 becomes unavailable, each Participant will be entitled to continuation coverage as
prescrabed in Code Seclion 49808, and related regulations. This Seclion shall only apply if the Employer employs at least twenty (20)
employees on more than 50% of ils typacal business days in the previous calendar year.

11.15 FAillLY AND MEDICAL LEAVE AcT (FIulLA)

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the conlrary, in the event any benefit under this Plan becomes subjecl to the
requirements of the Family and Medical Leave Acl and regulalions thereunder, thas Plan shall be operated in accordanc€ with
Regulation 1 125-3.

15



I1.I6 HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA)

Notu/ithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, this Plan shall be operated in accordance with HIPM and regulations
thereunder.

11.17 UNIFORITED SERVICES EMPLOYI'ENT AND REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS ACT (USERRA)

Notwithstanding any provision ofthis Plan to the contrary, contributions, benefits and service credit wilh respecl to qualified

military service shall be provided in accodance with the Uniform Services Employment And Reemployment Rights Acl (USERRA) and
the regulations thereunder.

I1.18 COI PLIANCE wlTH HIPM PRIVACY STANDARDS

(a) Application. lf any benefits under this Cafetena Plan are subjecl to the Standards for Privacy of
lndividually ldentifiable Health lnformataon (45 CFR Part 16,4, the "Privacy Standards"), then this Sec'tion shall apply.

(b) Dbclosure of PHl. The Plan shall not dasclose Protected Health lnformation to any member of the
Employeds workforce unless each of the conditions set out in this Section are met. "Protected Health lnformation" shall have
the same definition as set forlh in the Privacy Standards but generally shall mean individually identifiable information about

the past, present or future physical or mental health or condition of an andividual, including information about treatment or
payment for treatment.

(c) PHI disclGed for administrative purposes. Protecled Health lnformation disclosed to members of the
Employe/s worktorce shall be used or disclosed by them only for purposes of Plan administrative functions. The Plan's

administrative funclions shall include all Plan payment funclions and health care operations. The terms "payment" and
"health care operations" shall have the same definitions as set out an the Privacy Standards, but the term "payment"
generally shall mean aclivities taken to determine or fulfill Plan responsibilities wilh respecl to eligibility, coverage, provrsion

of benetits, or reimbursement for health care. Genetac information will not be used or disclosed for underwriting purposes.

(d) PHI disclosed to certain workforce members. The Plan shalldisclose Protected Health lnformation

only to members of the Employe/s workforce who are authorized to receive such Protected Health lnformation, and only to
the extent and in the minimum amounl necessary for that person to perform his or her duties with respecl to the Plan.

"Members of the Employeis workforce" shall refer to all employees and other pe(ions under the control of the Employer.
The Employer shall keep an updated list of those authorized to receive Protecled Health lnformation.

(1) An authorized member of the Employe/s workforce who receives Protected Health lnformation shall use
or dasciose the Protecled Health lnformation only to the extent necessary to perform his or her duties with respect
to the Plan.

(2) ln the event that any member of the Employe/s workforce uses or discloses Protected Health lnformation
other than as permitted by this Seclion and the Privacy Standards, the incident shall be reported to the Plan's
privacy officer. The privacy officer shall take appropriate aclion, including:

(i) investigation of the incident to determine whether the breach occurred inadvertently, through
negligence or deliberately; whether there is a pattem of breaches; and the degree of harm caused by the
breach;

(ii) appropriate sanclions against the persons causing the breach which, depending upon the nature
of the breach, may include oral or written reprimand, additional training, or termination of employment;

(iii) mitigation of any harm caused by the breach, to the extent praclic€ble; and

(iv) documentation ofthe incident and all aclions taken to resolve the issue and mitigate any
damages.

(e) Certlficauon. The Employer must provide certification to the Plan that it agrees to:

(1) Not use or furlher disclose the information other than as permitted or required by the Plan documents or
as required by law;

(2\ Ensure lhal any agent or subcontraclor, to whom it provides Protecled Health lnformalion received from
the Plan, agrees to the same restriclions and crnditions that apply to the Employer with respecl to such
information;

(3) Not use or disdose Protecled Health lnformation for employment-related actions and decisions or in
conneclion with any other benerit or employee benefil plan of the Employer;

(4) Report to the Plan any use or disclosure of the Protected Health lnformation of wh ich it becomes aware
thal is inconsistent with the uses or disclosures permitted by this Section, or required by law;

16



(5) Make available Protected Health lnlormation to individual Plan members in accordance with
Seclion 164.524 ofthe Pnvacy Standards;

(6) Make available Protected Health lntormation for amendment by individual Plan members and incorporate
any amendments to Protected Health lnformation in accordance with Seclion 164.526 ofthe Privacy Standardsi

(7) Make available lhe Protecred Health lnformation required to provide an acrrunting of disclosures to
individual Plan members in accordance with Section 1&.528 of the Privacy Standards;

(8) Make its intemal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure oI Protected Health
lnformation received from the Plan available to the Department of Health and Human Services for purposes of
determining complianc€ by the Plan with the Privacy Standards;

(9) lf feasible, retum or destroy all Protecled Health lnformation received from the Plan that the Employer still
maintains in any form, and retain no copies of such information when no longer needed for the purpose for which
disclosure was made, except that, if such retum or destruclion is not feasible, limit further uses and disclosures to
those purposes that make the return or destruclion of the information infeasible; and

(10) Ensure the adequate separation between the Plan and members ofthe Employe/s workforce, as
required by Section 164.504(0(2)(iii) ofthe Privacy Standards and set out in (d) above.

11.19 COMPLIANCE wlTH HIPAA ELECTRONIC SECURITY STANOARDS

Under the Security Standards for the Proleclion of Electronic Protec{ed Health Information (45 CFR Part 164 300 et. seq ,

the "Security Standards"):

(a) lmplementatlon. The Employer agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate administrative,
physical and technical safeguards to protecl the confidentiality, integrity and availability of Eleclronic Protected Health
lntormation that the Employer crestes, maintains or transmils on behalf of lhe Plan. "Electronic Prolected Health
lntormation" shall have the same definition as set out in the Sec!rity Standards, bul generally shall mean Protected Health
lnformation that is transmitted by or mainlained in electronic media.

(b) Agents or subcontractoB shall meet securlty 3tandard3. The Empioyer shall ensure that any agent
or subcontraclor to whom it provides Electronic Protected Health lnformation shall agree, in writing, to implement reasonable
and appropriate security measures to prolecl the Electronic Protected Health lnformation.

(c) Employer shall ensure security standards. The Employer shall ensure that reasonable and
appropriale security measures arc implemented to comply with the conditions and requirements set forth in Section 1 1 .18.

1'1.20 MENTAL HEALTH PARITY AND ADDICTION EQUITY ACT

Notlvithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the Plan will comply with the Mental Health Parity and Addiction Equaty Act
and ERISA Sec{ion 712.

11.21 GENETTC TNFORMATTON NONOISCRII|IINATION ACT (Gll{A)

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the Plan will comply with the Genetic lnformation Nondiscrimination Acl.

11.22 WOiIEN'S HEALTH AND CANCER RIGHTS ACT

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the Plan will comply with the Women's Health and Cancer Rights Ac{ of
1998

11,23 NEWBORNS'ANDMOTHERS'HEALTHPROTECTIONACT

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the Plan will comply with the Newborns' and Mothers' Health Protection
Act.

17



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, thrs Plan document is hereby executed this _ day of

Village of Bun Ridge

By
EMPLOYER

18



7660 Counry Line Rd. ' Burr Ridge, lL 60527
(630) 654-8181 'Fax (630) 654-8269 ' www.burr-ridge.gov

August 20, 2013

Mayor Straub and Board ofTrustees
7660 County Line Road
Bun tudge, Illinois 60527

Re: Z-ll-2013:6501 County Line Road (Lindell); Text Amendment or Variation

Dear Mayor and Board of Trustees:

The Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals previously forwarded its recommendation
to deny a request by Mr. Dennis Lindell for a text amendment or variation to Section IV.J of
the Bun Ridge Zoning Ordinance for the construction ofa 6 foot tall fence in the Ilont and
the comer side yards of an existing residential property rather than the requircment that
fences be restricted to 5 feet in height and located in the rear yard. The Board of Trustees
considered that recommendation at the July 8 meeting and remanded the petition to the Plan
Commission for further review. Subsequent to the Board's review, the petitioner ageed to
reduce the height of the fence to 5 feel and to move the fence behind the perimeter
landscaping with a l5 to 18 foot setback from the fiont and comer lot lines.

The Plan Commission considered the amended plans at their August 19,2013 meeting. The
Plan Commission concluded that the changes did not resolve their previous concerns.
Particularly, the Commission still believes that the variation cannot be justified. The
property may be considered unique due to its location at an intersection of two arterial
streets. However, that unique condition does not create a hardship that can only be resolved
by granting the proposed fence variation. In facq the Plan Commission concluded that the
fence will not provide any more protection fiom the adjacent streets than could be provided
by landscaping.

The petitioner also requested a text amendment that would allow fences in the fiont yards of
properties of 2 acres more and located on two arterial streets. The Commission previously
recommended denial of the text amendment in part because the size ofthe lot should not be
reason for allowing front yard fences.

At the August 19 meeting the petitioner indicated they would be agreeable to any
amendment that allowed a front yard fence on the subject property. The Commission
discussed options for a text amendment and decided that any further consideration of a text
amendment should be done with a new public hearing that includes a broader legal notice.
The Commission struggted with finding any terms that would allow front yard fencing
without creating an undesirable number of fiont yard fences in the Village. Generally, the
Commission believes that fiont yard fences are contraD/ to the objectives of the fence
regulations which are to maintain an open streetscape throughout the Village.

Mickey Straub
Mayor

Karen J. Thomas
Villate Clerk

Steven S. Stricker
Adminisrrator



After due consideration, the Plan Commission concluded that even with the amendments
to the petition, the variations do not comply with the standards ofthe Zoning Ordinance.
Accordingly, by a vote of 7 to 0, the Plan Commission recommends denial of the
variations as requested by Z-ll-2013 and forwards is findings of fact in support of its
recommendation to deny (attached).

The Plan Commission also considered the request for a text amendment and concluded

that an amendment based on the size of the property was not consistent with the purpose

of the Zoning Ordinance. Thus, the Commission's prior recommendation to deny the

text amendment remains based on the approved findings of fact (attached). The

Commission does request direction as to whether the Village Board wants the Plan

Commission to further consider a different amendment to the Zoning Ordinance relative
to fiont yard fences.

Sincerely,

Greg Tranpek, Chairman
Village of Bun Ridge
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals

GT:JDP:sr



FI\DIN(;S OF F-.{CT
FOR THE, DE\IAL OF A \'AI{IATIO\ FITOM THE
VILL.A,(;E OF BL RR RID(;E ZO\I\(; 0RDI\.{N('E

Z-ll-2013;6501 County Line Road

The petitioner requests a variation from Section IV.J ofthe Zoning Ordinance to allou'a six foot high
fence located in a front and comer side yard in a residential district. The Zoning Ordinance restricts
fences to 5 feet and limitS the location offences to rear yards.

There was no evidence shown regarding the particular physical surroundings, shape, or

topographical conditions ofthe specific property involved that cause a particular hardship to the

owner, as distinguished fiom a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were to

be carried out.

The petitioner cited the location of the property at the intersection of two arterial streets and

cited security concems that occurred during the time of construction of the home and prior to
occupancy as justification for the variation. The Plan Commission determined that these

conditions do not create a hardship that justifies the need for a fence in the front and comer
side yard. In particular, the safety and security concems of this property are not significantly
different from other residential properties on arterial steets.

b. There was no evidence provided that the property in question cannot yield a reasonable retum
if permitted to be used only under the conditions allowed by the regulations goveming the

zoning district in which it is located.

The property was constructed with the existing fence regulations in place and there is no
evidence submitted that indicates it cannot continue to be used as it is currently zoned and
without a fence variation.

Plan CommissionlZnning Board of Appeals

August 5,2013



FINDINGS OF FACT FOR THE I)ENI.q.L OF.{\
AMENDMENT To THE

VILLAGE OF I}I.JRR RIDGE ZONING ORI)INANCE

Z-11-20131'6501 Countl Line Road

The petitioner requests an amendment to Section IV.J of the Zoning Ordinance to allow residential

fences on properties exceeding 2 acres and with frontage on two arterial streets

a. The amendment is not compatible with other standards and uses ofthe Zoning Ordinance;

The Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance does not permit fences in any front or comer side yard. The

amendment would allow fences in such yards for larger properties located on arterial streets.

The need for a fence is not greater on larger parcels than it may be on smaller parcels. Thus,

allowing fences on larger parcels but not on smaller parcels is not consistent with the Zoning
Ordinance. Allowing front and comer side yard fences on any property would not be

compatible with the standards of the Zoning Ordinance, particularty those standards relating to
the preservation of open space.

b. The amendment does not fulfill the purpose and intent of the Zoning Ordinance;

The amendment is in contrary to the purpose of enhancing the aesthetic value of property
throughout the Village.

August 5, 2013

Gre g Ti-zupek, Chairm aa
PIan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals



VILLAGE OF

I]RRRIDG
Mickq, Straub

N{avor

Karen J. Thomas
Village Clerk

Steven S. Stricker
Adminrsrraror

A VERY SPECIAL PLACE,
7660 Counry Line Rd. ' Burr fudge, IL 60527

(630) 654-8181 'Fax (630) 654-8269 ' www.burr-ridge.gov

August 20, 2013

Mayor Sraub and Board of Trustees
7660 County Line Road
Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

Re: S-0zl-2013: 60 Shore Drive @rand Max Motors); Conditional Sign Approval
and Sign Variation

Dear Mayor and Board ofTrustees:

The Plan Commission tmnsmits for your consideration its recommendation to approve a

request by Brand Max Motors for a variation from Section 55.07 of the Sign Ordinance to
permit two wall signs on the same side of the building with a combined area of 160 square
feet. The Sign Ordinance permits two sign per street frontage for a comer lot provided each
sign is oriented toward a different street with a combined area not to exc€ed I I0 square feet.

The Plan Commission considered this request at their August 19, 2013 meeting. [n2001. a

sign variation was approved allowing two signs on the north fagade of the building. The
proposed sign would replac€ one of the two signs previously approved for this property.
The 2007 approval was based on the fact that two signs are allowed on the building, that the
building faces I-55, and that the use of the building includes rwo retail sales facilities. The
current request included a third sign to be located above the entrlnuay on the west fagade of
the building. However, the Commission do€s not recommend that sign as it would be
inconsistent with other sign approvals and set a precedent for three signs on a comer lot.

Based on the above considerations, the Plan Commission concluded that the sign variation
complies with the standards of the Zoning Ordinance. By a vote of 5 to 0, the Plan
Commission recommends approval of a variation from Section 55.07 of the Sign
Ordinance to permit two wall signs on the same side of the building with a combined area
of 160 square feet subject to compliance with the submitted plans.

Sincerely,

Greg Trarpe( Chairman
Village of Bun Ridge
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals

GT:JDP:sr



12" x 1 39.5" 53.7 5" x 173"
(11 .625 sq ft) (64.5 sq ft)



o
!t
\
o
o
F
o
o
\

\r
o
o=

o)x
@

-N6r
NJ x -=er- .^Y.EB Xi
=vt =\r



VILLACE OF ickeystraub

RI]RR RII ,."],,".*un venv sPE,crAL P uillageclerk

7t 60 Counrv Line Rd. ' Burr tudge. tL 60527 1iil,,*.3
(630) 6;4-8181 'Fax (630) 654-8269 ' rl.*u,.burr-ridge.g rv

August 20, 2013

Mayor Straub z Board of T stees

7660 County Line Road
Burr fudge, Illinois 60527

PC-07-2013: Zoning Regulations Pertaining to Compassionate Use of
Medical Cannabis Pilot Program Act

Dear Mayor and Board of Trustees:

The Plan Commission transmits for your consideration its recommendation to direct
the Plan Commission to conduct a public hearing to consider an amendment to the

Zoning Ordinance. The hearing would consider an amendment in response to the
recent enactment by the State of Illinois of the Compassionate Use of Medical
Carmabis Pilot Program Act by the State of Illinois. This law preempts municipal
authority to wholly prohibit "medical marijuana disbursement facilities" (as defined
in the Act) within municipal borders. It does, however, allow municipalities to
regulate the location of such facilities from a zoning standpoint. A more detailed
explanation is provided in the attached letter from the Village Attomey.

Sincerely,

Greg Trzupek, Chairman
Village of Burr Ridge
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals

GT:JDP:sr



20 N Wacker Drive Ste 1560

Chicago, Illinois 50506-2903

f 3L29U64@ F 3L2 9U 6444

oD 3L2 9U U2L

15010 5. Ravrnia Avenue, Ste 10

Orland Park, lllinois 50452-5353

T 708 349 3888 F 708 349 1506

MEMORANDUM

To:

From:

Date:

Re:

Steve Stricker, Village Administrator

John Maddeq Chief of Police

Klein, Thorpe & Jenkins, Ltd.

August 6, 2013

Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Pilot Program Act

The "Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Pilot Pro$am Act" (the "Act") has been signed into law

by Govemor Quinn. The Act preempts municipal authonty to wholly prohibtr "medical marijuana

disbursement facilities" (as defined in the Act) within municipal borders. It does, however, allow

municipalities to regulate the location ofsuch facilities from a zoning standpoint. Specifically, the Act
states as follows:

A unit of local government may enact reasonable zoning ordinances or resolutions, not in
conflict with this Act or with Department of Agriculture or Department of Public Health

rules, regulating registered medical cannabis cultivation center or medical cannabis

dispensing organizations. No unit of local government including a home rule unit, or
school district may regulate registered medical cannabis organizations other than as

provided in this Act and may not unreasonably prohibit the cultivation, dispensing, and
use of medical cannabis authorized by this Act. This Section is a denial and limitarion under

subsection (i) of Section 6 of Article VII of the lllinois Constitution on the concurrent exercise

by home rule units ofpowers and functions exercised by the State.

The new Act will take effect January l, 2014, and even after that date at least three state agencies

(Public Health, Agriculture and Department of Professional Regulation) have until 120 days after the

effective date to promulgate rules for implementation. The Act authorizes 22 "Cultivation Centers"

around the State (maximum of I in each State Police District) and up to 60 dispensaries, which are also

supposed to be spread out.

3t27t1 1

KTJ
KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, LID

Attorneys at Law



Cultivation centers cannot be located within 2,500 feet of the property line of a pre-existing public or
private preschool or elementary or secondary school or day care cenler, day care home, group day care

home, part day child care facility, or an area zoned for residential use, and all cultivation must take

place in an enclosed, locked facility.

A dispensing organization may not be located within 1,000 feet of the property line of a pre-existing

public or private preschool or elementary or secondary school or day care center, day care home, group

day care home, or part day child care facility. A registered dispensing organization may not be located

in a house, apartment, condominium, or an area zoned for residential use.

Some Illinois communities have proactively adopted resolutions which direct their respective PIan

Commissions to evaluate the classification of medical marijuana distribution facilities and make

recommendations as to whether such facilities should be considered special uses under their zoning

regulations. Under the language of the Proposed Law, that is essentially the extenr to which a local

govemment can regulate these facilities.

Ifyou have any questions please do not hesitate to contact us.

312784 t



AuSust 21, 2013

Paul May
Director of Public works
451 Commerce Street
Burr Ridge, lL 60527

Dear Mr. May,

On Au8ust 8,2OL2l was admitted tothe hospital for an emergency appendeaomy. lexpectto
recover fully and to be back at work as soon as possible, but I would like to request an FM[A
leave until I am released by my doctor to return to work.

Sincerely,

Timothy Jordan



VIIJLAGE OF BI'RR RIDGE

ACCOI'NTS PAYABLE APPROVAI REPORT

BOARD DATE: O8/26/t3
PAYMENT DATE: 08/27/t3

FISCAI 13.14

FUND FUND NA]YE

ceneral Fund
E - 911 F'und

Hotel/Motel tax Fund
Places of Eating Tax
Capital Irnprovements Fund
Sidewalks / Patshway Fund
water F"und

Sewer Fund
Information Tectmolog"y Fund

TOTAI ALL FT'NDS

LegislaEion
Administration
Community DevelopmenE
Fi,nance
PoIice
hrblic works
Water
Sewer
IT Fund

TOTA],

PAYROLL

PAY PERIOD ENDING AUGUST 1?,

PAYA!}LE

10

2L

24

31

32

51

52

5L

$1s3,393.68 s153, 393 .58

2 013

TOTA],

PAYROLL

3, L04 . 02

15, 973 . 15

9 , 56s .2A
'7,749.19

104 . 115.12
22,109 -'7A

24 , L42 .50
7 ,099 .75

$L94 , 459 .29

88,424.LL
I ,266 . 56

22 ,59L .94
1, 597 . 50

12,910.00
526.00

L7 , AA4 .22
468 .71

't ,724.60

rOTAI
AMOUNT

44,424.L!
7,256.s6

22 , 597 .98
1,597.50

12, 910.00
526 .00

77 , 884 .22
464 .'7 L

'7,'124.60

GRAND TOTAI, s347 , 852 .97



:inii Hi:i i :::_ i __H-iidii
@@ao63iN

6 !9 !t I i | !. r r r r r @ @ o

c
'i

o, E 6 .9 6-< 6- .q z 2 e2i'1 ii oii o-- o ; -i;
- o .: 6i6rtii,o n 6d,ro .; rnlriFrr H t:: ; ido: E

dl6(o Er Ena .nE|\ul6o\ElrFFF l,ro\6iidd:ii I d' cn 6'o'd .,r - d, q : o uj 6 10 v; G, G .r J @,N (Drroaaaa) 2rroooooo jF.ar o aaoa o iioo.ier_rerrc.4 d 6 < d d d 4 < < < < N N N N 4 N N N Doda; 4d=d = ; ; 
= = 

d h h ir ; h 6 6 i.)

ouuu ,J >qi j i. ii (Do(JrD rDtutu o)!!!! o o aanan aq o o o o o o o c c c c o, o tD o o tD o - o o o a U) d 5 E 5 o o o otrr d,E dd6do!!!!o!!o4 qs, 6 - - driddr..,--<..,! .i!! !!!!! J r r J '1, o o q i i L n i d !! ! c..1 tI,oo .a.4 _d. oo .dcccaacd add ddd,d,d 6-qqd, !!oOOOaao & .; _; o6666or,roE O O r') (D dr o o o o a .) ; .7 .7 .a -a ,a .a

1 O?? aaaaa o, o o o , d .z > >r >r >, > )r ! r{ rr ! ?) a o. o. -it)5=p*z
.4 o.0c,c,0. >.>,cccccc@i!66 cv-uraaaj) oOO 9! - oUi,raaaaaaooccooooooi oo o ;;eizec-4-.c??o()oo(Jooooo po!c!6oooo!!oo ta r,) o c o o ,u o o ,6 o o o o o o o c!oa qCiq o ij ; d d J d d rj u q r <.rur o,EOoEd'o'o'!---- o'ouooooa$caa a h6i,ho<,!,t,t 6 o,o,oo,ooo,no,o ,!,!-; ; E - - ; r,- r_ r- r- r" j jr.arrr!di i-o o o o oi+x r! '! '! 6,i,l! o C i a JJaj. i t; r;!i ----'

'a .t.r.i.H .i .d o o ! a a a a a a a o a .A_a a.4 adfri&> o r > > o > > > > > dl > > > > > o () o o o o o o o. G d l; t t d t ii ii d a 
=.o 

o & o E o o o
o\o io.ao
!cau d)!u5O.4 i o5 ! !6 BI! \ E (j)Oi roo - <:6
o E \ o 4 o' o 5 >; -4.4 r \.itrr!5i

l:cotxF)50E-!AtF)do or-o@ >di d, a/a; !i(Do@(JE(rc,o\ trria o.- c oo c I ro6 0.: dcc- d'a 6 0)0)@orroc.d.i E, c 0r ri -a -a 6 drr r.Hoo> >\\co_.4rlJOCrrUrr ti I l! . ! ri I !rr C oo orJ!! s 4.C C O C c.d iooo .i
!!r o r.

.. > > o d
Z o 0,i.o , I! r,. L, r& r& d cj r!i,i::ori€oa{€tEo
c(lrrrFtuorad@16mooo

o-

lir r I I

4 ):' n d ur 6 aaaao o t t oF 5: F) F) i>5rrr>i -bD20auidaF)
, ..^^ ,icrdt sijo-;..,i(,-id|o' ,!oool!, d 6 0 0J rtr o I I F' u c \ \ \ta- cc F) xrxOF) ot !Ju16!ptiiioNNr tr(D4(lJ to:rro or.i.i-n;>o5:i I u.cd- l!vcdidi66aEci <{\i rD.i.4 cq >o.>\c o- i rr I <ro6 n i oieeo1J< r '!,6 o-!c).p qop6io@oioibb6

r c E E > ! o ! E.a rD l!.d F) r@\\od 6 I ' iu-ao o>,6o,0(,)EFrrr& ;;;)2,4.4!)ct oA O!\r- o6t/)ciDttoJunn;a a,eq,cad o.i@'bo6cFi F!r@o iOr!\u!colo -a@rin---o ! o - " 6 i ,t c o c o o E o rr \\\\F-nnc.n a o x o ! E I .n o\ c r c c c c A n i i- > o,E o E dr- \l.r c o rlAlJOO.o.o\\CrD tu-a-A;;a);;;;a \ E E 2 o.i ! >! d c o o o d.f, i 3 tii-i oanni , o '! 6 ,< -c q -d ! -a rr lE d 5 o, r,) i ii---ot !!ruopr ,i, lqq!!!!; i,,,oc 9 o o o o o o'! or! rro, o> ! rD o o o o o or - d,6,6_\r! (J c a ri ! o ! t& 
'n 

\ o s c rD ! !1r!uaA6-a'rD.o c o o o U o !.o o d d id onnr;o, i!O.n,c rr ri.; r66rtrnr-l! 4 C 6 6 o. O rr 6 > l! O l! ! .C I)to r! .a rJ u o n o ! .i ,r E ! E o o E EoolJ!!,8 i;;o i -a ! q c rr .4 o l! (J o .i i (.) adnri
6 E o O o, o F F B rri 4 t- d tp tu k A d, A A & & d, i d, n d ; ; ;

!ooo-
eoooooooooo6oa6666o
.-) I I lr rl I I I I I I Ioooooo666

oooooo66a

olr r I I I

-3.!.!.{,rr9oo6i!!-!Nm-H NaN;;;i ,!ooo eo o9 a o oo o oocjcjo d.;ij^s$o @o@o6;air | ' rrrrrrrr I rrri iiiiirriiiiii
oooo66i!,,, I 

' ' r aiiii'iii
::::::oooooooo6

olHai a-A)a;;;==:co.r r r r

ii;;;::::=:

E

E

€
a

J
(J

v.-
@-

o :o
" >P

) ,a

9 le _

.i ;iro

P ;g
I E5a 6c
oi



s<saiaNooa6oo
9 600

o.oo(J !J

!1 4 6o6@r@oiddNN@
\\\\\\\\\\\\\<\\\\\I o !9 !9 o e99@@ o Dtfrfrrr

:

E

' zz:6i.ilzzzzzEal.:6 q 6 ; - EnEn6d 2 @ i nnn@@ F r rd
-. { N9 0) 999Fr o{ctrr
!! > 9 sm o!r o 9 !! Hoo'<c: .d zlaaa
9 , s E >o !o e r_t- O I u s @OO9 E n9 c iio,- c -ao.
9r (.) clo c !9i!!N6 rJ oii d\dd6d)@o\;NNf)ooolog o lilo\ii d,oooo-,4Enq20 o \o r ro{ oooprs n <d i 6<<es ooooorr-iJ;::NNi s$$s;+qso.uoo

'i ,? B YXX: :YY.:.::.:.X.:.:.::!r{ c E llHiu o>>>>>>> ji>>u. r,) E o ,! i i. ! n i. ! ! rr i. ir ,r ,r l!99U) 9 q or-(r o o o rD o o o o o o ci d d o o,! .ir! p.a .@6urq aaacelHp c c ! o o o c oii o.i E ! .n.d ! oo2 d€6€qqqoqq6so ac-0, . ooo!02 o innE!- o--;:F ,Ho,qE o 4 .. C ? 6 cr or o o o or rD o orio< ooooc)(Jcr!oo I lioo6ai n n n n ! rr ,r i ! ! ! o o o .!o o (.).r Fr Fr iFlrrlo o o Oe o.a.r _; a.a.4.4 a a i.i Enaa o! r ,jFFaFFFFFFFF;- - EoJo.dcrr c to.i.i & an Jo!aj.' '
,r-' 9! t q ! o o o o orq o GGt L)(j) i. !r ir ir ! r. r. rr ir q ir 6 n id
o6(u:EY -d44<4.r!,l!'! oaao - n 'i a a ; ,; 6 ,; b '; ; ; ; ; ; 5
:i!1og o99999qq<<4o i.;.;iro<osoq oalJoo.

!i >< >E E E E Eii ! ! J x i i 5.o.o.-i E E E e e e e e E E e E i > >".r o.- .!d 6 >r>>>i o o o4 q,!,! o=V c aa 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 d 6 6.; to at @ > e 4 & a .a a 6 a H o 2 2 d a a d l, o, [ 5 (& E i i i i a a i F a a i n; ti .i .d) io\r<i - ,x I o , or 5 0 4a a p>a - i4qq a .a A ; a_. .;llu6 i ,Lqo - i< a o - Ddr-6E oi I D c oq o' \b i 
=an>r{- F) o I o t 2 iN - i - 6F)io !6- o:E c o o bi 6 co < rJ i ; i EHt,5>'!o ,.ai!d- imo@- o ira<tit^ .o<o.;- o,-*o- - ; s;cjd;- 6o.4ro-or o>El,l- E-ii-o{ j r-*6\, ,6,r o: :( a + odor\r!l cto!\ailJ = o;iro16 ,na6oq>> , .i\!tr, lF) .,6ci1_ a 5, -\oro\ r6rrrci E6;cEdr < r.,dj<.;;- -,ir

.4 @ >!6,0. ! 6 o o - e o i : - - o 6 m - \ o .- ,. p riJ o o q,* -q ! o o o o d a G ! - 6 o o - o J J .arn5ii
'!.i!oo oH - Ec!!uo- o cuai.; _.;_ - _ ooci;ro r. 6 E E- o o U u o (,\Ene 6 (*.;!i oaa-- r- O. n;r i,E a;.r(Doo6 oi 6 eE:t rin-noEe<<n=Iii Ir,!\Fo,ij-o;Jo o!q6 < q ,E a 6. o A a - 6 l; 6 D .) q > 3 p d,!;!<.4rE0ro, FF) u\ l/)(ruraote s.:i.;.i d e; jii tt-a!b.cri!-i!!9,:.o \rb,.o <!6oc;odrD j jlri;:-on*r a:o\rdocccxc cot rE ,i!io o;.d6.j;c ! iltr E \ .r c n c r q .i i i! o q o/ o o o ! o oi66-ooi,a:n -E.ii

z.aa ;!=oj:Hdol[r rrE.;u6,{4<oo oc,{o!o. or(!coo..; o o E u i - n + + - - n j u { ; 6 ri b "tEt)o. ao'!O!116 r,t (rul .; d o o .: .; 6.; ! \ - < { \4.4 c a a .a ! E'.d.4 4a r q 6 r x; t - ! ! 6.< i r,. - r,l r,l u d;.; i ilo o ,.i u c ,t c < < < o ,n < r! 4 C o, ? 
= 

6 i AE i o ci6 5 o o o o 0-6 A;; e X(J d Fr o a (, N ..r F F d J a o 6 d, ; A ; 6 6 ; U U O O E E A 6 A ii 6 ; d

!sg i;s:s: 3srr.3ie sHEEEE TUSeEEEEEEEqq3SEBBBBEBBBSBB3BbBbgeEEo;;;;;;;6n o6;;;;;;:
noon6;;;on

-! ! r ; r r i i 
' 

I I i i j'i'-, -,
c; o o ii o o o o o 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 6 a i o 3 J A J J A A 3 A 3 J 3 J A A aii::;;:=;:==:__nni_i

o6.{,,{'," 6 ; ; ; ; ; ; ; 6 6 ,4 6 e o !ro.r r or I I I I or I I I I , | | , i i -iioooooo 60000000000000000ao34334JJA3JA3A3aAi
:i_;;:;:__

!

o.o

E

EF

B
a

-o'

E

!

c<n

! E=

a

i;

*-
.oE

:N3 _;5

> !g:
f- ;^9
x ;<-

E nq

I E86 6.0
();

o

E

E-4

o)
,o
e
2
!l
(9



o@N@@o@
f @@i {6q'oo
9-o rri i, oc\(oNNJN6i cioo6

:??:

o\ 61 Er En Er+a a a ) aro 444<o

o6oq,F o6=+ooa,(,o@(orrrr

oo tooooo 6i-rr 6r' ;6o\o6\dt6\!r9t1 i o r{or rr |ooo' 
' '@iinrnnoEao\o 6 6, N N O ; ; ; @ b ir o o o o

o'E{(oo @e\oeNaol 6N6ooooo@ rd d 6 c' 6 < 6 6 6 n o c I ri N N N d 
= 

I a a a a

ooo acccacoo(J orDoooo)

ooo. t'6uodataaa arr!rrn!t&trrl

ooo or!o0Jo(r!!!33!aaa oooooo444
cccoo3 f 3 o'- - - - - -ooocoooooo
rDoorrSaraaaBBBOd.,,d,end

! o|o H
o do u'CiCN

'raO -a^; otrl d) 0!l! CCO ^ O.a .;.d,dOlOc
C! .orii5rD.i-3 r! olo..l cio!
o. l!(r)aoa-c>.icE>ix.o .d
o=o€rrol!46 u "o o Eo 6 lENU.d o o c olo\o1o oz a t6-a ool!.anuoo55Ne3(,=avrqYY

o!coJ3

r:as3s ;3333333qE€E333333333333qEEEEEEEE::::::::sss:sin^rFrr ?s o6666o;;;;;6ioo @6.o@6666be@@lo@, , , , , , r r i i , ;;;;;i.i , , r r rooooooooooooooooooooooooo oo6; ; ;;6@\olo@.n,bG 66666G;; @.oroe.oI I I I I I I I I I rt,i L I I I I I I I I r I iiil I r I I r:33EEE e:::99::::::::::::::::i::e.ooooooooooooaooooooo o o d 6 ; ij ij ij A A ; : : E 
= = 

X 
= = 

n . n n i a i d i i ;
E.,qi i i i ..y y y y y y y $ E F ? g gF F ? ? F? F EqF F q q q q q qq q q E 3 3 3 e EE esss s;g:::: g:9::3i9:3::::9::9:99::9ii::iiiiii:i::iAiiiiII

dd(.) ()
ur (Dot >>,>>!>! ri
d ooo.oro.S 3 Eoioo.oo.!!-.1
!(nG,o,)c)t,ts!r
.DCr(UOOO O
qr.d.i -i -i.i o ooqrlfqqa > > |qiqquq o oooooooooou' r r!
iuooo(JritrrEiE(<ccl!'n(-4 a a a ) aa4 0)>ddd&6lJ|J2

c o cd)o N-ii
N O O_B O ! pi; o i

\ u crr)- E,6lcocctd5ioroo,4io,d

a aa l!-aoibq o !r 6d ororrc!l!of
= u.a x 

" 
r o

\ o] o!o .dail.!o6
El. oq o l! o lvpiai.a ! 6! o rr o.o-o\! rrq.q o o0J! . -p 'n o,0)!cNooJlotr o.i .4-4 c5C-OXAO, .! rrrroo(.)u4!6 l! '! o o O-ixo.<,c-a.d.d
tuoEicoott=

' 
\o-cNoo a ab - \5ElO i rF)pqq' i iB i-,o-,o-or! . b,

q<d.i D n\ \\\\5- r o-- j:ioql I E \ -rE F,d o,.;\\;- 50rlf , o I ,ia@oiaixqo\ otrr !\\\\oFr-; oNcr@s!o'6a
9+*H oao @!iE i6ra I I I r c\oooo;oci!E\\ \\E 0l!> lJrrrrr 

'iiF)rrd ur- r'ccccinc'i!!!r ooc E,\ ! o - - , En o .a .d .i .a E .d o,!l!\dr-o,>>i c ! i Er < , 
' 

6 l! lE r! - l! .. .iri>i-oqqS,! iion.iF - , I i o E E E E a e - n c c A i 6 '@EE! oll3icoou\<ot_E l! r,to(rOo@c9qq r.1r,1\- 'nrd'rrc4 rru uE:!Enn-6 iao,!< o.i d, d, !,.c, E .c o|o,! o< O. a a t a 4 E o t c a \ F El o bi b!.; a t a - - - ) i, ooura !!!F)o 4 er.4 o N .4 .a .4 .i o ur: i o o a ! : a>cc dt q.aciqJc ii:i .;outtArii-
99- FElq9,aEo coc uo;;55'-6:;5.Ei 3 5',t 3;43I.3=.3.tt t 3,i." x.x !!6 E E.a

!a.nq qqo s 
= E o q o o e o rD ru ru {r !r (.) (.) o o . i .d :02 r 5! .i-ai o..a\-d H ir rr r.,!,! o o o o o-;iEtlt o c c o .c c o rD rD Bi B 9 ., , D D rJ'rn;;<<6_G6orrr rrj !r l! D 5 o, co D 4 r( F ir" ir. ? !, oa a (/, F tr r.r Li 6 6 i i i r.r

---- 5:daa |{

oooo F

>\ o,'n,c>o
o, r{c !E od o in-At)uoH (,) o o. r.o c .l irirDoo cc r ,E Li -a
I ira ? :6d! tt 6(J O l!aooo (, !t o, to6do6() e u ! !.r h;

P!!c cc.A.ac (r o!rr!ri ! ocadnio(Jc,o 'n'!!!6 c , ppru>! d6{i =e6rurDorDrDl!tD ouooo!o !oo-A:iiEEi.rro tuoroooco d;;diLaaaa (.)o4<oo orD{, i5i iuc,!iJ:E o > c c c E o !t !t rrl !t o !1 i !ioq,oo(.)- aaaEo Eooooo- u oooc -_ 
E,,-d.i.ao ccooc / oaaaa oorJaaG!oc1-4 rDru!!ot!i:i - i.t!todinaa(,.a,o.o.o >. o 0r .d .4 o 4 .4 4 4 4 i o .l' 5' bi bi O l! E r or ar i n i o7774 <.c l!,!,! 6oooijnnoi;!or or 0r ri 6 d) c) (o o q a o o o o n c. d d d, t) i a a ooar-t(j)

:

!

1-5a6x
-L ;o

s E5o uc
(Ji

-

E.4

,o
e
,1z
FIo



;

------- : --- x :rHHiiiH n :d- ; ;

e9@@rrr o oooooooo F ooo a a

!J 066

E

!

FF

!ioo
;-l a 6B - r:i i Li aa

60@ : f
oNod .= -dao 6\ rr oi I ; -, NN 6{6 : '; 6r@o666N ! 4 o6 $a\o6i .j i .i

@@ 5 r, 6oo\oo6F.o@ao\ 5 E -{!!qqooN6$ io@oo:o - 6 io r r rro NNNO o o i6o664<<H6\6\or 5

rJuaooa
!raJaoor,.

- CCA .d O'q EE > tgc EE ir i,UH O >!! !15!! E
>>oiiiJ ooo ccc! >o(.) .)ooHc a.no HH;; a.!!o..a .i .4EEeE

os!rrr.x Cccooooooi;i - !rE ncoo(/)o,)o\ 006!! ccc! !o]6HIrI! o!! .a.aaaa ooocrHHH(Do oooo l!!.iorroo t9oaaaTcc pc oo; o.+ra!5lE o o o u (.) u o l! i! q q qr o 6 :(a 3aooaz ! ooE oJll)000l!o,!oo< or ooooan Ei o'U\E, t'3 o.H 
':t 

! iDr r,) rD r,))a:rrac)ops! o -a.a.dcql!,{!.aci@o ooo!!r{r{ !!!Ao!oEooc,6o. lll! n c oooooazzzo r.dol@n;0'56,_rJooo!!1r E E r! 3 t , ! E E c c c .4 E o o H H H .; i !: i 3 a i a oqdi! @q 6 rr !-r!!!! (r o l! rE l! > 0J &t .i (,l! !.a i_i ri)odd 6 c o c '! rli g c c c o rD o o o rr oEEr,<h@ a,!rJ c o,!,n o on:a:H ().d.n 0i ,! E ! ! n i i o rr o o u u u E k c o ! rr ri i ,Iri B B - r r E d < 4 J Fl Fl lf @ @ (J U (-) (,.o O O F F a A c,; 
= 

ui O O O ri
cr- n am o oi 4 - a 6 00 0r !ri .a o., I 6- o aia o. !cF) dr- n 0-6 jo' rr<ai o o)En o.ar -r> l! iii <t ooii< 'o o!

< ioo,\ - tz 6 ! ooo' riit--tEB6 !o - o6 - !1! >r\ i o ):t, or{i};{=i u\.io'o o q o> o\ - q 44 4 J o 6 \ o ;o o_ o i-o,oul! z\, El! o6-tr I - - ,! ! > ! c ; & -o i 6. o, - i I!0'6<r{ , >!< 2 E H H e B - i i r. o ' i o a..- T _ r- ^o)
gr tr'.:rE!! ootu o -oirDrDooN 6;ar! ouiai@a1ouo 2 o.5 ; I c,\ .! c\\ u o o\\U c n o! a oj I ,!o 

' 
no$<:,!€o F .! @ @ .i -i a @ @ 6 H o o .; o ; _; o 6 \ o N d.

q.d+iIrqO. c a I a 4 I o l! l! o o o c 6 r( i O ,a uoauau,a.-q o>l.(, orc<E<>r.1 9 nl'9.n; couCJo o.r oaa!4oot, Eoot r \ < c d i i c c ,r , u dj o, ;-dEra u'orc!o\.4.cN r! E o o ! :E ! o o l! l! l! l! O \ \ tit-O-!oq!to o q 0J\ o< E d, or o> c rr e.1 .a,a a rr U Uo.ij.;6ri ; o O.9brr>; z\.o\.i !!!i ; ; n ! i 16 o t -o € ! -o i SI! E>. .a !.a 6eorol Eh 6 ! ! o o o o ! ! ! .a o -a - - ; '
do.oo E6o!u ! >pl;.pr o,!o..EEt)g]-o (, o(r.r E,i EEi.4.aiEooc!- i, o, uc6(.)jcool!oO-o- o<ll!ro O 6 .; d ! ii i 5 o .i o o o r,5H.i o ro ,cl rr> od o o o o,! ,! o oo;; o d o.a 66J.:,!:.; E 6., @ () E F d\o ij or d :E E.! E o tu 6, - F) D O o. d I|l d O A(! i; r o, o. = A..

o

(oa-
..9 I I I I I I q tr: "y ":.:.: t r: @ @
di:!!!999 ;0660 aiiiaHii;i oooooooo joooo99ooo
d , .9 9 9 9 9 9 9 ; ." ,.,o 9 9 o o 6 ,.a ,r. 6 6 6 6 6 ; ; ; 6 ; @ i @ @ @ @ @ .o \oS"iiiieee .333JA444dA33JJAA3AAJJJ33AJJJ
oo9\9!9!9!9oo 6{,{l46 6 o o ; ; 6 6 o o o o o Ln .nLli,

corr r r r | | | Ar I I I I i r ii I r rr I r I
aiii;:::==:=:=;:_*_*i__

-o'

:1 ii

?1l

E .i ,--l

ia

E

Ed

4\,E
z
FI(,

.dx
o :il
tB i3
! r39

e ng

E E3

o;



4o,Goo

1 @o

lt h ad E r!

ooer F oo ci H

o
t,
(,
il

;I

ET

pn
da

I&!
ctna D>Lr0FEcd iu!

4coinJi
tr t d E qqo
o 6 .i ; 112 6 o,E,b,E,n:t rI 5 a -- 3 33356EEEE

=a 
6 e t 6ooo6

ai , o ln l! ! @@\oq! c..{ ,! i r
ll , rD o ! r Fr ! riqa o r r .i o ' r oos{;44 e i! 66 u o. 6i !r a
o@ s or6o;a;.i No6,ooii666

o!ro!!ocococ
9a a1 0,oL6n

'.1 E

c oo ul! rrooo (rno
E C66o rrrddod !a aee2aacco, ru (J cccccc .oo.

6 l! i! ee
OJ TJ (J

at)uou o or ooccc o iEEooro)ooooooo,! (J o,.rE,r, oo o o lJ ! o c c co o orii: u!LrtrlEt o ! !.i.i.i
rD o rDiii a eEEE c.d i ln 6 16rr r. ti 6 l! l! c oooo o.c< rr li troodC)uo5()uoouFFooo

ur olb i)rt- ot44rra at\o, 4 !opoF)(ioir ol m.)or6N6 .4! ! ei : (D@ c lL+.40 .]166lo-,6-c I E- O- <<r r >e-\ .4o! u'E trr ttouolo.c o-c.J 35 6rr::E.d ! o( o<oal o
oo o'- o. c!i!r- N\cccrr ci\ Elr.4u+! o l! 5 0 (,)iiil! in c Ei-.d E u i r J c i (.) 16 6 6url!JoLrroi!cco<Iooroo={J-irJiiiqordrr!rorloNor,oo<<<

ccc3(,)EEEooo .d.d.i.i.4 r! (r >>>L!!-c.cE.1r!!
ooooo oo!!!dri<(JouoSio!!do!aJorrDoc c c o o a g r! 4 li; Eo ru r! r!
= D= F F B rrr O rrr rd rn rd D 5 @ o o

; "*--.;-o--
!jooo oc,ooooooo
tB ! ! ! | I I I I I I

Boq=$or r r tr I I I I I I I I I tt I

9999q!!999cor r r r r I I I I I
.,9i-,i

lr

.,)

E.)

OE

EO

e

!F
- -:

o;./,N f! (lrceooE>
lp

oo.!EqH
E \t

.!o- r!
i;ir ;6! a:: r !
Oo1-l nq
uor:F

N.;

!lJ@@cor r

lro

t

* o-
"i{ 3

X; ' '

dr 6'

o o!!
El o, (D o)
!!ra:
dd dt 6

==
oo'e'i
|i] 9i o n,oooo
o ooo

OOl!r!.rlr

==ia 
o oOO.d.a o o()(.)>>do

or >lU6-d. '!Eaa- oE I - 
'd'lloaFl,40,aat4 r x ots) oI COO I Cc o\ i 6r.iE-i Ei r o.i o u\o,d ao o-o ! !> (') il>6>>rr(D

'!3'!oe>3>OOo!oq El!
r! I o rD;i

1\\tr!!!vouoooo
:,A,AI\I\ E E

3!!di;;lu o @ o @ o.irDrDEEu!;r: rr I o o
'Eb!rrd<<rr

I !--oo--<iitt!4!9
;Ji' ' ' ' ' '

!!r-rl.-Frcorr r | | I I

5

E.i
q
rJ
E
aNtr

F]o

ox
o YLt

3 i3

I l5-* =,"1

E ng

s E5a 6.6



-,r____ : : _________ : x ____-Hidiii n i iiFj ; ; .jiidi

ooro a r oi-===

oc,ooo F a ooooooooo i i 66-oo

Ft >t Fl

zzs
---: 999EBB !

ddi@@@ ; @ooddd :i I I I@6@ c c c c c c c c C co-6 6. - o\\\ Xo 6 o J , a a a a a , , , { q s 6 ; o-6\0 i+ X 06oo \ o Fj b Fr F) F) F) F) F) D F) N N N , i eo;F-66\oo6 " i NNN
H ! !9 o\ -, ! : \o i !r .: ! m-ooooo i

.z'odii oco@Hdd t , FFr-c,oo,\o,o 6 i FFrrr
@6@>6>.1660 - d\6 nnooo

rJn!!o.coc
?aa oEr

o od;;i-a r!oo]f ! c).o.oi$)aa

ci(Joo5r(JOOe e a'a'aE Eqqq
ouooo
-i-i o u o.o.o c c ceear)oo&&&

OCJ
,d orr- oo!.c or! En .a! r.a! rr

4 l]-e!6 r !!!o,)l]!l!\o6rro

o@! o rr co cooo! o c!
>6 !tr.<! oo o Ei

tui >(D

35'i'iYYY

ccc ooooooFii!Jartdor,)0roiiE>Err!rrF6I!000OOro<(J()UUU

o !oom
Oiia

oo\ur (J o'ouriio, t a a ii\\N4 .444

il
@@ r J lJ,i Fl

r r ( 6d! o !!di-at,- i! o l!l!.!Cidtrri40o)u! <,r! J- &rErcco:Ed:E-. -ood\r\ru<! rr o o o o\\\
E E E o o o-a.a i!es-c!<r.lrrlo o o aoo.!!!!qqr o o o u o o
cccrDorD:-aD-DtrFFlllr.JrJ

;-NN*

! iooo
O ooo

qtr r r I I tt I

cor rr r r | | tl
-, qNNN

ooorDrD
.4 C.4 'n d ln 6 '! 6 '! l! r! d O O Oq'i !!a!!!!1J!!! 3, !
o Ero c c c c c c c E ( E o o 0,:tn a,4-41, O 1' :E T - - :E :E I I :E :E T6'! l!cl c 3!l3

r o o o o o o o o o o >>r>ri rr o.ooE o'
rD rl, o o o o o oJ o o c o c o o o, o o tu o o o o ooo,6, d, b\ oi 6' o\ o'o o o.4 !.4 or Er oi ur bi o o ot u\ t\ o o ii
l! (' 6 '! '! 6 $ e e e e c eaa!!ooo

U'
1.,

i bo oas x ri Ei^i!o c o- o! .4 c !'oiiaaaa ! o J rr- ->.i >\.4< ACCCC Ccccc!:4(, N: O5!O! t aaaaA)))aa5a<4 H o i -Q O r. i! o .i b F) ': h D F) D Fj b F) u4<!J ()q O rrd { I I I I I I I I I I O!r'ou'ooe66g)tto, c ! , r. -c t .t .E a a a a . E(r (re t:.Ea,o.4 /) ul D (.) o o o u o u o u u No o.i ! ooooaoQ.o.o.ou 0,3.a.a r o c c rr! o rr oi- 6'ororDrJ(Dtn!-c ri ri I rr rr ! ! |] q ,r .i c D.40aa@oo.DrDoooc6x
-3zq>44Dnu !pruEiSq! '! > r! l! 'r, rE 6 '! r[ 16 r! r! o r!

-nlnnnoo or (,): : oc- - ! o .o -o .o 16 x c \ o \ (, oJ o o o (' o o o o N N .;
uuoE,tE .i .i6,! d6d6ooorolr{ooo No o ! ! ! ! li ri ! a a r 5 i !D D a a a , A -O .o \ k o a 6 a rn6@iDa,r!! t.4.-.naiai cla O.a C C C C c c c c C Cl!OOi!!iOo O.nO.d.a66Lo0,< <oN<\i F EF :l :lE:E:E-:E:E:E-oN.;

;.ooo
!;eqSqq99o oooooooo
0)6@@9 \oeo@@Fna
ts I ! I I

-o@\o\o9@@e@ @!oo@@ra-
-l I !|

cor r r r ttttttt I ' I I I I I i i
Foiii ii;;;:H:

E

E

EA

,o
e
az

@ oo tj
(9

o)

r,, ;
oco;

lo:

! ;e o
5N

(, 
=iI "4

a '&> ig?
I" ;^-o

3 i< =
d ;iNo
z 43 t

E ilg

E i3 5

(,i



;

11i 1: C.:r:

&!
!xd,C'!!I!,F C!r O> CotE '!XCIDIc.4 >!F'O]J Er

,t rrJ E\r'd o!ic!qHocci,oo r5r!4t/z 44e,tu 4
'! \o(,6 elii(,)ut!ri!o: or (.).i (D rD rD o
o I oi '! 4 6 o c19rdrtuo@3oH

eu
oe

FF

!!!!!!!!!
r&r!l&r!I&I!Lrt!Gr

!
idi oi

ggsss9sse I
a.h@o.n

r,JooiDorDrDo(o)oo(Joooooro,4,4,4E,dqqqrEqi
oooooooouo
ooooooooc)o9qqc9999iC

&&de6ndod,
oodt E, (Do
!oto U'! 6'd o.4 5' 0 !.i )< irr ! !r E tsn,i rr u - 3!!,4!dtJ!lr'r,]'i!']ol,o! o! q ! l!\4
oeor.!l!(jNrqJ(, l!!(.) (U6'
1rU!(.)r! ir!>!o o o r. o r{-a.acri! orl!!ro o o o rr c o o!!! cp c rD o!o oi! xoi!l!pl!iro in6!o! l!uirct c:t o i ot
rD o o o cd o,i{ i! cu'l[ or! 6i dr(J.o.d

- EEIEOU>EdOJ.T
: <<<4.td.E n+
'; 

>6 o -
!;N40;!ruuo666orotu6ci oUOU(JUU r& t

:5ooo
i;ooo
;; I I I 

'
or I I r

!oss$col r r r

&io@@(o

€

!

ii

E.4
,i
o!
z

@ oo FloDa o

E-,
5=ox

:N3 e5

i :3i
9 l3-

3 i"=
d EiIo6 iir

e E8d do
(,i


	08-26-13 Agenda & Summary
	08-26-13 Minutes
	08-26-13 Resolutions 7A
	08-26-13 Resolutions 7B
	08-26-13 Considerations

